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INTRODUCTION

WELCOME

Securing Britain’s
energy with care

WHO WE ARE

IGas is a leading British oil and gas exploration and
production company, whose businesses have been
operating safely and environmentally responsibly
onshore in the UK for decades.

OUR STRATEGY

Reserves and
production growth

Developing shale
portfolio

Local and national
engagement

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenues Net debt’

£35.8m £6.2m

OUR VALUES

Our values guide our behaviour, they shape and
direct how we go about our work. They represent
the foundations of our business and are embedded
in everything we do.

Respect

Performance
Collaboration
Commitment

Transparency

Read more about our values on page 31

Profitf(loss) after tax Cash and cash equivalents

£15.5m £15.7m

2017 £358m 2017 £6.2m 2017 £15.5m 2017 £15.7m
2016 £30.5m 2016 £99.7m 2016 £(32.9m) 2016 £24.9m

" Net debt is borrowings less cash and cash equivalents excluding capitalised feas

* Adjusted EBITDA is 2arnings bafore net finance costs, tax credit, depletion, depreciation and amortisation and impairments.
* Underlying operating prafit excludes gains on oil price derivatives, charges under share based payments, and impairments.

IGas Energy ple Annual repart and accounts 2017
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Our purpose is to provide a secure squIy
of energy onshore in Britain both safely
and environmentally responsibly and in
collaboration with the communities

in which we operate.
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Sources and Uses of Gas
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Value Creation

Operating Responsibly

Our Marketplace
- ndustry wide momenturm and collaboration
in shale appraisal

Chief Executive’s Staterent
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Net assets

£181.6m

2017 £181.6m 2017
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Strong platform
created for
future growth



Strategic
Report

This section of the report addresses

our activity throughout the year, our

delivery against our strategic objectives

and our engagement with our stakeholders,

WWW.IGASPLC.COM
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including the local communities where

we operate.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR INVESTMENT PROPOSITION
SIGNIFICANT OPERATIONAL UPSIDE

Financial resilience ‘ Existing sites
- cash generative

Incremental production at low
marginal cost

Experienced UK operator 0O

of producing fields >.I 00 /

which is transferable o c
to Shﬂle Gppr0i50| Gnd 2P conventional reserves replacement of

developmem‘ over 100% in 2017

Significant value creation

opportunities across the ¢

business

Substantial expertise
and evaluation work
undertaken, leading

to opportunities from .
existing acreage High leverage to

oil price — existing
infrastructure with
near term upside

S Shale assets

C Convenuonal assels

Production assets {conventional)

Development assets (shale}

4 IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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Primary
recovery only

Upside identified through water
injection and infill drilling

wun
et
=
c Dual targets =
o
Number of existing producing fields where %
shale potential underlays producing horizon o
]
_'
Potential for development
Operating ¢ s 3
e -
capability c
%
Stable production o
28 fields Z
100 producing wells g
=z
Majority of fields 100% owned m
and operated
=
Significant carried work programme r,i:
Up to c.$240m with INEQS as at e
31 December 2017 3
. o[- Z
Significant Focus on high >

impact areas

market position
.. Significant acreage
. EX|ST| ng acros:;e:; gb;c;?rs‘ssai(lz'lri:\e UK
infrastructure e sl g et e
beneflfs perspective resources of 2.5 Tef
accelerated shale (casmmboe)
development >

S

iGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017 5



STRATEGIC REPORT

SOURCES AND USES OF GAS
AN INTEGRAL PART OF INFRASTRUCTURE

The growing importance of domestic energy supply

Where we use natural gas

Gas provides 84% of ocur homes with heat,
61% with the means to cook, up ta 50% of
our electncity and the employrment of over
half a million people in industries that turn
natural gas inte everyday products such

as computers, mobile phones, cosmetics,
medicines, fertilisers for food production
and even solar panels.

50%

of our gas is currently imported

Market demand

Annual usage for gas power generation
has been increasing as we reduce coal
dependency.

of UK primary energy was derived from

natural gas in 2016 . .
Electric vehicles

While renewable sources are increasingly

producing more of a share of our electncity,

gas still provides nearly half. All forecasts have
gas in the energy mix for decades to come.

Gas supports renewables Iin a number

of ways. Gas provides back-up power

for days when the wind dees not blow

and you can track this using Grnidwatch
www.gridwatch.templar.co.uk which gives
live iInformation on how we are generating
our electricity,

Read more on the marketplace on p14

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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Transport

Heating
and cooking

Food production
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
SAFE AND RESPONSIBLE PROGRESSION

ntroduction

This is my first Annual Report

as Chairman and | am pleased
that the Company is now both
financially stronger and af a very
exciting point in its operational
evolution. 2017 was a year of
significant change at IGas. A
major financial restructuring was
successtully completed and, as
part of that process, we attracted a
new strategic investor in Kerogen
Capital, who specidlise in the

oil and gas sector. Alongside

the refinancing, we changed

the composition of the Board,

and implemented cost savings,
particuiarly at head office, in order
to be well positioned for the future.

The second half of the year brought a more
stable and increasing ol price and momentum
not only acrass the different facets of our
business but across the wider UK onshare
industry. We are generating operating cash
flow and production levels are stable at 2,300
boepd. We have a committed carried work
programme of up to ¢.$240 millien with

our key partner INEOS, to develop our shale
asscts, and have commenced wark on a
number of projects within our conventional
production assets that we were able to
progress following the refinancing.

1Gas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

We are conscious of the significant
responsibility we have not just to our
shareholders and colleagues but
also to the communities in which
we operafe and the partners that

we work with.

As we start another year, | find myself
questioning how 1s the UK going to continue
to meet the significant national demand for
gas? Gas heats 8 out of 10 homes, produces
nearly half of our electricity and 1s used

as a vital feedstock by British industry. In
December 2017, three separate events caused
a European gas shortage and subsequent price
spike, with Middle Eastern and Russian LNG
suppliers assigning tankers to meet demand.

There may be plenty of gas that can be
imported from around the world but that
comes at a cost, not |ust a high financial one
but iImports have a higher carbon footprint
and we cannot control employment and
environmental policies and regulations in
other junsdictions. If we develop our own
home-grown supply, we can maximise both
the econemic and environmental
opportunities that come with it and

have more security of supply.

Qur businesses have been operatng enshore
in the UK for more than three decades and we
are conscious of the significant responsibility
we have not just to our shareholders and
colleagues, but to the communities In which
we operate and the partners with whom

we work. Much of our workforce live in and
around the communities where we operate
and understand what it means to be a
responsible neghbour. Our focus on heaith,
safety and the environment continues to be a
key priorty across the business,

Qur Community Fund is now n its tenth
year and we are proud of the work we have
done to support local communities across
our portfolo, investing almost £1 milhion in
numerous projects that are both meaningful
and sustainable to local residents. We will
continue making these important donations
whilst endeavouring to engender trust within
the communities m which we operate.

In June 2017, Francis Gugen, who had

been Chairman of the Company since it was
founded, retired from the Board. | would
like to thank Francis for his pivotal role

in establishing 1Gas as one of the leading
onshare ol and gas operators and we all wish
him well for the future. John Bryant, Semior
Independent Non-executive Director,

also retired from the Board in June 2017,
having served on the Board for nine years.
I'wouild like to thank John for bis significant
contribution to the Company.

Following the successful completion of the
refinancing i Apnit 2017, two directors from
Kerogen Capital, Philip Jackson and Tushar
Kumar, joned the Board as Non-cxecutive
Directors. In addition, Jehn Blaymires and
Julian Tedder resigned from the plc Board but
remain directors of the operating companies
and continue to fulfit their executive roles.

in partcular, | am grateful to the 1Gas
leadership team for thewr energy and
dedication in steering the business through
a comphcazed restructunng and successfui
capital raise.



I'want it to be recogrised how hard our
colleagues have worked during the past year
and thank them for their commitment and
resilence through challenging times and |
would also hke to thank our shareholders for
their continued support.

Outlook

The last couple of years have been challenging
both for iGas and the industry as a whole,

but with the appropriate steps having been
taken by the Company and the more stable
commodity price cutlock, 1Gas 15 now well

set for the next penod of its growth.

While we remain focused on mantaining

a solid operating performance, we have

also allocated some capital to deploy I
growth projects across our conventional
assets and will be focused on delivering
sanctioned projects. Mantaining the strength
of our conventional operating platform s a
fundamental part of the Company’s equity
story, underpinning the significant opportunity
our unconventional acreage prescnts.

Momentum is buliding across the business and
across the industry as we start to drill and flow
appraisal wells to assess commercial viability
of these shale resources. There is a significant
ievel of actrvity onshore UK, and over the next
year, the industry 1s expected to have over half
a dozen operators either driling or flowing
welis, including a number from I1Gas.

We look forward to the future with excitement
not only for 1Gas, but for the wider UK
onshore industry, as security of energy supply
and diversification of the UK energy mix
becomes ever more important.

AL

Mike McTighe
Non-executive Chairman

WWW IGASPLC COM

THIS YEAR'S REPORT
— KEY FEATURES

In the Strategic Report we provide
a description of the business, the Respect
environment in which we work, our strategy
and business model for creating value for all
our stakeholders, as well as a more detailed
review of our performance, analysis of our
results and a description of the risks to the
business and the KPIs against which we
benchmark our performance.

OUR VALUES

Performance

Collaboration

We live in increasingly volatile times and a
key responsibility for the Board is to review
risk on a continual basis. | am pleased to say
IGas has a comprehensive risk management
and planning process in place, details of
which can be found on pages 28 to 30.

Commitment

Transparency

In the Corporate Governance section

we provide detail on our corporate
responsibility activities, some of the topics
and activities discussed by the Board, the
statutory Directors’ Report and Directors’
Remuneration Report together with
information on the key Board committees.

We consider the report to be fair, balanced
and comprehensible. It is a reflection of
how we operate as a business and how we
collectively serve our stakeholders.

Read our Corporate Governance Report on
pages 41 to 44

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

VALUE CREATION

BUILDING A RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

Qur strategy is to build a long-term material

onshore energy company in Britain in

colfaboration with the communities in which

we operate and deliver value for all our
stokeholders.

Qur strategy remains clear and focused and we intend
to deliver sustainable growth by focusing on exploiting
our existing reserves, commercialising and developing
our shale assets and converting resources into
reserves.

The adoption of cost effective technology to unlock
value in our assets remains a key part of this.

Strategy at the core
of our business

Reserves and
production growth

Developing shale
portfolio

Local and national
engagement

VALUE CREATION

CONTINUOUS
ASSESSMENT

OUR RESOURCES

AND RELATIONSHIPS

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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ADVANTAGE



OUR RESOURCES
AND RELATIONSHIPS

CONTINUOUS
ASSESSMENT

MAINTAINING
COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE

VALUE CREATION

WWWIGASPLC.COM

Our community

We build relationships with our stakeholders
in the communities we operate In.

Read more on page 32

Our people

We canstantly strive to develop our
employees and their knowledge and skills,
Read more on page 37

Risks and uncertainties

We constantly assess the risks facing our
business and develop mitigation strategies.
Read more on page 28

Key performance indicators
The success of our operations is measured
against KPIs.

Read more on page 26

Disciplined asset portfolio
management

Optimisation of assets

Integrated management tools
and financial management

Operating capability

Turning opportunities into value

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OPERATING RESPONSIBLY
THE REGULATORY ROUTE TO DEVELOPMENT

Before any operation can

begin, we must complete

rigorous health and -I
safety, environmental

and planning permission

2

3

processes.
PEDL issued Landowner Environmental
Financial and operational consent risk assessed
competency assessed.

Operator secures landowner Environment Agency assesses

Petrateum Exploration and consent for actiity. risk to water, air quality and how
Development Licence (“PEDL”) waste will be managed.
issued by the il & Gas Authority.

|Gas

stakeholder

engagement

process

Discussions with the community.

There are numerous standards
and guidelines that we have to
conform to, irrespective of the type
of well drilled, and we are subject
to regular inspections {scheduled
and unannounced) fo ensure we
are atways fully compliant.

We operate in many sensitive
areas and we are committed to
preserving our fandscapes and
work closely with planning and
all other statutory authorities
and local people to minimise
the environmental impact of
our operations.

Environmental monitoring is a key
activity that we undertake before,
during and after operational
activity.

IGas Energy plc Anaual repart and acceunts 2017

Communmity presentations,

Dialogue and infermation.

exhibitions and engagement.

WHO REGULATES THE UK
ONSHORE OIL AND GAS INDUSTRY?

Health and Safety Executive
(“HSE”)

Department for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy
(*“BEIS”) and the Oil & Gas
Authority {(“OGA™)

Mineral Planning Authority
("MPA”)

Environment Agency
(“E Au)

Scottish Environment
Protection Agency
(“SEPA™)



Environment Planning Final regulatory
Agency grants permission checks and
perm”S Planning permission from local consents

authorities who seek views from

the local community and statutory

consultees.

Community benefits.

are In place

Final checks to ensure controls

WWW.IGASPLC.COM

Operations begin

Once all these nigorous safety
checks have been completed

and permits secured - actvity
can begin

Continued throughout lifecycle

Community engagement
Read mare about our engagement with local communities

below and on page 32

Progress updates.

Health and Safety

Read more about our ISO accreditation on page 3%

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

It is imperative that we are a good
neighbour, recognising our responsibility to
work in partnership with the communities
in which we operate. it is important that
we communicate effectively with local
communities, particularly when we are
planning new deveiopments. We have set up
various ways of communicating with local
stakeholders based on the specific needs
of each community. Some examples of our
engagement work in 2017 are as follows:

Springs Road and Tinker Lane

During the year we continued to hold
regular Community Liaison Group ("CLG™)
meetings for both these sites. We regularly
facilitate “guest” presenters to cover

areas such as planning and environmental
monitering. We also held a village meeting
for the residents of Misson to ask questions
of the project team.

As we move to the construction and drilling
phases we will keep the local community
appraised through these regular CLG
meetings, our community website
www.igas-engage.co.uk and through
newsletters.

Ellesmere Port

Pre-application consultation was undertaken
with the MPA, ahead of the submission
of the planning application. IGas visited
and/or informed in writing all local
businesses of the plans for the Ellesmere
Port Wellsite. We also consuited and
informed local councillors and the MP of
the plans for the Ellesmere Port Wellsite.
We distributed leaflets to the local
community in July 2017 and we held a
public exhibition in August 2017.

Ince Marshes

During the pre-application phase we have so
far held a consultation event, met with local
parish councils, written to 1,727 residents
within a kilometre radius of the proposed
site and undertaken a leaflet drop and
“doar knock” for local residents. We have
also met with local business groups and
other existing community forums.

We will be holding further events during the
planning application process.

Further details on all our projects can be
found at www.igas-engage.co.uk

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR MARKETPLACE
A CHANGING MARKET

The UK gets most of its energy today
from oil, gas and nuclear with coal
being phased out as the UK seeks
to lower greenhouse gas emissions.

2% 1% 2% 2%
6%
13%
7%
36%
38%
8%
17%
38%
30%
UK primary energy UK primary energy
demand 2016’ demand 2035
Oil Natural Coal Bioenergy ol Natural Coal Renewables
Gas & Waste Gas & Waste
Nuclear Wwind, Cther Nuclear Cther
Solar &
Hydro
Oil & gas accounts for 76% of the UK’s UK industry pays 33% more than the rest of  Global oil and gas demand is forecast to rise
energy mix’ Europe for electricity’ between now and 20352

! Source: University College Lonrdon.
¢ Source: BEIS,

14 1Gas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017



Overview

During the first part of the year the ol market
remained volatile, challenged by fugh stocks
and sluggish prices. in the second half of the
year, OPEC extended its production cuts and
adhered to them and rig counts in the US
remained at relatively low levels, against the
backdrop of increasing global growth and
therefore demand

2018 has started buoyantly with cil prices
above $60/bbl, a marked shift from the lows of
the mud $20/bbl in early 2016, Whether this oll
price run can be sustained, let alone extended,
15 difficult to predict but the off economists
point to more fundamental reasons, on both
the supply and demand side, to think that ol
prices, at least around $60/bb, are sustanable.

The gas market 1s becorming more global,
particularly given the increasing supply of
LNG. Underlying gas demand has continued
during 2017, with market prices dominated
by continued low-cost supply growth from a
number of regions, such as the US, causing
global pricing te remain relatively low for

the first half of the year. UK pricing does not
always follow this dynamic and as we went into
the UK winter, we saw natural gas pricing with
the UK NBP moving up to araund $7-8/mcf,
more than double the price in the US.

UK Energy

The most recent statistics published from
2016 show that ol and gas provided 76%

of the UK’s primary energy with 38% alone
derived from natural gas, a 50% increase since
1930. There was a switch In the main sources
of electricity generation away from coal to

gas generation. Generation from coal fell by
60% 1n 2016, as a number of plants closed or
switched to burning biomass; gas rose by 46%.
Renewables” share of electricity generation was
stable at 25% 1 2016, the same as in 2015.

As a result of gas replacing coal, UK carbon
emissions fell by 7% m 2016. On a global basis
this 1s an area that must be addressed, with
some developing economies still utilising coal
as a key power provider.

scrce BElS, Provrinal Greenmons [oreegens 14

v EOW LFOvErt e nTistar

Sewrce Gilard Gas Autronty, JRLE ol and gas proauzton and dsmand) projecns
: data cerfre dara crwnloads ard puohs

=0 LEROr y 0O

In the UK, gas has played an important role in
reducing emissions from electricity generation.
Since 1990, emissions from power stations
have fallen by 62%, a saving of 125 million
tonnes of CO. a year.

whilst indigenous aif and gas will continue
to provide an important part of the energy
mix there are finite reserves in the North Sea.
Currently ¢.50% of our gas 1s imported and
that 1s set to rise to nearly 80% n the next
17 years.”

In May 2017, the Conservative Government
renewed its pledge to support UK shale
development, signaling its desire to make
domestic energy security a priority. This
comes after warnings that unless we begin
developing and using our own onshore
resources, n 20 years the UK will be importing
over 75% of our gas, costing the equivalent of
over £300 per household®. It was less than two
decades ago that the UK was a net exporter of
energy. Based on research by UKOOG”, with
400 shale pads across the UK {(amounting to
0.2% or less of the rotal land area) we could
reduce our import dependency by at least
50% by 2035.

Inits Clean Growth Strategy, published in
Qctober 2017, the Government re-affirmoed
the importance of natural gas for heating.

By replacing LNG imports with natural gas
produced onshore, we can help to reduce
the UK’s carbon footprint and provide a
cost-effective source of energy and feedstock
for our homes, businesses and industry.

In November 2017, the Government published
a White Paper: Industnal Strategy building

a Britain fit for the future. It states that

the emerging shale gas industry ‘offers the
prospect of creating jobs, enhancing the
competitiveness of downstream sectors and
building up supply chains’, lending further
support to the future development of

the industry.

>earond uk greenhcuse £as emsliars ranonal statsncs 2074

mon-crojectonst 20 1 milon nouseho ds e the Uk
mihesbullete s famnzeg
eaury_ot_the bn-wh_Colntrysde pdr

~oLyenlds 0150

WWW.IGASPLC.COM

As we look to the future, the world s moving
to the electrification of transport with many
European countres including the UK having
announced plans to ban the sale of new
diesel and petrol cars in the future. The extra
electricity needed in the UK alone will be the
eguivalent of almost 10 times the total power
output of the new Hinkley Point C nuclear
power station being bullt. Recent research
published" stares that without investment
nuclear capacity wll be 35% below current
levels by 2040. The answer is that all arcas
will need to contribute towards our energy
make up, specifically with regards to electricity
generation, and UK shale could potentially
make significant contributions.

The UK will need to ensure its energy supply
is secure, affordable and as low carbon as 15
econemically possible and our indigenous
onshore resources potentially have a key
contribution to make.

Climate change and energy mix

Climate change and therefore future energy
and power mix 1s an area of focus for many, as
demonstrated by COP21. As energy markets
become more global, this will continue to
make front page headlines in how we all
contribute to reducing emissions and moving
towards the 2-degree target.

What 15 self-evident 1s that transporting fuels 1s
mefhcient and therefore worse for the global
envircnment. In addinion, we absciutely need
gas as part of the energy mix and this will not
change for decades to come.

In terms of efficiencies, shipping gas across
oceans and continents in the form of LNG
requires cnergy in itself. The gas produced
in Qatar must be super-cooled, then loaded,
brought thousands of miles to the UK then
unloaded and regassified, a process that
uses a significant amount cf energy. In turn,
importing this gas rather than producing it
here in the UK means 10% higher lifecycle
emissions for that supply, which has big
implications for our environment, particularly
as we take gas from nations with lower
regulatory standards than our own.

IGas Energy plc Annual repert and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR MARKETPLACE CONTINUED
INDUSTRY WIDE MOMENTUM AND COLLABORATION
IN SHALE APPRAISAL

A

1Gas lcences
Other rs

BGS 2 Prospectiv
1G: -operated

Manchester

Liverpooi
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CUADRILLA — LANCASHIRE

Preston New Road

Cuadrilla has completed drilling a vertical
pilot well to a depth of over 2.7km through
both the Upper and Lower Bowland shale
rock intervals at Preston New Road,
Lancashire.

The company has recovered some 375 feet
of core samples and early analysis of this
data suggests excellent rock quality for
hydraulic fracturing and a high natural gas
content in several zones within the shale.

IGAS ENERGY — NORTH
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

Springs Road and Tinker Lane
Permission to drill three wells in total across
two sites.

Construction is aimost complete at both
sites. These wells being drilled in 2018 will
form the foundation of wider development
in the East Midlands with the mid-term
focus moving to a pilot development

in the Gainsborough Trough.

Cuadrilla is currently drilling two
horizontal wells and once completed
hydraulic fracturing of both wiil follow.
Cuadrilla plans to test the flow rate of
natural gas from the horizontal wells for
approximately six months after this,

INEOS SHALE — DERBYSHIRE, SOUTH
YORKSHIRE AND NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

INEOS has completed a 3D seismic survey
as part of their plans to develop the nation’s
shale gas resources across a 250km? area

of the East Midlands.

During 2017, INEOS acquired Total’s entire
40% interest in PEDLs 139 & 140, and a 30%
interest in PEDLs 273, 305 & 316 and the
entire UK onshore Petroleum Exploration
ang Development Licence interests of
ENGIE E&P UK Limited.

INEOS has three applications for
appraisal wells in the planning system.

THIRD ENERGY — YORKSHIRE

Kirby Misperton

Third Energy has planning permission to
hydraulically fracture its existing KM-8
well. The Secretary of State for Business,
Enterprise and Industrial Strategy (“BEIS™)
has confirmed that Third Energy has met
all of the 13 technical requirements set out
in section 4A of the Petroleum Act 1998.

Before granting final consent to hydraulically

fracture the KM-8 well, the Qil & Gas
Authority, working with the Infrastructure
and Projects Authority, will undertake a
financial resilience review.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

140d3d 21931vHLs

FONYNHIACD ILva0dd0D

SINIWILY_S TVIINYNIS



STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
POSITIVE MOMENTUM

We ended 2017 in a stronger
financial position having

carried out a successful capital
restructuring earlier in the year
against a backdrop of continued
commodity price volatility. Now.,
with capital available to deploy,
we are taking further steps to
improve operating and production
efficiency that will underpin our
conventional production through
2018 and beyond.

The midpoint of the year saw the start of the
current oll price run. A convergence of supply
constraints and demand strength are factors
contributing to continuad ol price strength
and creating foundations to sustam that
relative strength in 2018.

Over the past few years we have driven
aperating costs down to approximately $28/
boe. With ol prices now above $60/hbl, we
are reviewing further various initiatives tc grow
our production from our existing producing
sites across the country.

The UK is heavily relant on gas, being the
second largest consumer of gas in the EU after
Germany Latest data avallable from 2016
shows 40% of UK primary energy was derived
from natural gas, representing a 50% increasc
since 1990. Currently ¢ 50% of our gas 1s
impoerted and that is set to rise to nearly 80%
in the next 17 years.
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The expectation of ongoing free
operating cash flow provides us with
a solid platform and financial flexibility
to execute our growth plans.

We have the opportunity to be a potentially
important contributor to changing the future
dynamics of the UK’s supply of gas, reducing
our growing reliance on imports while meeting
our nabional demand for gas, bringing direct
locai investment, and also benefits to our
wider environment and economy

Read more about our marketplace on page 14

Strengthening the Balance Sheet

In Aprii 2017, shareholders approved the
terms of a fundamental capital restructuring
of the Group, concluding a long process that
commenced in early 2076. This complex
restructure involved new equity of $57
millon being raised, a number of secured
and unsecured bonds exchanged for equity, a
number bought back and the remaining bond
terms amended. This resulted in net debt
being reduced from ¢.$120 million to under
$10 millon on completion.

The transaction has significantly improved
our financial position and we are generating
operating cash for reinvestment back in

the business at the current oIl price of

over $60/bbl.

We have created a more robust and stable
financial platform for the future development
of the Group with senior management now
focused on delivering operationally as well

as strategically.

Operational performance

Group production averaged 2,335 boepd for
the year as our production crews worked hard
getting wells back onhine that had required
maintenance.

We continue to identify and evaluate
opportunities across our conventional assets.
We see value creation in turning maturing field
dechine into production growth and whilst

the past couple of years has seen Ittle capital
investment given the challenging ol price
backdrop and focus on cash preservation,

we are now spending more time looking at
exploration and apprassal opportunities within
these existing assets.

Ve have approved scme incremental projects
including the Albury and Gainsborough gas
projects, pump enhancement and waterflocd
activity at Welton and plant and maintenance
projects, We expect to sec the benefits of
these projects during the latter part of 2018.

We have also identified, and are locking to
accelerate, a number of other projects with
attractive returns. Detailed technical and
economic evaluations are progressing to
advance these oppertunities which will further
underpin our conventional portfolio.

IGas 15 now approaching a perod of increased
operational activity across Its acreage.

Having recewved formal planming approval for
three wells In North Nottinghamshire, site
construction continues at our Tinker Lane and
Springs Road sites. We anticipate that we will
spud the first well mid-2018



In the North West, in July 2017, we submitted
a planning apphication to test the Pentre
Chert formation at our existing site at
Ellesmere Port. The planning officer made
arecommendation for approval but the
planning committee refused consent.

It is our intention to appeal this decision,

At Ince Marshes, we continue to progress
our planning apphcation to drill a new well
and hydraulically fracture at this existing site.
Subject to surveys and monitoring we expect
to submit the application mid-2018.

Momentum in UK onshore activity

2018 will be a defining year for the onshore

oil and gas industry. There is a significant

level of actmity onshore UK, and over the

next 12 months, the industry is expected to
have a number of operators ether drilling

or Bowing wells. The industry has made the
first payments under its ccmmunity benefis
scheme, prepared to begin drilling herizentally
into shale rock for the first time i Lancashire
and submitted a final stage application for high
volume hydraulic fracturing in North Yorkshire,

Cuadrilla has announced that early results
from 1ts vertical wells in Lancashire were very
encouraging and they are confident that there
I a very sizeable quantity of natural gas in the
Bowland Shale. The coming months should
see important data in terms of flow rates that
will help the industry better understand the
geology in the key basins.

IGas in the community

It 1s hugely impeortant to us that the locat
communities where we operate benefit from
our presence both economically and socially.

This means not only via investments from our
own community fund, which has distributed
almost £1 milhon to communities in which

we operate, but also providing jobs, working
closely with the local supply chain and funding
apprentices.

As many of our existing production sites will
still operate for years to come and as new sites
are brought into production we want to make
sure that we make a positive difference to the
local community.

Read more about how the 1Gas Community
Fund has supported local projects over the
last decade on page 32.

People

2017 was another challenging year for the
business, balancing the restructuring process
with maintaning production and pursuing our
shale development programme.

We continue to operate in an ever-changing
and comphcated industry where the challenges
are numerous and the pace and pressure to
delver constant. What | appreciate 15 just

how much each of our pecple cares, how
dedicated they are to making this work and

the personal sacrifices made to ensure the
continued success of the business.

Qutlook

The expectation of ongoing free operating
cash flow provides us with a solid platform and
financial flexibility to execute our growth plans.

Whilst we are optimistic about our pfans

and the opportunities before us, we are also
cautious about the macro envirenment and
will continue to maintain financial discipiine
across the business whilst bringing projects
torward that have attractive returns at current
oll prices.

There will be a number of wells drilled this
year, some with hydraulic fracturing. Once
we have proven to our focal communities
that we can conduct this highly regulated and
proven process in a safe and accountable way
we hope that those undecided and unsure of
the process will come to accept 1t for what
115, and has been for the last five decades:

a standard oilfield operation that will help
support the UK's enerpy independence,
economy and environment.

Stephen Bowler
Chief Executive Officer

WWW.IGASPLC.COM

ALBURY PROJECT:
MONETISING
STRANDED GAS

The Albury field in Surrey was originally
developed for power generation. It
produced for a number of years before
being shut down in 2009 to drill a
second well to appraise the gas storage
capability of the Purbeck Sandstone.

The results of an extended well-test
in 2011 together with the historical
production data and modelling gave
sufficient confidence to conclude that
commercial volumes of gas were in
place.

We have been working on a cost
effective solution to monetise the

gas and we are now in the process of
securing consent for the production

of the gas, its export by underground
pipeline to the main gas grid and the
production of electricity. The power
generation scheme is achieved through
the installation of a gas engine package
and utilisation of the existing electrical
network for electricity export.

Since 2010 the gas transmission
business has been increasingly
deregulated so as to enable the injection
of small quantities of bio-methane into
the grid in the form of CNG or low
pressure gas. In addition small scale
gas processing/conditioning equipment
has been developed to a level where
compliant systems are both reliable
and economical to operate. These
developments have allowed the “gas-
to-grid” option to be considered as a
viable, economical solution for Albury
Gas Monetisation

iGas Energy pic Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
SECURE PRODUCTION

Production

During 2017, the production
division continued to deliver cost
and production efficiencies through
extending and embedding many
of the initiatives that had been
introduced in previous years.
Throughout the year we conducted
a significant programme of well
and facility maintenance which has
resulted in the return to production
of several shut-in wells. All of this
activity resulted in average net
production for the year of 2,335
boepd with operating costs

of .$28/bbl.

Qur operations are based largely within
mature fields with aged assets and 25 a
consequence we believe that realising high
production efficiency will be a fundamental
component of achieving our operating cost
goals going forward. As the fields have along
operating history and we have significant

local operating knowledge we have been

able to take advantage of both to conduct a
systematic review of each of our wells in order
to ascertan any performance or reliability
tssues. This exercise coupled with the live data
that we now have from cur downhole gauges
and Rod Pump Off Controllers (part of our
Digital Oilficld initiative) has meant that we are
better able ro execute predictive techniques
with our wells. For example, in order 1o

avord rod breaks or te ensure that following

a rod break we have an enhanced repair
programme “on the shelf” to quickly return

iGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

The adoption of cost effective technology
to unlock value in our assets remains a
key part of our overall strategy.

the well to production. This approach has
delivered a 70% reduction in rod failures since
its introduction and has created the capacity
to allow our rodding nig to focus more on
proactive activities and opportunities.

The deployment of our Digital Qilfield concept
also continues as we see this being an enabler
for real-time, swifter and better informed
decision making, with increased employee
engagement and productivity alf combining

to assist in driving down our future

operating costs.

Early in the year a facus on developing near
term projects and idenofying optirmisation
opportunities continued, with key activities
being progressed to ensure that we were well
positioned to take them forward following
the Company refinancing and an improved

oll price environment. Post the restructuring,
several of our opbmisation projects were
sanctioned including the mobilisation of a
cailed tubing unit for work on three separate
wells, two of which have increased therr
production rates by over 100% and the third
brought back online after being shut-in due to
loss of productivity. These works combmed
with an intensive workover campargn that
included deployment of wax mitigation
technologies, pump optimisations and well
conversions have effectively offset the annual
dechine with cur production rates exting the
year almost 5% higher than at the start

We approved the trial of beam pump gas
compressors at two of our ficlds in order
to reduce back pressure on several of our
wells. These units are due for installation
in mid-2018. If successful they wall improve

the indwidual well productivty and provide
additional gas for our power generation
schemes, as well as opening up the potentizk
for further roll out across several other sites

in the portfolio. Other mnovations include the
installation of a micro turbine package to tnal
the potential to utilise annulus gas for small
scale local power generation, whilst also taking
back pressure off the well, this 15 also due for
commussioning N mid-2018.

Progress also continues with our water
Injection initiatives In both the Weald and the
East Midlands. We have recently approved a
new scheme at cur Welton field that, following
the conversion of an existing well and the
installation of injection facilities, envisages

the return to production of two wells that are
currently shut-in with the added benefit of de-
risking the current production from the field.

Another project, at our Stockbridge fieid,

is also underway where we have developed

a package of works across five wells to
debottleneck the water management
constraints at the field whilst also returning
existing wells to production. The programme
includes the side-track of a previously
abandoned water injection well, the
stimulation of a well with tow productvity,
two workovers and the reinstatement of a well
shut-in for water management to be returned
to preduction. These activities will not only
de-risk the existing production but add up to
30% of incremental production from the field.



The monetisation of our stranded gas assets
advanced throughout 2017, most nctably

at our Albury site. For several years the gas
transmission business has been iIncCreasingly
deregulated as it has had to adapt to enable
the injection of small quantities of biomethane
INto the network. Typically this takes the form
of CNG or low pressure gas; however, this

has also created the opportunity for direct
gas to grid solutions to be accepted for

entry and following discussions with the local
gas distnibution netwark operator we have
unlocked this as an alternatve development
solution to the criginally planned CNG option
This new choice adds significant value to this
development and has clear synergies for other
stranded gas appiications within our portfolic.

Capital expenditure across these projects
amounted to ¢.£4.0 million during the year.
Going forward, we expect £ £5.0 million of
incremental capital expenditure per annum will
result in production levels of ¢.2,500 boepd in
the medium term.

IGas net reserves and resources (MMboe)
We have had over 100% reserves replacement
with 2P reserves standing at 13.64 Miboe as
ar 31 December 2017,

The Group's estimates of proved and proved
plus probable reserves are taken from year-end
internal cstimates as of 31 Decemnber 2017.
Proved reserves are estimated reserves that
geological and engineering data demonstrate
with reasonable certainty to be recoverable

in future years under existing econcmic and
operating conditions. The probable reserves
are estimated additional reserves determined
to be maore likely than not to be recoverable
with some planned future capital investments.

As these are mature fields, their histarical
performances have rehable declines in
producing-rate trends and the proved reserves
have been estimated by the application of
appropriate decline curves only to the limits of
economic production Probable undeveloped
reserves were estimated for some incrementat
projects by using analogy type-well data of
nearby wells completed in the same reservarrs.
These incremental projects are based mainly
on reinstatement of some offline wells to
access shut-n andfor betind-pipe reserves by
workovers, reccompletions and sidetracks.

IGAS ASSETS

East Midlands

Our East Midlands acreage stretches
from the East Midlands Sheif to

the Gainsborough Trough and the
Widmerpool Gulf.

Area under licence

1,886 km?

Number of fields

16

Southern England

Located in the Weald Basin. 50% of ocur
current production is generated from
the Weald Basin,

Area under licence

641 km?

Number of fields

1

Scotland

Qur licences in Scotland are located in
the Inner Moray Firth, Solway Basin and
West Fife.

Area under licence

62 km?

Number of fields

1

WWW.IGASPLC.COM
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OPERATIONAL REVIEW continued

There has been 2 reserves replacement of
over 100% based on a cumulative production
of 0.82 MMbgce In the year. The reserves
growth I1s due largely to a combination of
planned future investments in non-producing
and undeveloped reserves, and better
reservolr management. The developed
producing 2P reserves represent about 90%
of the total 2P reserves.

Net reserves
and resources

(MMboe) 1P 2p 2C
As at

31 Dec 2016' 9.02 13.37 2184
As at

31 Dec 20177 811 1364 2221

Development/Appraisal Assets

During 2017, good progress was made with
develcping our East Midlands and North West
shale acreage.

East Midlands

In the East Midlands we signed Section

106 legal agreements in May 2017 for the
exploratory well sites at both Springs Road
and Tinker Lane with Nottinghamshire County
Councll ("NCC"), in effect the legal agreement
for the planning consent. Construction
commenced at both sites in late 2017 and is
largely comptete at Springs Road, with good
progress being made at Tinker Lang.

The wells will be drilled during 2018 and will
form the foundation of a wider development
in the East Midlands with the mid-term
focus moving te a pilot development in the
Gainsborough Trough, leveraging on cur
existing, long standing operations in the

East Midlands.

North West

In the North West, we submitted a planning
application atr our existing site at Ellesmere
Port in July 2017. Evaluation of wire-line
logs acquired across the various formations
encountered during the dnlling of the well
in 2014 indicated hydrocarbons being
present in the Pentre Chert Formation.

The Pentre Chert Formation s a naturally
fractured reservorr rock composed of
interbedded layers of cherts and cherty
mudstones, with subordinate thin layers
of siltstones, limestones and sandstones.

DA ssbarates & 3t 30 sune 206 adwisled for s month orodust on
s astmeras curmirar we srodecion dueng the perod 3 89 M hoe
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The proposed project includes carrying out
further tests on the Pentre Chert, including a
Drill Stem Test (“DST™), to provide an imitial
analysis of the hydrocarbon composition
and its flow charactenstics within the
formation. The initial information obtained
during the DST will be used to determine
whether commercially viable quantities of
hydrocarbons exist and if successful we will
then carry out an Extended Weil Test to better
understand the production performance and
assaciated volumes,

Environmental permits were 1ssued by the
Environment Agency In November 2017 and
on 17 January 2018, the Planning Officer at
Cheshire West and Chester Council made

a recommendation for the approval of our
application. At the planning committee
meeting on 25 January 2018, the committee
voted to refuse the application. It 1s our
intenticn to appeal this decision.

Separately, a scoping report was submitted
to Cheshire West and Chester Council in
October 2017 which sought the Councils’
views on a future application to drill a new
well at our existing Ince Marshes well site. The
proposed development would be for one new
well, initially to be dnilled vertically and then
horizontally. We also intend to hydraulically
fracture and flow test the target formation,
to assess the flow potential of the well.

A planning apphcation will be madce in

the first half of 2018

Further planning applications to drill,
hydraulically fracture and flow test new wells
will be made 1n 2018, with a view to utilising
the 3D seismic data acquired in 2015 and
accelerating development in this basin

S5t . Bagminrs,

John Blaymires
Chief Operations Officer

MUY ] 1)



FINANCIAL REVIEW

MAKING SOUND FINANCIAL PROGRESS

During the first half of the year the
Company concluded a successful
capital restructuring, significantly
reducing debt and giving the
Company an improved capital
structure which is sustainable in the
current oil price environment, The
restructuring proposal was formaily
approved by all stakeholders in
April 2017 and resulted in the

issue of new equity for $57 million,
secured bonds of $40 million being
exchanged for equity at par, $49.2
million of secured bonds being
bought by the Company at par,
$27.4 million unsecured bonds
being exchanged for equity at

60 cents in the dollar and the
remaining $30 million of secured

bonds having their terms amended.

Cn completion, net debt was
reduced from ¢.$120 million
(£100 million} fo under

$10 million (£7 million).

WWW.IGASPLC COM

Following the completion of the
capital restructuring in April 2017,
the Company is well positioned
to pursue its growth strategy.

Results for the year
Ol prices remained volatile during the year
driven by concerns over high inventories and

over supply. In the second half, OPEC extended

its production cuts and rig counts in the
US remained at relatively low levels, against

the backdrop of increasing global growth,

providing support for ol prices. The price of
Brent crude averaged $54.2/bbl (2016: $44/
bbl) for the year, which had a positive iImpact

on our revenues. Sterling strengthened against
the US dollar and the exchange rate increased
from £1:$1.26 at the beginning of the year to
£1:$1.35 in December 2017, having a negative

impact on our US dolar revenue but a positive
impact on US dollar denominated debt

For the year ended 31 December 2017 adjusted
EBITDA was £2.24 millon {2016 £10.2
millon} whilst a profit was recognised from
continuing activities after tax of £15.9 million
(2016: loss £31.8 milion). The main factors
driving the movements between the years were
as follows:

e Revenues increased to £35.8 milhon (2016:
£30.5 milhon) principally due to higher
oll prices. This was moderated shghtly by
a stronger average sterling ta US dollar
exchange rate and shightly lower ol volumes
for the year;

e Other costs of sales increased to £21.4
millicn (2016: £20.2 millon) mainly due to
additional workovers and higher inspection
and re-permitting costs,

& Administrative expenses decreased by £5.0
millon to £6.4 milion (2016: £11.4 million).
Legal and professional costs were £2.6
million lower 1in 2017 as 2016 included costs
relating to the proposed refinancing whereas
similar costs 1n 2077 were offset against
the gain on restructuring once completed.
Share-based payment charges were £1.5
million lower in 2017 as prior year schemes
became fully vested by the end of 2016, A
cost reduction exercise alse contnbuted to
the reduction In administrative expenses;

» Redundancy costs were £0.2 million (2016:
£0.6 millon) as the redundancy programme
was completed primarily n 2016;

e The £0.71 million exploration write-off related
to costs on relinquished licences (2016:
£4.5 millon);

s Other income decreased to £0.2 million
(20716: £0.7 million}; and

* Atax credit of £19.1 million was recognised
manly due to the recognition of a deferred
tax asset relating to ring-fence tax losses
(2076: a tax credit of £13.0 mithon due to
the reversal of temporary tming differences
and a reduction in the supplementary
corparation tax rate from 20% to 109 from
1 January 2016).

Income statement

The Group recognised revenues of £35.8

miflion in the year {2016 £30.5 milion}

Group production in the year averaged 2,335

boepd (2016: 2,355 boepd) . Revenues for
the year included £3.0 milhon (371 Decernber
2016: £3.3 millon) relating to the sale of
third party oil, the bulk of which is processed
through our gathering centre at Holybourne
In the Weald Basin.

IGas Energy pic Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

The average pre hedge realised price for the
year was $51.0/bbl (2016: $44.1/bbl) and
post hedge $57.3/bbl {20716: $58.1/bbI).

£0.2 milhion was realised on hedges during

the year with average Brent oil prices generally
trading within the monthly hedged collars
(2016 realised gains of £8.5 million). The
average GBP/USD exchange rate for the year
was £1: $1.29 (2016: £1: $1.37) which
negatively impacted revenue for the year.

Cost of sales for the year were £29.3 milhon
(2016: £27.2 million) including depreciation,
depletion and amortisation (DD&AY of

£7.8 million (2016: £6.3 milion), and
operating costs of £21.4 milion (2016:

£20.9 million} Operating costs include a cost
of £2. 8 million (2076: £2.7 million) relating to
third party oil. The contnbuticn received from
processing this third party ol was £0.2 milion
(20716: £0.6 mullion).

Operating costs per barrel of ol equivalent
(boe) were £21.9 ($28.2), excluding third
party costs (2016: £21.1 ($28.8) per boe)
Operating costs per boe were higher in

2017 due te additional workovers and higher
inspection and re-permitting costs.

Adjusted EBITDA in the year was £9.2 milhan
(2016: £10.2 milllon). Gross profit for the
year was £6.5 million (2016: £3.3 million}).
Administrative costs decreased by £5.0
million to £6.4 million (2016: £11.4 mulion)
principally due to lower legal and professional
costs, lower share-based payment charges
due to options relating to prior year schermes
becoming fully vested and a general cost
reduction exercise.

Exploration costs written off of £0.1 milion
refated to costs on relinguished hcences
(2016: £4.5 million relating to relinquishment
of licences during the year).

Other income was £0.2 million (2016

£0.7 mithon which included a £0.4 million
adjustrment on the contingent deferred
consideration in relation to an amount payable
to a joint venture partner).

Net finance costs were £6.2 rmillion for the
year {2016: £28.8 million), which primarily
related to interest on borrowings of £5.4
million (2016: £11.9 mithon) and, a net foreign
exchange gain of £0.2 milhien, principally on $
denominated debt, and bank balances (2016.
loss £14 8 millien). 2016 alsoincluded a £1.5
million toss on the sale of bonds. The Group
realised a net gain on restructuning of £4.9
million (2016: nil).

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

The Group made a loss en oil price dervatives
of £2.1 millon for the year due to the increase
in underlying prices (2016, loss £3.5 million).

Cash flow

Net cash generated from operating activities
for the year was £6.7 million (2016: £12.4
million). The decrease was prmarlly due to
higher revenue and a decrease in administrative
expenses offset by lower realised hedges and
the timing of payments. The Group invested
£6.3 millon across its asset base during the
year (2016: £8.8 mithon), of which £3 7
million was invested in the conventional assets,
where investments continue to maintain our
production at current levels, and £2.6 million in
unconventional assets in relation to our shale
development programme.

IGas carried out a capital restructuring during
the year resulting in a cash inflow of £46.8
million from the issue of shares and cash
outflows of £39.3 million and £4.3 million,
respectively, from the repayment of secured
bonds and payment of fees. (Gas also repaid
£3.6 millien {$4.6 milion) of principal on
borrowings to bondholders during the year in
accordance with the terms of the bonds and
purchased bonds with a face value of £1.8
million ($2.2 millon) (2016: repaid £4.9
milhon {($7.1 milion) and sald bonds with a
face value of $8.0 milhon for $6.0 million)
Future annual interest costs have decreased to
approxmately 2.3 million following the capital
restructuring

IGas paid £5.9 millien ($7.3 milbon) in interest
(2016: £11.6 million ($15.5 mullion) ).

Cash and cash equivaients were £15 7 million
at the end of the year {2016: £24.9 milhon).

Balance sheet

Net assets were £181.6 milion at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: £70.5 milion) with
the increase of £111.1 million ansing primarily
from the results of the capital restructuring and
an income tax credit

Borrowings decreased from £124.6 million to
£21.2 million following the successful capital
restructuring during the year,

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s dervative
instruments had a net negative farr value

of £2 8 millon due to an increase in the
underlying Brent forward curve (31 Decernber
2016: net negative farr value of £0 $ million)

Net debt at the year end, being the nominal
value of borrowings less cash, was £6.2 million
(31 December 2016: £99.7 million).

Shareholders’ equity increased by £1171.1
milkon to £181.6 millon primarily as a result of
the gain after tax and the capital restructuning
{see note 25).

Going concern

The strength of the Group’s balance sheet

was improved significantly by the capital
restructuring which was completed in April
2017, The Group continues to closely monitor
and manage its liquidity risks. Cash forecasts
for the Group are regularly preduced based
on, inter aha, the Group’s production and
expenditure forecasts, management’s best
estimate of future oll prices (based on current
forward curves, adjusted for the Group’s
hedging programme) and the Group’s
borrowings. Sensitivities are run to reflect
different scenanos including, but not imited
1o, possible further reductions in commodity
prices below the current forward curve,
reductions in forecast ol and gas production
rates and changes in the $ to GBE exchange
rates.

The Group’s working caprtal forecasts show
that the Group wil! have sufficient financial
headroom for the 12 menths from the date
of approval of the financial statements, The
Directors, therefore, have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in existence for the
foreseeable future and they continue to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Outlook

Following the completion cf the capital
restructuring in April 2017, we have a stronger
balance sheet that will allow us to fully pursue
our strategy of achieving long-term value
creation for all our stakeholders.

GaLany

Julian Tedder
Cheef Financial Officer



FINANCIAL DASHBOARD

Key financial statistics

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Revenues £35.8m £305m
Adjusted EB TDA" £9.2m £10.2m
Underlying operating profit' £%3m £37m
Gainf(loss) after tax £155m £(32 5m)
Net cash from operating activities £6.7m £12 4m
Net debt- £6 2m £697m
Cash and cash equivalents £15.7m £24 9m
Net assets £°8".6m £705m
Capital restructuring
Balance Move- Balance
at 31 ment at 31
Dec2016 in2017 Dec2017
($m) ($m) ($m)
Issued bonds
Secured bonds (736.1) 106.4 (29.7)
Unsecured bonds (30.0) 300
(166.1) 136.4 (297)
Bonds held by iGas
Secured bonds 10.5 (10.5) -
Unsecured bonds 2.6 (2.6) -
131 (13.1) _
ouutandmg bonds ......................... (1 530) .......... ; 233 e (29 7)
Cash and cash equivalents 370 (973 21.3
N (1 5 O) ......... Ve (8 4)
Net debt
31 December 2017 31 December 2076
£m £m
Debt (nominal value exclading
capitahsed expenses) (219) (124.6)
Cash and cash equivalents 157 25.0
Net debt (6.2) (99.7)

1 Adjusred E21T 24 170 Urdera
HNDONE easl 2 T Pelp
2 et delt s borrown s 18 cant and TanT euivaient ) i g ¢

mange

BRI RIS R I

Scdered e Some gt oae 1 et

Adjusted EBITDA’ 2017

£m
Loss before tax (3.3)
Net finance costs 62
Depletion, depreciation & o
amortsation 79
impairmentsirite offs o
EBITDA 109
Share based payment charges 17
Redundancycosts 02
Gan on captal restracturng “49)
Unrealised [oss o hedges B
Adjusted EBITDA 92
Underlying operating profit’ 2017

£m
Operating loss (2.03
Shrarrefbése'd.bayment chérger - A
Recundancycoss 02
mpairments/write-offs 01
Uﬁrc-éll-sed--\(ggs-éﬁ hedgc-s- “
Underlying operating profit 1.3

Realised price per barrel

$51.3

Realised price

per barrel

WWWIGASPLC COM

$12.7 Net back to 1Gas per BOE

$10.4 G&A per BOE

$20.2 Cther operating cost

344  Well services

$3.6 Transportation & storage

Adjusted EBITDPA and underlying operating profit’

2016

(42.8)
2838

2016
£m

("6.0)
TR
06

a5
20

37
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STRATEGIC REPORT

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
MEASURING OUR PROGRESS

IGas tracks both financial and non-financial metrics
to help the Group manage its long term performance
and measure progress against its strategy.

FINANCIAL

Production (boepd)

2,335 boepd

2017 2,335 boepd
2016’ 2,355 boepd
20157 2,570 boepd
2014115} 2,737 boepd
2013143 2,783 boepd

Reason for choice

The Group aims to maintain production levels
of €.2,500 boepd to prowde operating cash
flow for funding of the Group. To ensure this
target is met an appropriate level of capital
investment 1s planned to mitigate against the
undertying decline i our mature fields.

How we measure

Dally and weekly production 1s manitored

far all producing assets and reported weekly
to senior management and monthly to the
Board. Monthly preduction forecasts are
prepared during the year to measure progress
against the production target.

Target and results for 2017

Production for 2017 was 2,335 boepd which
did not meet the target of 2,500 boepd.

The principal reasons for the shortfall, as

in previcus years, was a number of material
wells requiring workovers during the year,
Throughout the year we also conducted a
significant programme of well anc faciiity
maintenance which resulted in the return to
production of several shut-in wells, with the
benefit of this work being seen in 2018,

Link to strategy

31 Decamoer
enced 31 December 015

fng Mo~

RLHUES

d3
201 ppemanng
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Operating costs ($/boe}

$28.2/boe

20171 $28.2/boe
2016 $28.8/boe
20152+ $24.6/boe
20140153 $34.6/boe
2013/143 $37.1/boe

Operating cash flow (Em)

£6.7m

2017 £6.7m
2016’ £12.4m
2015 £1.0m
201415 £26.5m
201314 £25.2m

Operating costs per boe s a key focus for
the Group as keeping costs low will improve
the cash that we generate from our
producing assets.

Operating costs are monitored closely to
ensure that budget targets are being met.
Operating costs are reported on a monthly
basis to the Board and actions are taken,
as reqguired, to control costs in line with
the budget.

Operating costs for 2017 were $28.2/boe
against a target of $30.0/boe. The target was
achieved due to a continuing strong focus

on costs and was further helped by a weak
sterling against the US dollar, We will continue
to review Cperating Costs on an ongoing

basis and further savings are expected

to be achieved in 2018,

T IRC uded 3 one-af rey rebate egquialer w2 37 3h0e, 56 urcerly 1g operaung cosi Tor 2375 were £30 Tihce

Operating cash flow s key to prowding funding
for investing in the business as we pursue our
growth strategy.

Operating cash flow 1s reported to the Board
on a monthly basis. Regutar forecasts are
undertaken to ensure operating cash flow

15 in ine with budget, as well as longer-term
forecasts to ensure that the strategy of the
business can be adequately funded.



A reminder of our strategy

Reserves and production growth

NON-FINANCIAL

Lost Time Injuries (number)

2

2017 2
2016? Nil
20158 Nil
20141153 1
2013/14° Nil

Health and safety 1s of paramount importance
to us in providing the highest level of
protection to all our stakeholders.

We track nine leading and nine lagging
indicators during the year and these are
reported to the Board on a menthly basis.
We aim to have zero LTis but when we

do have an LTI this is fully investigated
with clear remedial action as required

and communication of learnings to

the organisation.

The target was to have zero LTls and this
was not achieved in the year. We had two
LTIs which were thoroughly investigated and
meetings were held across the orgamisation
to ensure the lessons were learned from the
Investigations. A key HSE theme for 2018
will be ‘Time out for Safety’ to ensure all
operations are performed in a safe manner
in accordance with procedures. We

have again mantained our 150 9001 and
14001 accreditation with no major non-
conformances identified.

Yea~endec 31 Daceriner
~ane months eecec 31 Jecember 2305
veprendac 31 Marih

Developing shale portfolio

WWW.IGASPLCCOM

Local and national engagement

Progress on Five Year Shale Development pian

2017

20162

2015°

201415°

2013143

Granted planning permission for a vertical well in PEDL 200 (Tinker Lane}; planning
conditions discharged and site constracuon commenced for both Springs Road and Tinker
Lane; submutted planning application for flow tests at existing Ellesmere Port well, and
submitted a scoping request for dnlling and hydraalically fracturing a welk at Ince Marshes in
the NwW

Cranted planning consent for twa wells (honzontal and vertical) in PEDL " 40 (Springs Road).
sabmitted planning apphcat:on for drling in PEDL 200 (Minker Lane): recerved five new shale
licences in the 14" round; and completed interpretation of 3-0 seismic n the N

Acquired 3-D seismic in the NW, submitted planning applcation for dnlling in PEDL 140 (Springs
Road), 147 round icence apphcations; and secared iINEQS farm-in

Drilled Eflesrmere Port-"; and issued five year shale development plan

Orilled rlam-", and secared "otal farm-mn

The five year shale development plan is key to delivering shareholder value and delivering against

our strategy.

Progress against budgeted wark programmes is tracked on a monthly basis and reported to the
Board. Where progress Is slower than expectations actions are taken to understand the reasons
and actions taken to address the issues.

The target for the year was to drill wells in the East Midlands having received pianning permissions
In 2016, Unfortunately, while progress was made it took much longer to discharge the planning
conditons than anticipated, so no shale wells were drilled in the year. During 2017 we obtained
planning consent for driling one well at Tinker Lane. We have now discharged all planming
conditions at Springs Road and Tinker Lane and site construction commenced in late 2017. The

construction

phase Is almost complete and we expect to spud the first well in mid-2018. in the

North West we submitted a planning application for a well test at our existing Ellesmere Port site
and subrmitted a scoping request for a well and hydraulic fracture at cur existing Ince Marshes site.
Whilst we were granted ervironmental permits for our Ellesmere Port site and recerved a Planning
Officer recommendation for the approval of our apphication, the committee voted to refuse the
application at the planning committee meeting on 25 January 2018, It 1s our intention to appeal
the Ellesmere Port decision.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
IDENTIFICATION AND MANAGEMENT

Principal risks and uncertainties Key risk areas
The Growp constantly monitors the Group’s risk exposures and reports The nisks arcund our existing business are set out In more detall on pages
to the Audit Committee and the Board on a regular basis. The Audit 2% and 30 but the key risk areas can be ident/fied as being associated with
Committee recenes and reviews these reports and focuses an ensunng the following:
that the effective systems of internal financral and non-financial controls
including the management of nsk are maintained. The results of this Strategic
work are reported to the Board which in turn performs its own review Making sure we apply the appropriate strategles in certain siruations and
and assessment. ensuring we deliver on strategic objectives.

Operational

Successfully developing ol and gas through our production and
development assets.

Financial
Prudent financial management seeks to mitigate the impact of
market fluctuations

Risk management framework Board Audit Committee
The Board 15 responsible for setting the The Audit Committee oversees the framework
Group’s nsk appetite and acceptable nsk for risk management and ensures it 1s operating
tolerance and putting in place a framework effectively.
Board for risk management.

1Gas Teams & Risk Owners
The risks are separated into strategic,

Prin | .
incipa operational and financial categories. Senior
committees oS
rmanagement are assigned responsibility for the
identified nsks within the three categories
Audit
Committee
IGas Teams &
Risk Owners
Risk scale
£ 1. Exposure to political risk 8. Gas and electricity market price nisk
T
2. Strategy performance 9. Exchange rate nisk
/ 4 3
3. Planning, envircnmental, licensing 10. Liquidity rnisk
9 5 and other permitting risks
§ 2 11, Caprtal risk
£ 8 4. Oil or gas production
an
© 3
= 1 5. Shale gas resources
6. Loss of key staff
G
3 7. Cd market price risk
Lowe High
Likelihood

28  IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017



A reminder of our strategy

Reserves and producrion growth

Risk
Strategic

1. Exposure to political risk
This can include changes in Government or
the effect of a local or national referendum.
These palitical risks can result in changes in
the regulatory or fiscal environment (including
taxarion) which could affect the Group's ability
to deliver its strategy.

2. Strategy performance
Strategy falls to meet sharehclder
expectations.

Operational

3. Planning, environmental, heensing
and other permitting risks
Planning, environmental, icensing and other
permitting risks associated with operatons

and, in paroicular, with drilling and preduction -~

aperations.

4. Ollorgas production
Cilor gas 1s not produced in the anticipated
quantities from any or all of the Group's
assets or that oil or gas cannot be delivered
economically.

5. Shale gas resources
Successful development of shale gas resources
15 not achieved.

6. Loss of key staff
Loss of key staff.

Ceveloping shale portfolio

Executive
ownership

CEO -
Stephen
Bowler

CEOQ -
Stephen
Bowler

CQO -
John
Blaymires

COO -
John
Blaymires

COo -
John
Blaymires

CEC -
Stephen
Bowler

WWW.IGASPLCCOM

Local and national engagerment

Mitigation Change  Strategic

link

Through UKOOG and other industry
associations the Group engages with
Government and other appropriate
organisations to ensure the Group s kept
abreast of expected potential changes and
takes an active role in making appropriate
representations.

Provide clear, transparent and consistent
communication to all stakeholders. Ensure
delvery against the five year plan.

The Group considers that such risks are
partially mitigated through complance with
regulations, proactive engagement with
regulators, communities and the expertise
and experience of its team

The Group considers that such risks are
mitigated given that its producing assets are
located in established ol and gas producing
areas, there 1s a portfolio of producing assets
and its operating staff have extensive expertise
and experience.

Investment in further data acquisition, drill
wells to get core and log data and deliver
successful flow tests. Work with our Joint
Venture partners to identfy prospective
drilling cppertunities,

Provide and maintain a competitive
remuneration package to attract the correct
calibre of staff. Build a strong and unified
team and ensure we have a clearly defined
people strategy based on culture and talent.
Development plans in place for all staff.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

A reminder of our strategy

Reserves and production growth

Risk
Financial

7. Ot market price risk
Exposure Lo market price nsk through
variations in the wholesale price of ol In the
context of the production from ail fields it
owns and operates.

8. Gasand electricity market price risk
Exposure to market price nisk through
varations in the wholesale price of gas
and electricity in the context of its future
unconventional production volumes.

9. Exchange rate risk
Exposure to exchange rate risk through both
its major source of revenue and its major
borrowings being priced in $.

10. Liquidity risk
Exposure, through its operations,
to liquidity nsk.

1. Capital nsk
The Group 1s exposed to capital risk resulting
from its capital structure, including operating
within the covenants of its existing bond
agreements.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

Developing shale portfolio

Executive
ownership

CFO -
Julian
Tedder

CFO -
Julian
Tedder

CFO -
Julian
Tedder

CFO -
Julian
Tedder

CFO -
Julian
Tedder

Local and national engagerment

Mitigation Change

The Group has hedged a total of 600,000
barrels over the year to 31 December 2018,
through zero cost collars.

The Board secks to underpin the Group’s future
cash flows by entering inte a combnation of
put and call options structured at zero cost

for baseline production to cover 12 months
forward. The Board will continue o monitor the
benefits of such hedging

The Board mantors the benefit of entering
INto contracts at the apprepriate time to
protect against gas and electricity price
volatility.

The Board ronitors the cash flows of

the Group Lo ensure CUTTency exposure

s understood. Exchange rate hedges are
considered to ensure that cash mflows In
dollars are matched with sterling cash outfiows.

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s
cash forecasts and the adeguacy of
avarlable faciiities to meet the Group’s
cash requirements.

The capital structure 1s continually montored
to ensure it is in line with the business needs
and ongoing asset development. Further
detalls of the Group’s capital management
policy are disclosed in note 24 to the
consclidated financial statements.

Strategic
link



SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS
CARING FOR OUR PEOPLE, COMMUNITIES

WWWIGASPLC.COM

AND THE ENVIRONMENT

At IGas we understand that

the technological innovation,
regulatory and legislative
changes and socio-economic
developments impacting our
business model mean we have to
equip our staff with the ability to
anticipate and respond to change.

OUR VALUES

Respect

Respect is paramount, for our
people, our environment, our
partners and the safety of others.

Collaboration

We take on challenges and find
solutions through mutual trust,
knowledge sharing and teamwork.

We are pleased to offer all staff training
commensurate with both their experience and
functional discipline, in order to keep existing
knowledge up to date and to learn new skills,

Recognising the need to develop junior talent,
and continuing our relationship with the
Humberside Engineering Tramning Association
("HETA™ and Southampten Engineering
Training Association (“SETA™), we fulfilled

our COmmItment to take on an Apprentice
Mechanical Enginecr in both our Weald and
East Midlands operations. At the start of the
2017018 academic year, we partnered with
Farnborough College of Technology in the
recruitment of an apprentice at our Holybourne
office, in the capacity of ‘Production Support
Apprentice’, shortly after another apprentice
completed his three year programme and left
to start a full-ime course of study at uriversity.
We are pleased to have been able to give

him a platform to obtain the necessary entry
requirements, and wish him every success

in both his studies and his future career.

Performance

Performing to the highest standards
internally and externally and
delivering against our targets.

Commitment

We are fully committed to preserving

the environment and providing safe
and healthy working conditions.

We were also able to assist a number

of undergraduates with their academic
development in 2017, through short internships
to two students from Impenal College, London
and cthers from Edinburgh and Portsmouth
Universities.

All new employees continue to undergo
obligatory heaith and safety training and

our field operators are all enrolled in further
training, including IMIST (“International
Miimum Industry Safety Training”™), part of
the GPITO standard supporting global oil and
gas industry safety standards. Just under 100
staff from all functions and locations undertook
additional training via our “SafetyCare” portal
completing, on average, over ten courses each.

Transparency

We are honest about what we do,
how we do it and the chalienges we
face. We are open to challenge, to
discussion and to improving how we
work to reflect our values.

We encourage and support staff in their
professional training and Continued
pProfessional Development (“CPD™) by
meeting the cost of professional subscriptions
and other training courses on their behalf,
whether through the SPE, CIPD, CIMA or Law
Society. During 2017, we supported staff in
the achievement of a number of academic
qualihications from Technical and Advanced
Ciplomas (NVQ 3) all the way up to Masters
level (NVQ 7/8).

During 2018 we will expand our offering
further as part of both our succession planning
and a modular ‘Management Development
Programme’ for managers and supervisors
from across the organisation.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS CONTINUED
A DECADE OF LEGACY

Since its launch

in 2008, the IGas
Community Fund
has awarded almost
£1 million to local
communities.

Many of the projects
have been supported
more than once over
the years.

£15,000

£7,000

Manor Farm Environmental Education

Read more on the Community Fund website Manor Farm Environmental Education

at www.igascommunityfund.co.uk

2008

Ashing Lane Nature Reserve

Ashing Lane Nature Reserve is a 19-hectare
meadow and woodland created by the
Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust and Nettleham
Woodland Trust. The grant initiated a
competition for the design of ‘threshold
points’ by local young people. it also funded
the construction of a new access point,
gates and footbridge within the woodland,

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

was set up to provide outdoor learning
and promote the benefits of outdoor play.
The grant supported ‘Around Rempstone
Countryside For AP, a programme of events
to promote family and local community
spirit and foster respect, understanding and
concern for the natural environment.

2009 2010 201



WWW.IGASPLC.COM

Holybourne Theatre
The Holybourne Theatre is a 70 year old
community theatre run by volunteers,
Two separate grants enabled the
construction of a new sound and
lighting gallery and some further
construction work ahead of the

creation of a new

foyer with disabled access and toilets.

£14,000

Bletchingley Church House
A much toved ‘home’ for community groups,
Church House was in desperate need of
renovation. The grant helped towards the
restoration. It is now being used to meet
awide range of community needs from
mother and toddler groups to a collection
point for donations to local food banks.

2012 2013 2014

£5,000

South Lybster Residents Group
The play park in South Lybster had become
increasingly derelict and unsafe for children.
The grant helped fund modern, attractive
and adventurous equiprnent. It has given
the South Lybster area a real boost and
many families with young chiidren are
using the facility.

£10,200

2015 2016 2017

Weltan Patients’ and Doctors’ Association
The Associaticn is a community group supporting the local Health
Centre by providing a transport scheme for the elderly and
vulnerable. Over a period of four years grants have provided a
secure database system for making appointments, wheelchairs
and a secure storage shed.

£5,830

I1Gas Energy ple Annual report and accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS CONTINUED
HEALTH, SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND QUALITY

What is an International Standard?
An International Standard is @ decument containing practical information and

best practice. It often describes an agreed way of doing something or a solution

to a global problem.

Document systems and
procedures

Define success

Having defined success and key activities,
the next step towards ISO certification is to
document the systems and procedures that
deliver these success factors. The assessor

will examine your organisation’s existing
procedures and dentify where they
conform to the 150 standard

Every journey towards 1SO certification
starts with a single question: “What does
success look lke?”

Once success is defined, a success
critena 1s developed.

After the inmal assessment, they will help
you to create a manual relevant to the ISO
standard you are working tawards. This
manual sets cut how your business should
operate going forward so that it can delver
the ISC standard.

Audited externally

With key processes in place and staff trained
to consistently follow these, the next step
1s external audit, Audits are conducted
on a yearly basis, supplemented by six
month reviews.

Develop training methods

Employee development reinforces the key
principles of ISO standards. The return on
investing in staff training 1s ongoing efficiency,
continual improvement of high quality systems
and procedures and greater profitability.

Certification awarded

Once confirmed as being ISO standard
compliant, your organisation will then
be presented with the 15O certificate.
You can then promote that you have gained
International recognition to your

target market.

34 1Gas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017



IGas is committed fo delivering the
highest standards in occupational
Health, Safety, Environment and
Quality ("HSEQ"). We are working
to continuously improve safety and
risk management across 1Gas.

SO 9001/14007 accreditation continues to be
an important part ¢f the business as it helps
to demonstrate that we have management
systems in place that meet the requirement

of the International Standards recognised by
other businesses and regulatory authoribes,
As set oyt in these pages gaining and retawung
certification requires significant commitrment
across the business but it enables us to better
manage and control our business processes.

The Company 1s pleased to announce
Certificate Renewal duning 2617,

Following the revision of 150 9001/14001:2015
standards the Company 1S required to update 1ts
management systern to fulfil the requirements
of the new standards. The Company is on
schedule to complete that transition by the
required date of September 2018.

Reporting

The IGas Board receives regular information
on the HSEQ performance of the Company,
and specifically monitors health and safety
and environmental reporting at each

Board meeting. In 2017,1Gas maintained

its commitment to the delvery of continual
improvement in HSEQ performance, with
excellent results in many areas, but with some
areas below target and requining renewed
actions 1o be undertaken. Curing the year there
were two recorded Lost Time Injuries (LTIs).
A detailed investigation was undertaken on
both incidents and this has proved invaluable
in establishing further improvements in our
nisk analysis of work tasks and assessment of
estabiished processes and behaviours.

Qverall reporting of hazardous observations
increased by 23% compared to 2016 which
demonstrates our focus on improvement
through the detection and reseiution of 1ssues.

The business continues to drive improvements
through awareness campaigns and engagement
through its commuttee of Representatives

for Safety. This is demonstrated through

IGas achieving the ROSPA Presidents Award
foran 11" consecutive year, showing

our commitment to Occupational

Health and Safety.

As a continuation of Health and Safety, 1Gas
has successfully completed its first full Safety
Report Assessment for its COMAH {Control
of Major Accident Hazards Regulations) site at
Holybourne in Hampshire, at first submuission,
There remains an ongoing programme of
menitoring and improvernents, of which the
first visit receved a positive assessment,

Environment and monitoring

We are committed to working with regulators
and within local commurities to ensure that any
activity 1s done safely and in an environmentally
sensitive manner,

Throughout our operations and the lifecycle
of our wells, robust environmental protection
measures are In place including, where
appropriate, the monitonng of ground water,
ground gas, soll, air guality and naise before,
duning and after operational actrvity.

During site construction, an impermeable
membrane is placed across the well pad
which provides containment for any spill.
The membrane holds all site surface water
which s alse tested prior to disposal.

Protection of aquifers and ground water 15
essential. IGas wells are ali designed with the
minimurm of three layers of steel casing - the
surface casing, the intermediate casing and the
production casing. The intermediate casing
ensures that there can be no leakage path from
the ollfgas producing layer up to the aquifer.

Read more about how our industry 1s regulated
on page 12

Changes in environmental legislation
We have previousty been granted installation
permits to operate onshore oil and gas
preduction facilities for crude oil unloading,
handiing or storage, or treatment under the
Pollution Prevention and Control {England and
Wales) Regulations 2000. During 2008, these
permits automatically became environmental
permits under the environmental permitting
regme. This regime was expanded in 2010 and
Is now covered by the Environmental Permitting
(England and Wales) Regulations 2016 (the
2016 Regulations}.

WWWIGASPLC.COM

Since 1 October 2013, operators of new
onshore ol andfor gas exploration or appraisal
facilities require erviranmental permits where
activities include:

» the management of extractive waste,
whether or not this invalves a waste faclity
(as a mining waste operation),

s fianng of waste gas using a flare which has
the capacity to incinerate over 10 tonnes a
day {as an installatron);

e awater discharge activity,

® agroundwater activity, such as an
indirect discharge of pollutants as part
of high pressure high volume hydraulic
fracturing; and

e waste being managed that meets the
thresholds for radicactwvity set out In
the 2016 Regulanons {as a radivactive
substances actvity).

The changes in the above regulations required
all cur existing permits to be varied to meet the
requirements of the Environmental Permitting
(England and Wales) Regulations 2016.

This comprehensive plece of work involved
the collation of a number of workstreams
and reports supporting each indwidual
permit application, such as Hydrological Risk
Assessments, updated site plans and location
maps, Waste Management. Plans and revised
Site Condition Reports.

We continue to promote deep capability and

a safe operating culture across [Gas. However,
we are not complacent and need to conunue to
remain vigilant and focused on delivering safe,
refiable and cornphant operations at all pmes,

The Strategic Report, as set out on pages 02
to 35, has been approved by order of
the Board.

Cooley (UK) LLP
Secretary

IGas Energy plc
Registered Otfice:
7 Down Street
London
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Strong and
experienced
leadership
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Corporate
Governance

This section of the report addresses
how we govern the Company and the
actions and responsibilities of the Directors.

Od3d DI93LvH1S

FONVYNAIA0D JLVHOAHOD

SINIANTLVLS TWIZNYNIA



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE
ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNANCE

Introduction

The Board 15 fully committed to ensuring
that high standards of governance, values
and behaviours are consistently applied
throughout the Group, helpmng to ensure
the integrity of cur business, the successful
delvery of our strategy and the long-rerm
success of the Company.

Board focus in 2017

With the potential breaches of debt
covenants, the Board spent a significant
amount of time at the beginning of the year
discussing a capital restructuring with all key
stakeholders. This was ultimately successfully
completed in April 2077 with new equity

of $57 millien being raised, $40 millien of
secured bonds being exchanged for equity
and $49 .2 million being bought by the
Company, $27.4 million unsecured bonds
being exchanged for equity and the remaining
secured bond terms being changed
Throughout the discussions the Board
ensured that all stakeholders’ nterests

were being best scrved by any proposals.

Following the completion of the restructuring,
and with a stronger balance sheet, the focus
has been on delivering against our strategy of
developing our shale portfolio, maintaining
steady production and growing our reserves
with selective Investments, whilst doing this
operating responsibly in partnership with local
communities and our stakeholders, The Board
approved a number of capital iInvestments on
our preducing assets and progress was made
on our development assets in the second half
of the year
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The Board ensures that high standards
of corporate governance are met and
a comprehensive risk management
and planning process is in place.

How we manage our Company

The Board The Executive Committee

The Board 15 responsible for the
overall governance of the Group. Its
responsibilities include reviewing and

approving the Group's strategy, budgets,
major items of capiral expenditure and
senior personnel appointments.

The Executive Committee 1s responsible
for the day to day running of the
operational business with a focus

on performance management and ensuring
that the Group KPIs are being met.

Read more page 40

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee
I responsible for reviewing
the size, structure and
composition of the Board
and ensuring the balance
and expertise of the Board
remains appropnate to meet
the necds of the Company.

The Remuneration
Committee is responsible
for determining and agreeing
the remuneration policy for
the Executive Director and
Senior managers.

The Audit Committee 15
responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the mtegrity

of the financial reporting
processes and ensurng the

financial statements give
a true and farr view of the
Company.
Read more page 41

Read more page 42 Read more page 42



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXPERIENCED AND EFFECTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Board is a highly experienced team of experts,
committed to delivering shareholder value and to
working in partnership with the communities in

which IGas operates.

Name Mike McTighe
Role Non-executive Chairman
Appointed 2015

Skiils and experience
Mike has held a variety of
Nen executive director
rcles in pablic and private
companies over the fast
20 years and was on the
Board of Ofcom, the UK's
cormmunications regulator.

Mike 15 currently Chairman
of Openreach Ltd, Together
Financial Services Ltd, Arran
isle Ltd and Gortmullan
Holdings Ltd

During his career, Mrke has
held a number of semor
executive and board level roles
in internatonal businesses
including Cable & Wireless,
Philips, GE and Motorola.

A R N

Name Stephen Bowler

Role Chief Executive Officer
Appointed 2015

Skills and experience
Steve became Chief Executive
Ofhcer in May 2015 having
|jeined ‘Gas as Chief Financial
Officer in 2011

He qualified as a chartered
accountant with Touche Ross,
now Deloitte 1n 1999, Steve
jomned ABN Amro Hoare
Govett, now part of Jefferies,
where he acted as adwiser and
broker to a wide range of UK
listed companies in the ol and
gas sector.

Steve advised Star Energy
onits IPO in 2004 The Star
Energy producing assets were
acquired by iGas in 2071,
transforming 1Gas at that
ume to become one of the
leading UK onsheore oil and
gascompanies.

WWW.IGASPLC.COM

Committee member key

A Audit Committee Chair of Commuttee

R Remuneration Committee

N Nomination Committee Member of Committee

Name Tushar Kumar

Role Non-exccutive Director
Appointed 2017

Skills and experience
Tuashar is a member of the
Investment and Portfolio
Management Team at
Kerogen Capital. He has

15 years’ expenence in
investing, Investment banking
and equities, working

with a range of ol and

gas companies including
upstream, downstream,
majors and NOCs across
Europe, the Middle East

and Asia

Name Cuth McDowell

Role Non-exccutive Director
Appointed 2012

Skills and experience
Cuth has 35 years of
nternational experience in
the ol and gas sector, having
heid a range of leadership
positions In Exploration

and Production,

Name Philip Jackson

Role Non-executive Director
Appointed 2017

Skills and experience
Philip serves on Kerogen's
nvestment Committee

He has over 30 years’
experience ininvestments
and corporate finance in
energy and infrastructure
projects He was the
founder and former chief
execative of J.P Morgan
Asset Management's

$860 million Asiar
nfrastructure and Related
Resoudrces Opportunity Fund

He began his career with

BP, where he held various
commercial and management
roles over eight years Cuth
then joined Clyde Petrcleam
ple, imtially as Senior
Economist, sabseguently
becoming Group Commercial
Manager before Clyde was
bought by Culf Canada

Prior to joining Kerogen. he
was an executive director

at Morgan Stanley’s natural
resources group in London,
having previously worked
with mernbers of Lhe Keragen
team at J P Morgan's energy
and natural resources group
N Hang Kong.

Philip was with J.P. Morgan
{and heritage Jardine
Fleming) for over 20 years,
leading their power and
infrastructure adwisory
businesses, advising on
restructuning, M&a and
prvatisation. He started
his career with the energy
tearn at Ashurst LLP before
moving to its chent Trafalgar
House plc, one of the UK's
leading independent oil
and gas comparies

In 1997, Cuth joined Paladin
Resources plc, where he
served primarily as Finance
Director. ~he company
raised approxmately £120
million in four separate
primary offerings before it
was sold to Talisman Energy
Inc. for approximately £7.2
bilionin 2006 Cuth 15
currently chairman at Quorall
Ltd., an unlisted software
development company

A R

Tushar holds an MBA from the
:ndian institure of Management
Ahmedabad ('IMA) and a
BTech in computer science and
engineenng from the Indian
Insuitute of Technology (IM)
He s also 8 CFA charter holder

Philip graduated with an

Ma 0 law from the University
of Cambridge and 15 a salicitor
of the Suprerme Court

in England.

R N
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
COMPANY STRATEGY AND OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

The principal purpase of the Executive Committee,
which meets weekly, is the implementation of

the Company's strategy and operational work
programmes. In turn, the Committee recommends
strategic and operating plans to the Board.

Name Stephen Bowler
Role Chief Executive
Officer

Skills and experience
Steve became Chief
Execdtive Offcer in May
2075 having joined 1Gas
as Chief Financial Officer
In 2011

He gualified as a
chartered accountant
with Touche Ross, now
Deloitte In 1999, Steve
joined ABN Amro Hoare
Gavett, now part of
Jefferies, where he acted
as adviser and broker to
a wide range of UK listed
companies 0 the oil and
gas sector

Steve advised Star
Energy on its PG in
2004 The Star Energy
producing assets were
acquired by -Gas in
2011, transforming 1Gas
at that time to become
one of the leading UK
onshore oil and gas
companies.

Name Julian "edder
Role Chief Financial
Officer

Skills and experience
Julian becarne Chief
Financial Officer in
September 2015,

A chartered accountant,

Julian has 15 years’
Serior managemen[
experience both

at operational and
group ievel within the
international oif and
gas sector, ncluding
Centrica plc and Tullow
Ol plc

Maost recently, Julian
was General Manager,
Finance for Tullow O1,
having worked at the
company for aver 10
years, where he was
ultimately responsible
for 190 staff across Lhe
finance function.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

Name John Blaymires
Role Chief Operating
Officer

Skills and experience
John has 35 years

of international
experience in the

oll and gas industry
gained with Hess
Corporation and Shell
Internaticnal. Before
Joining 1Gas he was
Director of Technology
Development for Hess
based m Houston, where
he helped develop a
global engineering and
geoscience technology
£rodp responsibte

for providing support
across the E&P business,
from deepwater

o uncenventional
resources.

Prior to that John was
“echnical Director for
Hess’ operations in West
Atrica, and subsequently
Scuth East Asia with
responsibility for several
major ol and gas
developments.

John has a 85¢ and PhD
m Mining Engineering
from Leeds University.

The Committee also monitors the operational and
financial performance of the business as well as
being responsible for the optimisation of resources
and the identification, assessment and management
of risk within the Company.

Name Thamala Perera
Role General Counsel
Skills and experience
General Counsel with
17 years' post-guatified
experience, over 10
years of which gained at
the ol and gas industry.
In 2017, following

the reverse takeover

of Star Energy Group
Limited (then a whally
owned subsidiary of
PETRONAS) by IGas,
Thamala was appointed
to lead the legal funcuion
of the enlarged group.
She was formerly
General Counsel of

Star Energy responsible
for the Earopean
Infrastructure Group

of PETRONAS with a
primary focus on gas
storage.

Thamala was called

to the Bar of England
and Wales in 2000
and during her carcer
has held (among
others) positions at
the regulator, Ofgem.
Thamala holds a Master
of Laws (LLM) in
European Law from
King's College London

Name Peter Foscoe
Role Director of Human
Resources

Skills and experience
A Chartered Fellow

of the Chartered
Institute of Personnel &
Development, Peter has
over 25 years' experience
managing human
resource functicns in
the financial services,
telecoms and oil & gas
sectors. 'n addition to
10 years at Mernill Lynch/
Bank of Amenica and
four years as Head of
Human Resources at an
Al listed Hedge Fund,
Peter has specialised

IN compensanon &
benefits at a number of
organisations, InCluding
six years as Head of
Reward for the Hess
Corporation global E&P
business.

Name Ann-mari¢
Wilkinscn

Role Director of
Corporate Affairs
Skills and experience
Appainted n 2013,
Ann-arie is a media
and communications
professional with
over two decades of
experience having
worked extensively
as a consultant for a
number of financial
and corporate public
relanonsfinvestor
relations agencies.

Ann-rmarie has

extensive experience

n providing advice

on both external and
|nterna\ communications
strategies and has
worked vath a number
of ail and gas companies
over the years,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors support high standards of corperate governance and the guidance set out i the UK Corporate Governance Code.
As an AIM listed company, 1Gas Energy pic is not obliged to comply with The UK Carporate Governance Code published by the Financial
Reporting Council in April 2076 (the “Code”) but instead uses 1ts provisions as a guide, only as considered appropriate to the circumstances
of the Company

The Board and its Commiittees

Following the AGM In June 2017, the Board of the Company consists of one Executive Director and four Non-executive Directors; with
Mr McTighe and Mr McDowell being considered to be independent. The Senior Independent Non-executive Director is Cuth McDowell
and biagraphies of all the Directors are included within the Annual Report on page 39.

The Beard retains full and effective control over the Group. The Board meets regularly to consider reports on the eperaticnal and financial
performance of the Group and to decide on matters reserved unto itself, which include reviewing and approving the Group's strategy, budgets,

major items of capital expenditure and senior personnel appointments.

Board membership

Meetings artended

3oard mer-ber ) ) o o o - (ot of a total posuble)
Mike McTighe (Chairman) 16/17
Francis Gugen (Chairman - resigned 14 June 2017) /M
Stephen Bowler 16/17
Jobn Biaymires {resigned 14 June 2017) nm
Julian Tedder (resigned 14 June 2017) nm
Cuth McDowell 17117
Philip Jackson (appointed 26 April 2017) 77
Tushar Kumar (appointed 26 Apnl 2017) 717
John Bryant (resigned 14 June 2017} M

The Board met on a significant number of occasions during the year, principally to discuss the proposed capital restructuning of the Group at the
beginning of the year. Since the AGM, the Chief Financial Cfficer and Chief Operating Officer have been invited 1o attend each meeting of the
Board and have participated in all of the meetings during the year.

The Board has the following committees each chaired by a Non-executive Director as follows:

Audit Committee

The Committee comprises only Non-executive Directors; being chaired by Cuth McDowell and having as other members Mike McTighe and
Tushar Kumar (appointed 26 April 2017} . Meetings are aligned with the Group’s financral reporting calendar and in the year ended 31 December
2017 the Committee met on four occasions. The Chief Financial Officer and Group Financial Controller are tnvited to attend each meeting of the
Commuttee and participated in all of the meetings during the year. The external auditors are also invited to attend mectings of the Committee as
apprapriate and also meet the Committee without the presence of management at least annually.

Audit Committee membership

Meeiings aitended

Corimttee Merber L o {out of atotal possible)
Cuth McDowell (Chairman) 474
Mike McTighe 3/4
Tushar Kumar (appointed 26 April 2017) 212
John Bryant (resigned 14 June 2017) 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Summary of the Committee’s responsibilities

The Commuttee’s responsibilities include the following:

e The Committee reviews reports from management and the Group’s auditors refating to the Group's Annual Report and Accounts and the interim
results announcements. The Committee advises the Board on whether the Annual Report and mntenim announcement are farr, balanced and
understandable and provide the information necessary for 1Gas’ stakeholders to assess performance against the Group's strategy;

® The Committee reviews complance with legal requirements, accounting standards and the AIM Ruies and on ensuring that effective systems
of internal financial and non-financial controls (including for the management of risk and whistle-blowing) are maintained. However, the ulimate
responsibility for reviewing and approving the Annual Report and Accounts remains with the Board of Directors; and

e The Committee keeps under review the external auditors’ independence and considers the nature, scope, and results of the auditor's work
and develops pohcy on and reviews (reserving the right to approve) any non-audit services that are provided by the external auditors.

The Committee 1s responsible for making recommendations to the Board of Directors on therr appointment and remuneration.

Key areas of focus in the year ended 31 December 2017

The Committee's particular areas of focus during the year were as follows:

# Review of the 2016 Annual Report and of the significant nisks identified which included the going concern assessment, including covenant
compliance; impairment of ol and gas properties; recoverabiity of goodwill and reserves and resources disclosures;

e Review of the six months ended 30 June 2017 intenm results announcement and of the significant risks which included the going concern
assessment, including covenant comphance; impairment of ol and gas properties; and reserves and resources disclosures; and

¢ Review of the planning for the 2017 Annual Report and approving the approach being taken by the Group's auditors.

Remuneration Committee

¢ The Committee comprises cnly Non-executive Directors, being chaired by Philip Jackson (appointed 26 April 2017) and having as other
members Mike McTighe and Cuth McDowell. The Committee met on four occasions in the year ended 31 December 2017. The Chief Executive
Cfficer and Human Resources Director are invited to attend meetings. In accordance with the Committee’s terms of reference, no Director may
participate In discussions relating te their own terms and condibions of service or remuneration.

Remuneration Committee membership

Meeungs atzended

Committee merrber ) o ) {out of atatal possible)
Philip Jackson (Chairman - apponted 26 April 2017) 202
John Bryant (resigned 14 June 2017} 2/2
Mike McTighe 4/4
Cuth McDowell 4/4

Summary of the Committee’s responsibilities

The Committee’s responsibilities in¢lude the following;

» Making recommendations to the Board of Directors on the Company’s policy on the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors
and other senior executives (as are delegated to the Committee to consider);

« Determining, within agreed terms of reference, the remainder of the remuneration packages for each of them, including pension righs,
any compensation payments and the implementation of executive incentive schemes;

* Monitering the level and structure of remuneration for senior management;

® Reviewing the design of share incentive plans for approval by the Board and determining the policy on annual awards to Executive Directors
and senior executives; and

e Reviewing progress made aganst performance targets and agreeing incentive awards,

Key areas of focus in the year ended 31 December 2017

The Committee's particular areas of focus durning the year were as follows:

* Review of long-term incentive plans and approving the issue of awards under the Executive Incentive Plan with revised vesting conditions
to senior management in the second half of the year following the completion of the restructurning of the Company in 2017, and

» Review of performance in the year ended 31 December 2017 and recommending to the Board that a bonus of 25% be pard to all employees
of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman, Mike McTighe, and 1ts other members are the Senior Independent Non-executive
Director, Cuth McDowell and Philp Jackson (appointed 26 April 2017). The Chief Executive Officer of the Company 15 imvited to attend
meetings of the Committee when the Committee is discussing matters related to executive management and such other matters as the
Committee charrman deems appropriate. The Committee meets as required during the year.

1Gas Energy pic Annual report and acceunts 2017
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Nomination Committee membership

Meetings attended

Committee member - 0 i of atotal possible)
Mike McTighe (Chairmany 2/2
Francis Gugen (Chairman - resigned 14 June 2017) 22
Cuth McDowell 2/2
John Bryant (resigned 14 June 2017) 2/2
Philip Jackson (appointed 26 Aprit 2017) nfa

Summary of the Committee’s responsibilities

The Committee’s responsibilities include the following:

+ Considering the size, structure and composition of the Board of Directors, retirements and appointments of addittonal and replacement
Directors and making appropnate recommendations to the Board of Directors;

s Making recommendations to the Board regarding membership of the Audit and Remuneration Committees; and

s Ensuring that plans are in place for orderly succession to the Board of Directors and serior management positions, so as to mantain
an appropriate balance of skills and experience within the Group and the Board of Directors.

Key areas of focus in the year ended 31 December 2017

The principal activties of the Committee duning the year were as follows:

e Proposing the appointment of Phlip Jackson and Tushar Kumar to the Board as Non-executive Directors following the completion of the
financial restructuring in April 2017;

# Proposing a reduction in the size of the Board following the resignation of Francis Gugen, John Bryant, John Blaymires and Julian Tedder
at the conclusion of the AGM In June 2017; and

» Ensuring that appropriate succession plans are put in place for senior management.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was chaired by Mike McTighe, and 1its other members were Cuth McDowell, Stephen Bowler and Julian Tedder.

The Committee was established in response to the Group's financial situation and potential default of its bond covenants in 2016 and following
the successful financial restructuring in Apri 2017 the Committee was disbanded. The Commuittec met as required during the year.

Strategy Committee membership

Meetings attendec

Committee member {ourofatoral possible)
Mike McTighe (Chairman) 1317
Cuth McDowelt 16017
Stephen Bowler 1617
Julian Tedder 1617

Summary of the Committee’s responsibilities

The Committee’s respensibilities included the following:

& Liaising with the Group’s financial advisors to develop a restructuring strategy;

& Developing restructuring and investment proposals to take to current and potentiai investors and/or bondholders andfor considering any
restructuring and investment proposals which are made to the Group;

* Monitoring cash flows and complance with bond covenants on an ongoing basis; and

* Providing formal recommendations to the Board in relation to any restructuring proposals.

Key areas of focus in the year ended 31 December 2017

The principal activities of the Committee during the period were as follows:

s Exploring all avalable options for a capital restructuring and developing a strategy for approval by the Board;

¢ Discussing equity investment from a strategic investor and supporting of their due diligence cxercise of the Group. Discussing proposals
for additional equity with institutional investors,

& Discussing the restructuring strategy with the secured and unsecured bondholders and getting their support to the proposals and the
confirmation of therr vote in favour of the proposals at Bondholder meetings;

e Ensuring that the Bond Trustee was kept fully appraised of the restructurning proposals and ensuring they were supportive,

# Ensuning that the Group was fully complant with 1ts AIM reporting obligations in refation to its financal situation; and

e Preparing all documentation required for General Meetings of the bondholders and sharchelders for approval of the propaosed restructuring
in April 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Internal control

The Board acknowledges that it 1s responsible for establshing and maintaining the Group’s system of internal controls and reviewing its
effectiveness. The procedures that include, inter ala, financial, operational, health & safety, complance matters and nisk management
{as detailed in the Strategic Report) are reviewed on an ongoing basis,

The Group’s internal control procedures include the fellowing:

e Board approval for all significant projects, including corporate transactions and major capital projects,

& The Board receves and reviews regular reports covening both the technical progress of projects and the Group's financial 2ffairs to faciitate
Its control;

s There s a comprehensive budgeting and planning system for all tems of expenditure with an annual budget approved by the Board. Risk
assessment and evaluation is an integral part of the annual planning cycle;

¢ The Group has in place internai control and nisk management systems in relation to the Group's financial reporting process and the Group’s
process for preparing consolidated accounts. These systems include policies and procedures to ensure that adequate accounting records
are maintaned and transactions are recorded accurately and fairly to permit the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance
with {FRS; and

¢ The Audit Committee reviews draft annual and interim reports before recommending their publication to the Board The Audit Committee
discusses with the Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller and external auditors the significant accounting pelicies, esnmates and
Judgements applied in preparing these reports.

The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absclute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board has
considered the need for a separate nternal audit function but, bearing i mund the present size and composition of the Group, does not censider
It necessary at the current time.

UK Bribery Act

iGas has reviewed the appropriate policies and procedures to ensure complance with the UK Bribery Act. The Company continues
actively to premote good practice throughout the Group and has initiated a rolling prograrnme of anti-bribery and corruption tramng
for all relevant employees,

Relations with shareholders and bondholders

Communications with shareholders and bondholders are considered important by the Directors. The primary contact with sharcholders,
bondholders, investors and analysts 15 the Chief Executive Officer. Cther serior management, however, regularly speak to investors and analysts
during the year. Company circulars and press releases have also been issued throughout the year for the purpose of keeping investors informed
about the Group’s progress and in accordance with AIM regulations

The Company alse maintains a website (www.igasplc.com) that is regularly updated and contains a wide range of information about the Group

IGas Energy pic Annuai report and accounts 2017
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Thus report explains our remuneration policy for Directors and sets cut how decisions regarding Directors’ pay for the period under review
have been taken.

Annual Statement

The 2016 Directors’ Remuneration Report noted that the combination of continued low oil prices and ongoing financial restructuring of the
Company meant it was not considered appropriate to make pay awards, 1ssue a cash payment under the annual short term incentive bonus
programme or make a second annual award under the long term incentive scheme known as the Executive Incentive Plan {“FIP”), the mechanics
of which were detailed in the 2076 Annual Report at that time,

Subsequent to the completion of the financial restructunng n Aprd 2017 and the AGM in June 2017 the Board approved a 2% pay award
and a 10% cash banus payment to staff. The CEQ, Stephen Bowler, declined to accept his pay award.

In October 2017, foliowing a benchmarking analysis performed by PwC, the Remuneration Committee proposed a number of changes to the
annual cash bonus scheme, which better align the bonuses of the CEQ and senior executives to the Company’s Key Performance Indicators
{"KPIs™) ard which, in the event of superior performance in any bonus period, introduce an element of staff retention through the use of stock
awards. Although the maximum bonus which the CEO might receive remains unchanged at 100% of base salary, ather senior executives saw therr
maximum bonus potential Increase (typically to 50% or 75% of base salary) with the level of pay-out for 2017 determined by reference to their
annual performance appraisal scores. For 2018 bonuses will additionally be moderated by reference to individual targets set by reference to the
senior executive’s influence on the delivery of the KPIs. In approving the recommendations the Board agreed that 50% of any bonus in excess of
£30,000 be paid in the form of restricted stock and subject to a minimum holding penod.

The Company’s own review also considered the performance criteria associated with awards under the EIP, noting that ‘base” awards made in
2016 did not require an absolute share price appreciation as a condinon of vesting. It was noted that market practice in this regard was changing
and that a majority of crganisations in the E&P sector now operate a long term share plan which requires some level of share pnice appreciation
before an award vests (either in part or in full) . Approving the Remunerazion Committes’s recommendanions, the Board stipulated that no part
of the 2017 EIP award will vest in 2020 unless a share price hurdle of £1.13 1s met or exceeded.

Directors’ remuneration policy

Remuneration policy

The Company’s policy 15 to maintain levels of remuneration sufficient to attract, motvate and retain senior executives of the highest calibre who
can deliver growth in shareholder value Executive Director remuneration currently consists of basic salary, pensions, benefits, annual bonus
{based on annually set targets) and long term incentives {to reward long term performance). The Company seeks to strike an appropriate
balance between fixed and performance-related reward so that the total remuneration package is structured to align a significant proportion

to the achievernent of performance targets, reinforcing a clear ink between pay and performance. The performance targets for staff, senior
executives and the Executive Director are each aligned to the key drivers of the business strategy, thereby creating a strong alignment of interest
between staff, Executive Directors and shareholders.

The Committae will continue to review the Company’s remuneration pehicy and make amendments, as and when necessary, to ensure it remains
fit for purpose and continues to drive high levels of executive performance and remains both afferdable and competitive in the market.
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CORPORATE GOVERMNAMNCE

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

The elements of the reward package are detalled below:

Element of reward

Base salary

The purpose of the base salary

15 1G:

e help recruit and retain key
ndividuals;

e reflect the indwvidual’s
experience, role and
contribution within the
Company; and ensure fair
reward for “doing the job”.

Other benefits inciuding
pension

Annual cash bonus

Long Term incentive Plan
(“LTIP")

Operation and performance conditions

The Committee reviews base salaries annually to ensure that
Executive Directors pay remains competitively aligned with
external market practices.

In determining whether to increase levels the Committee will
take the following into consideration:

» the performance of the indwidual Director;

e the indwvidual Director’s experience and responsibiiities,

» 1mpact on fixed costs of any increase; and

* pay and conditions throughout the Company.

The Company provides Executive Directors with benefits in kind,
with a pension contribution up to 15% of base salary, as well as

other benefits in kind including medical and disabibity insurances
and death-in-service life assurance

Executive Directors and staff are eligible to participate
in a discretionary bonus plan.

The Committee will determine on an annual basis the level

of deferral, if any, of the bonus payment into Company

shares (currently 50% of any award in excess of £30,000).
Maximum bonus levels and the proportion payable for on target
performance are considered in the hght of market bonus levels
for similar roles among the industry sector.

Bonuses paid in cash (and where applicable, shares) are

not pensionable. In terms of bonus targets a balanced scorecard
approach is operated which focuses on a mixture of strategie,
operational, financial and non-financial metrics.

Under the Long Term Incentive Plan, adopted by the Board in
2011, participants can each be granted two types of award: an
Initial Award and an Annual Award. Both types of award are in
the form of a nil cast option. If the relevant conditions attaching
to the awards are met at the end of a three year vesting period,
then the participant has a further seven years in which to
exercise the award.

The primary purpose of the Initial Awards is to aid the
recruitment of key executives. These awards vest at the end of
athree year performance period provided the Company’s share
price performance exceeds the Company’s weighted average
cost of capital of 10%.

The LTIP also provides for Annual Awards to be granted which
will vest at the end of a three year period provided certain
challenging corporate performance conditions have been met.
The purpose of the Annual Award is to provide a competitive
annual total remuneration package which retains and motivates
the Executive Director and other selected executives.
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Maximum opportunity

The Committee will retain

the discretion to increase an
indwidual’s salary where there 15 a
significant difference between current
levels and a market competitive

rate for similar positions in simuilar
organisations (based on size,
complexity and sector).

The percentage of maximum bonus
entitlement received is based on
the achievement of individually
challenging targets supporting
corporate objectwes. The maximum
potential bonus entitlement for
Executive Directors under the plan
I to up to 100% of base salary.

The maximum ndvidual limit for an
Imtial Award 1s 200% of salary.

The maximum individual Imit for an
Annual Award in any financial year
15 200% of salary (this Imit was
increased from 150% during the
2014/15 financial year).



Element of reward

Executive Incentive Plan
(“EIP”)

Executive Director
Retention Plan (“EDRP™)

Share Investment Plan
(“SIP”)

Operation and performance conditions

Under the EIP adopted by the Board in March 2016, participants
are granted a share award In the form of a nil-cost option.

This aption will be released at the end of a three year holding
period provided that the Executive remains in employment and
that the Remuneration Commuttee 1s satisfied that corporate
performance has been satisfactory {with reference to share
price}. A multipher will alse apply to this share award to ensure
that management are focused on the execution of the business
strategy and the creation of long-term value for shareholders.
For the first share award (March 2016) the multiplier was

set as follows:

Share price target*
£10.00
£15.00

Multiplier
1.50 x shares awarded
2.00 x shares awarded

For the second share award (October 2017) the multiplier was
set as follows.

Share price target Multiplier

<£1.13 0.00 x shares awarded
£1.13-£1.25 (.25 x shares awarded
£126-£1.39 (.50 x shares awarded
£1.40-£154 0.75 « shares awarded
£1.55-£1.74 1.00 x shares awarded
£1.75-£196 1.50 x shares awarded
> £1.96 2.00 x shares awarded

Executive Directors will be required to build a shareholding over
the next five years of at least 150% of salary to further support
the alignment of their interests with those of sharcholders.

Under the EDRP, partictpants are granted nil cost options which
vest and becorne exercisable on the first anniversary of grant
subject to the Directors” continued employment and to a one
year holding perod following the date of vesting,

In 2013, the Company adopted an HMRC approved Share
Investment Plan for all employees of the Group. The scheme is
a tax eficient incentive plan pursuant to which all employees are
eligible to subscribe for up to £150 (or 10% of salary, f less)
worth of IGas ordinary shares per month.

Shares are acquired on a quarterly basis. The Company
automatically matches the employee contribution and acquires
matching ‘Partnership’ shares om a 1-to-1 basis. Subject to the
Company achieving pre-defined quarterly production targets,
the Company Increases the matching element for that quarter
such that it will contribute Partnership shares on a 2-to-1 basis
To recenve ther allocation of Company Partnerstup shares,
employees must ordinarily remain employed by the Company
for a period of three years from the date of grant of the
matching award

* Re siated to account for the Share Capital Consohdation & Sub Dwision 14 june 207

1Gas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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Maximum opportunity

Annual award to the current
Executive Director of no more than
75% of salary (100% in exceptional
circumstances) subject to two
times multiplier {i.e_the maximum
number of shares which could vest
Is equal to 150% of salary).

The EDRP was adopted as an
exceptional share arrangement and
S Bowler was made an award of
options over 175,000% crdinary
shares and J Blaymires was made
an award of options over 150,000
ordinary shares in July 2015.

Employees are eligible to acquire up
to £150 (or 10% of salary, ff less)
worth of IGas ordinary shares per
month from gross salary

The Company will match the shares
purchased on a 1-to-1 basis and,
subject to the Company having met
pre-defined quarterly production
targets, will increase the matching
element for that quarter to 2-to-1.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Annual Report on remuneration
Remit of the Remuneration Committee
The remit of the Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”™) is provided in the Corporate Governance section.

The Commuttee has engaged the services of PricewaterhouseCaapers LLP (“PwC”} to provide wholly independent advice on execute
compensation and to assist the Commitzee in the implementation and evaluation of 1ts long term mcentive arrangements.

Share price movements during the year
The Groups share price as at 31 December 2017 was 85 88p per share. The fughest price during the year was 230.32p per share and the lowest
share price dunng the year was 49.00p per share {re-stated to account for the Share Capital Consolidation & Sub-Division 14 June 2017).

Current arrangements in financiaf year (Audited)

Executive Directors

Executive Directors are empioyed under roling centracts with notice peniods of 12 months or less from the Company or executive.
Dhrectors’ emoluments for the year were as follows:

Yearended 31 Decembe_r 2017 Year ended 31 Decerber 2076

Payment Paymeni
inlieu of Bonus Bonus inheuof Bonus Benus
Salary  pension {Cast) (Shares} Pensions Tatat Salary pension fCash)  {Shares)  Pergions Toral
Erecutive 31rec_tor5 £000 _ £'000 £’090 £000 ) £'000 £000 E'OOO_ £000 £000 £'000 E'OO_O £'000
S Bowler - CEO 350 37 94 29 10 520 350 27 - - 20 397
J Blaymires - COO 128 16 35 9 - 188 280 27 - - - 307
iTedder -CFe N4 b 32 ) 5 170 250 17 - - 6 283
Total - Executive Directors 592 64 161 46 15 878 380 71 - - 36 987

J Blayrmires resigned tror the Board wich effect from 14 June 2077,
1 Tedger resigned from the 8oard with efect from 24 June 2017

On 16 October 2017, S Bowler was made a Base Award under the 2016 EIP scheme over 388,889 ordinary shares in the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding long term mcentves held by the Directors who served during the pencd are set out in the table below:

Existing long term incentive arrangements:

At Number of aptions Asat Sarhest
Daie of 1 January o 31 Decerrber vesting Lapse
ExeCutive Director Regention i—f’\ij!1 o grant ) 5(1 17 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2017 cate 7 date
S Bowler 13/07/2015 175,000% - - - 175,000 13/07/2016 13/07/2023
J Blaymires** 13/07/2015 150,000* - - - 150,000 13/07/2016 13/07/2023
Asat
AL MNurnber of opticns date of Earliest
Jate of 1 Janaary “Lapsed/ resignation VESIINE Lapse
27(71'“ Leng Term ncentive Plan grant 2007 Grantec _Exerciced ) Waved ‘rom Ef}e Board ) date date
JTedder** 251172015 65,790* - - - 65,790 25/11/2018 25/11/2025
AL Nurber of shares Asar tarhest
Date of " Jancary 31 December VeSTNE Lapse
2016 Fxecutive neentave Plan grans 2017 Granted _exercised Lapsed i _date dare
S Bowler 30/03/2016 74076* - - - 74076 30/03/2071% 30/03/2024
16/10/2017 - 338,889 - - 388,_8789 16/10/2020 16/10/2@
74076% 388,889 - - 462965 _
J Blaymires** 30/03/2016 59,261 - - - 59,261 30/03/2019 30032026
J Teddere 30/03/2016 52912* - - - 52,912 3000372019 30/03/2026

* Re-siated to account ter the Share Caprtal Consohicaticn & Sub-Drasicn =4 June 2017

*+ As ar cate of resignation from the 3aard

1Gas Energy plc Annual repart and accounts 2017
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The Non-executive Directors are employed under rolling contracts with notice periods of three months, under which they are not entitled to any

pension, benefits or bonuses

Year ended 31 December 2077

Yearendec 31 December 2006

Taxable Taxable

Emoluments benefits Pensicns Total Srachoments benefis Pensions Toral
Non-executive Directors £000 o _E'OOO £'000 £'000 £000 N £000 000 £000
F Gugen 60 - - 60 105 - - 105
R McTighe- 100 - - 100 4 - - 41
JBryant” 43 - - 43 75 - - 75
C McDowell 60 - - 60 60 - - 60
P Jackson? 30 - - 30 - - - -
T Kumar? o 25 - - 25 - - - -
Total - Non-executive Directors 318 - - 318 281 - - 281

= Gugen resignied from the Board with effect trom 4 June 2077
< McTighe was appanted o the Board on 3 August 2016
J Bryant resigned trom the Board with effect fram “4 dune 2017

2 Jackson and T Kurrar were both appointed to the Boare with effect from 26 April 2017 Linder the terms o ther appontrrents. Gas Energy plc pays an annual “ee
{Invoicec quarterly In acvance) to Kerogen Capiial for £55,000 10 respect of P Jackson and £45,000 m respect of T Kumar

/L.

Philip Jackson
Chairman Remuneration Committee
20 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present thewr report together with the Group and Parent Company financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Business review and future developments
A review of the business and the future developments of the Group are presented in the Chairman’s statement, the Chief Executive’s statement,
the Chief Operating Otficer’s operating review and the Chief Financial Officer’s financial review which are all sections within the Strategic Report,

Pividends
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dvidend for the year (year ended 21 December 2016: £nil).

Principal activity
The Group’s principal area of activity 1s exploning for, appraising, developing and producing oil and gas.

Share capital
Details of changes to share capitai in the period are set out in note 25 to the consolidared financial statements.

Directors and their interests
The Directors who served during the year were as follows:

RMcTighe Non-executive Chairman

F Gugen Non-executive Chairman (resigned 14 June 2017)
S Bowler Chief Executive Officer

J Blaymires Chief Operating Officer {resigned 14 June 2017)
JTedder Chief Financial Officer {resigned 14 June 2017)

C McDowell Non-executive

P Jackson Non-executive (appomted 26 April 2017)

T Kumar Non-executive (appointed 26 April 2017)
JBryant Non-executive (resigned 14 June 2017}

The beneficial interest of each of the Directors and their immediate families in the ordinary share capital of the Company are shown below:

31 December 2017 31 Decernber 2016

_ Ordinary 0.002p Shares Ordinary "Op Shares
B o Nl;lmber % Nurrber %
RMcTighe 583,056 0.47 250,000 008
F Gugen (resigned 14 June 2017) nfa nfa 27615764 910
S Bowler 61,262 0.05 131,348 0.04
JBlaymires {resigned 14 June 2017) n/a nfa 8143 003
J Tedder {resigned 14 June 2017) nfa nfa 161,066 0.05

C McDowell 219,170 0.18 -

P Jackson (appointed 26 April 2017) - - n/a nfa
T Kumar (2ppointed 26 April 2017) - - n/a nfa
JBryant {resigned 14 June 2017) nfa nfa 59,045 0.02

The shareholdings as at 31 December 2016 in the table above are before approval of the share consolidation and subdvision tabled at the Annual
General Meeting on 14 June 2017, Following the passing of the share conschidation and subdivision resclution, every 200 existing ordiary

shares of 0.0001 pence each (“Existing Ordinary Shares”) that were in 1ssue as at 6.00pm on 14 June 2017 were consclidated into one new
ordinary share of ¢.02 pence each and immediately subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of & 002 pence (the “New Ordinary Shares”}. Other than
the change in nominal value, the New Ordinary Shares ansing on implementation of the share consolidation had the same rights as the Existing
Ordinary Shares, including voting and other rights.

In addition to the table above, in January 2018, S Bowler subscribed to his full entitlement under the Group's share scheme and accordingly was
allotted 7,965 shares.

Rotation and re-election of Directors
In accordance with the Articles of Association, C McDowell and S Bowler retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-eiection.

Directors’ insurance and indemnity provisions

Subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006, the Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ insurance
to indemnify the Directors and officers against hability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties. Such provision remains in force
at the date of this report.

|Gas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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The Company indemnifies the Directors against actiens they undertzke or fail to undertake as Directors or officers of any Group company, to
the extent permissible for such indemnities to meet the test of a qualifying third party indemnity provision as provided for by the Companies Act
2006. The nature and extent of the indemnities 15 as described in Section 60 of the Company’s Articles of Association as adopted on 20 June
2016 These prowvisions remained in force throughout the period and reman in place at the date of this report.

Substantial shareholders
At 20 March 2018, in addition to the Directors’ mterests as set out above, the Company had recewved notification from the following institutions
of interests in excess of 3% of the Company’s 1ssued Ordinary Shares with voting rights:

o B - Nurber of shares B %
Kerogen General Partrer il Limited 33,964,100 278
KOG Investments S ARL. 18,207 480 142
Royal London AM 10,155,760 84
PLLG Investments Lirmited 5,163,985 4.2
Sand Grove Capital 4,566 084 37

Financial instruments

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash balances, borrowings, denvative instruments and other debtors and creditors that arise
through the normal course of business as set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group’s financial nsk management
objectives are also set out in note 24 to the consoldated financial statements.

Employment policy

It 15 the policy of the Group to operate a fair employment policy. No employee or job appicant 1s less favourably treated than another on the
grounds of their sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status, religion, race, nationality, ethnic or national erigin, colour or disability and all
appointments and promotions are determined solely on ment, The Directors encourage employees to be aware of all issues affecting the
Group and place considerable emphasis on employees sharing in its success.

Political contributions
The Group made no political donations during the year (year ended 31 December 2016: £nil},

Status
The Company 15 not a close company as defined in the income and Corpaoration Taxes Act 1988,

The Company is domiciled in the UK and incorporated and registerad in England.

Board committees
Information on the Audit, Remuneration, Strategy and Nomination Committees 1s included in the Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Report.

Auditors
A resolution to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors will be proposed at the Annuat General Meeting at a fee to be agreed in due
course by the Audit Commuttee and the Board.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to the auditor

So far as each persan who was a Director at the date of approving this report s aware, there is no relevant audit information, being information
needed by the audirors in cannection with preparing its report, of which the auditors are unaware. Having made enquiries of fellow Directors,
each Director has taken all the steps that a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish thar the Company’s auditor are aware of that information.

By order of the Board

Cooley Services Limited

Secretary

IGas Energy plc

Registered Gffice:

7 Down Street

London

WI1J7AJ

Repistered in the United Kingdom number: 04981279
20 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION
TO THE GROUP ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repert and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the

Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and

Parent Company financeal statements in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European

Urion. Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view

of the state of affarrs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Parent Company for that period. In preparing

the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

& select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

® state whether applcable IFRSs as adopted by the European Unicn have been followed for the Group financial statements and IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned in
the financial statements;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the Group and Parent Company will
continue 1N business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the Group and Parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the hinancial position of the Group and Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The Directars are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Parent Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
far the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Parent Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, bafanced and understandable and provides the
Information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and Parent Company’s performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors’ Report, confirm that, to the best of thewr knowledge:

e the Parent Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, llabilities, financial position and profit of the Company;

¢ the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair
view of the assets, habiiities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

s the Directors’ Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and Parent
Company, together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that it faces.

On behaif of the Board,

By e

Stephen Bowler
Chief Executve Officer
20 March 2018

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IGAS ENERGY PLC

Report on the audit of the Group financial statements

Opinion

Inour cpinion, 1Gas Energy plc’s Group financial statements (the “financial statements™) -

e gve a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,
e have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

# have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2017; the Consoldated Income Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Cquity for the year then ended; and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (“ISAs {UK)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK are further described in the Auditors’ responsibiities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirernents that are refevant to our audit of the financial statermnents
i the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach

Overview

Materiality » Overall Group matenality: £1,200,000 (2016, £1,100,000), based on 0.5% of total asscts.
Audit scope » We dentified six components out of the Group’s 28 separate statutory entities/combinations

thereof, which were selected due to their size and nisk characteristics
Specific audit procedures were performed on certain balances and transactions at a further
three units.
# This enabled us to obtan coverage over 99% of Group consolidated revenue and 94%
of Group consohdated total assets.

e Carrying value of conventional ol and gas assets.

» Carrying value of unconventional assets and goodwill

» Completeness and valuation of the decommissioning provision.
& Basis of going concern.

e Refinancing,

tGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IGAS ENERGY PLC CONTINUED

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined matenality and assessed the risks of matenal misstatement in the financial statements. In particular,
we looked at where the Directors made subjective jJudgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are Inherently uncertan.

As in all of our audits we also addressed the nisk of management override of internal controls, Including evaluating whether there was evidence of
bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors' professional jJudgement, were of most significance 1n the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
dentified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the aliocation of resources in the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete hist of all nsks identified by our audit,

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Carrying value of conventicnal We have evaluated the discounted cash flow model prepared by management which supports
cil and gas assets the carrying value of the CGU's (North, South and Scotland).
See page 65 te 72 Significant accounting We agreed the forecast oil price to third party consensus forecasts. We concluded
judgements and estymates and note 11 management’s price forecast was reasonable.

Property, plant and equipment.
Management’s production forecasts, another key assumption, were reconciled to the
Conventional ol and gas assets totalled independent reserves report prepared by Degolyer and Macnaughton (“D&M™) in July 2016
£91.7 millicn These represent 98% of the and updated for production during the year.
Group’s total property, plant and eguipment.
We focused on this area due to the material We have analysed forecast production changes from the D&M report and challenged
nature of the balance, the judgement involved  management on the feasibility of planned capital projects which are predicted ta increase
i assessing for impairment and the current production, and we consider these assumptions to be supportable.
economic chmate.
In addition we independently benchmarked inputs into the weighted average cost of capital
calculation used to calcutate the discount rate used in the model, and found these inputs to be
consistent with management’s.

Finally we considered the adequacy of management’s disclosure of the key judgements and
sensitivities in relation to the impairment assessment in note 11. These were deemed to be in
line with the requirements of IAS 36.

Carrying value of unconventional
assets and goodwill

See page 65 to 72 Significant accounting
judgements and estimates and note 10
Intangible exploraticn and evaluation asset,

The carrying value of the Group's
unconventional assets was £115.1 million,

in addition the Group has £4.8 millien of
goodwill assigned to the unconventional
assets acquired on the acquisition of Dart
Energy Limited in October 2014, These
represent 94% of the Group's total intangible
exploration and evaluation assets, We focused
on this area due to the material nature of the
balance, the judgement involved in assessing
for impairment and the current economic
chmate.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

We have evaluated management’s valuation which supports the carrying value of the
uncenventional assets and assigned goodwill.

The methodology used to determine the fair value of the unconventional assets and goodwill
was determined by reference to the price per bef paid In recent transactions, and estimates of
resources prepared by D&M. We consider these assumptrons to be supportable.



Completeness and valuation of the
decommissIoning provision

See page 65 to 72 Significant accounting
Jjudgements and estimates and note 20
Prowvisions.

A provision of £42.1 million has been made
for the abandonment of fields and the
gathering centres. The abandonrment and
decommissionings are expected to take place
between 1and 31 years from the year end.

Basis of gomng concern

See page 65 to 72 Significant accounting
Judgements and estimates.

During the year, the strength of the Group's
balance sheet was improved significantly by
the capital restructuning which was completed
i April 2017 and as a result management
concluded that the Group s a going concern
for at least 12 months from the date of
signing the financial statements,

Refinancing
See note 25 Share Caprtal.

At 31 December 2016, the Company had
secured and unsecured bonds, listed on Oslo
Bors, of £125 millon and announced to the
market that the Company expected to be
non-compliant wath 1ts leverage covenants at
31 December 2016 and that it also expected
to breach its liquidity covenant in late

March 2077, The Group engaged with their
bondholders, a strategic investor and other
stakeholders to consider possible restructure
opticns to remedy the expected covenants
breach and also achieve a capital structure
that will be sustainable in the current ol

price ervironment. In March 2017, the Group
announced the final terms of the restructunng
and fundraising and this was subsequently
approved by the secured and unsecured
bondholders and shareholders on 3 April
2017 Thus resulted in the extinguishment of a
significant portion of the debt and transaction
cost, a portion of which were capitalised
against the new debt and equity.

WWWIGASPLCCOM

We have reviewed the completeness of the number of wells included in management’s
estimate.

We have assessed management’s cost per well estimate and have reviewed the results of actual
decommissioning’s costs over the previous three years which support managements estimate

We have benchmarked the risk free rate used by management compared with industry practice.

Based on the procedures performed we concur with management that their assessment of the
decommissioning provision s reasonable.

We obtained management's cash flow forecast which supports their use of the going concern
basis of accounting. We tested the integrity of this model, including mathematical accuracy,
and confirmed key assumptions such as forecast sales revenue and operating costs were
consistent with impairment models (discussed above). Any differences were investigated We
also considerad tustorical accuracy of management’s forecasting.

Based on the work performed we concurred with management’s assumption that Group 1s a
going concern for at least 12 months from the date of signing the financial statements.

We have identified two key judgements in assessing the accounting for the restructuring and
fundraising.

We firstly assessed whether there was an extinguishment or modification of the bonds,
Due to the substantially revised bond terms we concur with management’s that this was an
extnguishment.

Secondly we considered the treatment of the transaction costs and concur with management’s

treatment whereby:

e only directly attributable costs have been deducted from equity;

e directly attnbutable transaction costs have been allocated between the extinguished and new
bonds on a reasonable basis; and

« other transaction costs have been expensed.

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IGAS ENERGY PLC CONTINUED

How we tailored the audit scope
we tarlored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whaole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which it operates.

The Group 1 structured along two segments being conventional and unconventional licenses. The Group financial statements are a consolidation
of 28 separate statutory entitiesfcombinations therecf, comprising the Group’s operating businesses and centralised functions within these
segments. All of the Group’s operating business and 94% of the total assets and liabilities are located in the UK. All the Group entities have central
management and centralised processes and controls and therefore our audit work was alf conducted solely in the UK.

Accordingly, of the Group’s 28 reporting units, we identified 6 which, in our view, reguired an audit of therr complete financial information, either
due 1o thewr size or therr risk charactenstics This included the main conventional oil & gas operating subsidiaries, the man unconventional hcense
ho'ding subsidharies, as welf as the Parent Company Specific audit procedures on certan balances and transactions were performed at a further 3
reporting units. Because the Group includes a number of refatively small reporting units, this gave us coverage over 99% of consolidated revenue
and 54% coverage over total assets. This, together with additional pracedures performed at the Group level, gave us the evidence we needed for
our opinion on the Group financial statements as a whole.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by cur application of materiality. We set certain quantitative threshclds for matenality. These, together
with qualitaeive considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, trming and extent of our audit procedures on the
individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstaternents, both indimdually and in aggregate on the
financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial staterments as a whole as follows:

Overall Group materiality £1,200,000 (2076: £1,100,000)
How we determined it 0.5% of total assets.
Ratlonale for benchmark applied We believe that total assets are reflective of the entity’s current operations and has more

relevance than earnings to shareholders

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materality that is less than our overall Group materiality. The range of
materality allocated across components was between £300,000 and £1,000,000. Certain compoenents were audited to a local statutory audit
materalty that was also less than our overall Group matenality.

We agread with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £60,000 (2076, £55,000)
as well as misstatements below that amoeunt that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters n relation to which ISAs (LK) require us to report to you when,

« the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting n the preparation of the financial statements 1s not appropriate; or

o the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least 12 menths from the date when the financel
statements are authorised for 1ssue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Groups ability to continue
as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the infformation in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and cur auditors’ report
thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the finanoal statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit Opimon of, except to the oxtent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.

In connectoicn with cur audit of the finanaial statements, our responsibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information 1s materially incansistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent rmaterial inconsistency or materal misstatement, we arc required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there 1s a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report based on these responsibilitics.
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With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we alse considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us aiso to report certam
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2017 1s consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements,

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify any
material misstatements in the Strategrc Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Birectors’ Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 54, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements in accerdance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors
are also responsible for such internal control as they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but
Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materal If, indmidually or in the aggregare, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financal statements 1s locared on the FRC's website at: www. frc.org, uk/
auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report,

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no cther purpose. We da net, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent In writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companres Act 2006 we are required to repert to you if, in our opinion,

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made.

We have no exceptions ta report ansing from this responsibility.

We have reported separately on the Company financial statements of 1Gas Energy pic for the year ended 31 December 2017,

Richard Spilsbury

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

20 March 2018

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017

LHOdIE 21931v8.S

JIDNYNYIAOD 3LVHOGH0D)

SINIWILVLS TYIDNYNIL

59



60

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Year Year
ended enced
31December 3! December
2017 2076
e e Notes £000  _ #000
Revenue i 35,793 30,477
Cost of sales:
Depletion, depreciation and amaortisation (7.832) (6,323)
Other costs of sales L o o (21,435)  (20857)
(29,267) (27180
Gross profit 6,526 3,291
Administrative expenses (6,441) (11,406}
Redundancy costs 4 (212) (557
Exploration and evakuation assets written off 10 (70) (4,485)
Loss on oil price derivatives 3 (2,050) (3,496}
Otherincome o S ~ S5 m 660
Operating loss 3 (2,033) (15,993)
Finance ncome 6 277 277
Finance costs 6 (6,428)  (29057)
Ganonrestructunng o 283 4935 -
Loss from continuing activities before tax (3,249) (44773
Income tax credit o S 718105 13,006
Profit/(loss) after tax from continuing operations attributable to equity 15,856 (31,767
Loss after tax from discontinued operations o 16 (375) (44
Net profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders’ equity o L 15,481 (32911)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders:
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 8 12.76p (21974
Diluted earnings/{lcss) per share 2 12.46p (21974p)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Year

ended

31 December

2017

S L o %000

Profit/(loss) for the year 15,481
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:

Currency transtation adjustments recycled to the Income statement -

Other currency translation adjustments o ) 931

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 16,412

Year

enced

31 Decerber
06

105
(1,237

(34037)

The notes on pages 64 to 92 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

WWWIGASPLC.COM

31 Cecember 3" December
2017 06
Notes £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwil 9 4,801 4,801
Intangible exploration and evatuation assets 10 115,130 112,448
Property, plant and equipment 11 93,158 97709
Restricted cash 15 303 -
Deferred tax asset 7 16,900 -
230292 214958
Current assets
Inventories 13 1,322 1,270
Trade and other recevables 14 7,459 7015
Cashand cash equivalents 15 15,727 24,946
Restricted cash 15 126 -
— . _ ... 24634 33731
Total assets - - 254926 2437189
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (6,558) (8,170)
Current tax labilities (358) (1,318)
Borrowings 18 (1,687) (6,084}
Otheriiabilities 19 - (113}
Derwvative financial instruments 24 (2,749) (876)
(1,352)  (16459)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 (19,553) (118,495}
Other creditors 17 (303) -
Deferred tax provision 7 - (1,779
Otherprovisions _ . _ 0 _@nr) (3034
(61,973)  (161198)
Total liabilities (73,325) (177657}
Net assets 181,601 70,532
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 25 30,333 30,282
Share premium account 26 102,342 32
Foreign currency translation reserve (7,059) (7,990}
Other reserves 27 20,994 28,757
Accumulated surplus 25,991 19,451
Total equity 181,601 70,532

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 20 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

& J%Zjigﬁ d A “-/““”“/ '

Stephen Bowler Julian Tedder
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The notes on pages 64 to 92 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017/

Share Foreign
Callec up premium Caprtal currency Other  Accumulated
share capstal acrount redemption translaticn reservest* {defcit)! Total
{note 25) (note 2&) reserve reserve” (nate 273 surplus edulty
£000 £000 £D00 £000 £000 £0O0  £G00
AL 1 January 2016 29,882 121,623 64,882 (6864) 23544 (134296} 98771
Loss for the year - - - - - (32511 (32911)
Capital reduction - (121.776) (64,882) - - 186,658 -
Employee share pians (note 27} - - - - 5,344 - 5,344
Forfeiture of LTIPs under the employee
share plan (note 27} - - - - (131) - (3n
issue of shares (note 25) 400 185 - - - - 585
Currency translation adjustments - - - (128 - - {1126)
Ar31 December 2016 30,282 32 - (7.990) 28,757 15,451 70,532
Profit for the year - - - - - 15,481 15,481
Employee share plans (note 27) - - - - 1,333 - 1,333
Forfeiture of LTIPs under the empioyee
share plan (note 27) - - - - (85) 56 (29)
Lapse of LTIPs under the employee share plan - - - - (1) n -
Issue of shares and conversion of debt (note 25} 51 93,302 - - - - 93,353
Reserves transfer an equitisation
of unsecured bonds*** - 9,008 - - - (9,008} -
Currency translation adjustrments - - - 931 - - 931
At 31 December 2017 20,333 102,342 - (7,05%9) 29,994 25,991 181,601

" The ‘ureign currency translabion reserve represents exchange gains anc losses ansing on translanon of foreign carrency subsidianes” net assets and results anc on translaton of those
subsicianes’ intercompany balances which form part of the net investrment of the Group

** Other reserves include 1) E A/MRPILTISNVCAEDIRP reserves which represent the cost of share options issued under the long term incentive plans, 23 share investment plan
reserve which represents the cost of the partnership anc matching shares, 3) treasury shares reserve which represents ihe cost o shares i Gas Friergy plc purchased in the
rrarket and helc by rhe Gas Employee 2enefit Trust 1o satisfy awards held under the Group incentive plans, ang 43 capital concnbuoon reserve which arase following the acquisinien
of :Gas Explacation JK 1imites

* ¢ The rransfer on equitisation of unsecured bands has arsen due te the unsecured bondy beng aued at 60% of par and represents the difference between the nominal valie of rhe
shares 1ssLed anc the book value oF the debt exchanged

The notes on pages 64 to 92 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Year Year
ended endes
31December 3" Decerber
2017 2016
. o Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Loss before rax (3,299) (44773
Write off deferred consideration 5 - {420)
Net gain on capital restructuring 28 (4,935) -
Depletion, depreciation and amortisation n 7,968 6,474
Decommissioning costs incurred 20 - 418)
Other provisions utilised 20 (39 -
Share based payment charge 27 1,056 3,499
Exploration and evaluatron assets written off 10 70 4,485
Unrealised loss on oil price dervatives 3 1,872 11,965
Finance income 6 (277) (277)
Finance costs 6 6,428 29,057
Other non-cash adustments 24 3
Operating cash flow before working capital movements 8,918 9,583
Decrease in trade and other recewvables and other financial assets 40 3,366
(Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables, net of accruals related to Investing activities (2,084) 698
Increase in inventories - N _ {52) (178)
Cash generared from continuing operating actwvities o 6,822 13471
Cash generated fromy/{used 1) discontinued operating activities 422 (489)
Taxation paid - continuing Gperating activiies _ _ (571) (559}
Net cash generated from operating activities 6,673 12,423
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of intangible exploration and evaluation assets (2,591) {2,304)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,679) (6,509)
Disposal of subsidiary - (171
Disposal of oll and gas assets 14 22
Ingerest recerved N 27 34
Cash used in continuing investing activities (6,229 (8,928)
Cash used in discontinued investing activities - Q77
Net cash used in investing activities (6,229) {3,105
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 25 77 136
Cash proceads from the ssue of shares in capital restructuning 28 46,789 -
Cash paid in settlernent of secured bonds 28 (39,337) -
Fees pard relating to capital restructure 28 (4,311) -
Repayment and repurchase of borrowings 28 (5,423) (4,918)
Sale of bonds - 4914
Interestpad (5,917) (11,5700
Net cash used in financing activities (8,122) (11,436
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents inthe year (7,678) 8118)
Net foreign exchange difference {1,541) 4450
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 24,946 28,614
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 15,727 24,946

The notes on pages 64 to 92 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of 1Gas Energy plc (the “Company™) and subsidiaries (the “Group™) have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, adopted for use by the European Union (“IFRSs”) as they apply to the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and with the Companies Act 2006, The accounts were approved by the Board and authorised for
1ssue on 20 March 2018, IGas Energy plc 1s a public imited company incerporated and registered in England and Wales and histed on the
Alternative investment Market (“AIM™)

The Group financial statements are presented in UK pounds sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000) except when
otherwise indicated.

New and amended standards and interpretations
During the year, the Group adopted the following new and amended IFRSs which were applicable to the Group’s activities as of 1 January 2017
but not yet endorsed by the EU.

* Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Cash flow statements’, regarding the Disclosure initrative (Not yet EU endorsed)

e Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes', regarding recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses.
(Not yet EU endorsed)

¢ Annual improvements 2014-2016 IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interest in other entities’ (Not yet EU endorsed)

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory only for the Group’s
accounting pencds beginming on or after 1 January 20718 or later periods and which the Group has not adopted early. Those that may be
applicable to the Group in future are as follows:

IFRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions - Amendment to IFRS 2 1 January 2018*
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018*
IFRS S Financial Instruments 1 January 2018%
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019+
IFRS 0 and IAS 28 Sale or Contnibution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — Postponed indefinitely*

Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28.

¥ The effective dates statec above are those given in the onginal IASB/FRIC standards and interpretations. 4s the Group prepares its financial staterents in accordance wich IFRS as
adopied by the Furapean Linion (EL). the apphcaton or new standards and interpretations will be subject to their having been endorsec for use in the £U wia the FU endcrsement
mecharusm In the majonty of cases this wall result in an efective care consistent with that given in the onginal standard or interpreration but the need for endorsement restricts the
Group's discretion oo carly adopt standards

The Group has assessed the impact of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 amendments, and considers these not to be significant. The Group 15 stifl assessing the
impact of IFRS 16 amendments on its financial positron. The Group does not anticipate adopting these standards and interpretations ahead of
their effective dates.

(b) Going concern

The strength of the Group's and Company’s balance sheet has been improved significantly by the capital restructuning as disclosed in note 28 to
the financial statements. Based on their strategic plans and working capital forecasts, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
and the Company have adequate rescurces te continue In existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in the preparation of the financial statements.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financral statements present the results of 1Gas Energy plc and its subsidianes as if they formed a single entity. The financial
statements of subsidianes used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting palicies to the parent
All ntercompany transactions and balances between Group companies, including unrealised profits ansing from them, are eliminated i full.
Where shares are 1ssued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company 1s the sponsoring entity, it is treated as an extension of the entity.

AL 31 December 2017, the Group comprised the Company and entities controlled by 1Gas Energy ple (its subsidiaries) . No new subsidiaries were
acquired during the year
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1 Accounting policies continued

(d) Business combinations

Business combinaticns are accounted for using the acquisition methed. The cost of the acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the farr
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assurmed and equity Instruments ssued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquires. The acqurree’s identifiable assets, habilities and contingent Irabilities that meet the conditions for recagrition under
IFRS 3 are recogrised at their far value at the acquisition date. Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured

at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiabie assets,
lizbilities and contingent liabilities recogrised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
labilities and contingent habilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in the Income statement.
Acquisition costs are expensed and shown as a separate hne 1n the income statement.

{e) Joint arrangements

Certain of the Group’ heence interests are held jointly with others under arrangements whereby unincorporated and jointly controlled ventures
are used to explore, evaluate and ulimately develop and produce from its oil and gas interests. Accordingly, the Group accounts for its share of
assets, abilities, income and expenditure of these joint operations, classified in the appropriate balance sheet and income statement headings,
except where its share of such amounts remain the responsibility of another party in accordance with the terms of carried interests as described
at (1) below.

Where the Group enters into a farm-in agreement involving a licence in the exploration and evaluation phase, the Group records all costs that
It iIncurs under the terms of the joint operating agreement as amended by the farm-in agreement as they are incurred.

Where the Group enters into a farm-cut agrecment involving a licence in the exploration and evaluation phase, the Group does not record
any expenditure made by the farmee on its account. It alse does not immediately recognise any gain or 1oss on its exploration and evaluation
farm-out arrangements, but redesignates any costs previously capitafised in relation to the whole interest as relating to the partial interest
retained. Any cash consideration receved directly from the farmee 1s credited against costs previously capitalised in relation to the whole
interest with any excess accounted for by the farmor as a gain on disposal.

When the Group, acting as an operator or manager of a joint arrangement, receves reimbursement of direct costs recharged to the jont
arrangement, such recharges represent reimbursements of costs that the operator incurred as an agent for the joint arrangement and therefore
have no effect on profit or loss.

(f) significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements and
estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities ar the date of the consolidated
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are
continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual cutcomes can differ from these estimates

In particular, the Group has «dentfied the following areas where significant judgements and estimates are required, and where If actual results
were to differ, this could materaally affect the financial position or financial resuits reported in a future period. Further information on each of
these and how they impact the vanous accounting policies are described in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

Recoverable value of intangible exploration and evaluation assets

The Group has capitalised intangible exploration and evaluation assets in accordance with IFRS &, which are evaluated for imparrment as
described at (1) below. Any impairment review, where required, involves estimates and assumptions related to matters (when appropriate)

such as recoverable reserves, production profiles, review of forward oil, gas and slectricity prices, development, operating and off-take costs,
nature of land access agreements and planning permissions, application of taxes and other matters. Where the final cutcome or revised estimates
related to such matters differ from the estimates used m any earlier impairment reviews, the results of such differences, to the extent that they
actually affect any imparrment provisions, are accounted for when such revisions are made. Details of the Group’s intangible exploration and
evaluation assets are disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

(f) Significant accounting judgements and estimates continued

Recoverable value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the Group’s property, plant and equipment at least annually for impairment indicatars. The determination of recoverable
amounts in any resulting impairment test requires judgement around key assumptions. Key assumptions in the impairment models include those
related to pnices that are based on forward curves and long-term corporate assumptions thereafter, discount rates that are risked to reflect
conditions specific to indwviduat assets, future costs, both capital and operating that are based on management’s estimates having regard to past
experience and the known characteristics of the indmdual assets, reserves and future production, discussed further below. Detalls of the Group's
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements,

Recoverable value of goodwill

The Group assesses goodwill each reporting period to determine whether there 15 any impairment. The assessment requires the use of estimates
and assumptions such as long-term oll prices, discount rates, reserves, production profiles and capital expenditure. These estimates and
assumptions are subject to risk and uncertainty. Therefore, there 1s a possibility that changes in circumstances will impact these projections,
which may impact the recoverable value of goodwill. Details of the Group’s goodwill are disclosed 1in note 9 to the financial statements.

Proved and probable reserves and contingent resources

The volume of proved and probable oil and gas reserves is an estimate that affects the unit of production depreciation of producing ¢il and gas
property, plant and equipment as well as being a significant estimate affecting decommissioning provisions, impairment calculations and the
valuation of ol and gas properties in business combinations. Contingent resources affect the valuaton of exploration and exploration assets
acquired in business combinations and the estimation of the recoverable value of those assets inimparment tests. Proved and probable reserves
and contingent resources are estimated using standard recognised evaluation techniques. Estimates are reviewed at least annually and are
regularly estimated by independent consultants. Future development costs are estimated taking into account the level of development required
to produce the reserves by reference to operators, where applicable, and internal engineers,

Deferred tax asset recognition

Deferred rax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that if 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recegnised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Estimates of future taxable profits
are based on cash flows expected to be generated from internal estimates of projected production and costs. Detalls of the Group’s deferred rax
assets, including those not recognised due to uncertainty regarding the future utiisation, are disclosed In note 7 to the financial statements.

Decommissioning costs

The estimated cost of decommissioning at the end of the producing lives of fields Is reviewed pericdically and 15 based on forecast price
levels and technology at the balance sheet date. Provision 1s made for the estimated cost at the balance sheet date, using a discounted
cash flow methodology and a nisk free rate of return. Details of the Group’s decommissioning provisions are disclosed in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Functional currency

The determination of functional currency often requires significant judgement where the primary economic environment in which a company
operates may not be clear. The parent entity reconsiders the functional currency of its entities if there 1s a change in the underlying transactions,
events and conditions which determines the primary economic environment.

(g) Exceptional items
Exceptional items are material items of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, due to therr nature and infrequency require
separate identification on the face of the income statement to allow a better understanding of the financial performance in the year,

(h) Revenue

Revenue comprises the invoiced value of goods and services supphed by the Group, net of value added tax and trade discounts. Revenue

15 recognised in the case of oll, gas and electricity sales when goods are delivered and title has passed to the customer. This generally occurs
when the product 15 physically delivered to the customer’s premises or transferred into a vessel, pipe or other delivery mechanism.

Revenue from the production of ol from fields in which the Group has an interest with cther producers 1s recognised based on the Group’s
working interest and the terms of the relevant production sharing contracts. Where ol produced by third parties 1s processed and delwvered
to arefinery by the Group, the measurement of the revenue depends upon whether physical title to the ol passes to the Group or whether
the Group simply acts an agent for the producer.
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1 Accounting pelicies continued

(i) Non-current assets

Goodwill

Goodwll 1s iniially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregare of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired and habilities assumed in a business combination. After initial recognition, goodwill s measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwall 15 tested for impairment at least annually and when Circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be wnpaired. impairment

i1s determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash generating unit (“CGU™) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss 1s recognised. impairment losses relating
to goodwill are nat reversed in future periods.

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

The Group accounts for exploration and evaluation costs in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation

of Mineral Resources” as follows.

e Any costs incurred prior to obtaining the legal nghts to explore an area are expensed immediately to the income statement.

e Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets comprise those related to acquisition of nghts to explore, topographical,
geological, geochemical and geephysical studies, exploratory drilling (including coring and sampling), actmties in refation to evaluating the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting hydrocarbons (including appraisal dnling and production tests) and any land rights
acquired for the sole purpose of effecting these actvities. These costs include employee costs, directly attnbutable overheads, materials and
consumables, equipment costs and payments made to contractors,

e Tangible assets acquired for use in exploration and evaluation activities are classified as property, plant and equipment. However, 1o the extent
that such tangible assets are consumed in developing an ntangible exploration and evaluation asset, the amount reflecting that consumption
is recorded as part of the exploration and evaluation asset.

+ Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are intially accumulated and capitalised by reference to appropriate geographic
areas. Expenditure recognised as expioration and evaluation assets are transferred to property, plant and equipment and classified as oil and
gas assets when technical feasibility and cormmercial viabifity of extracting hydrocarbons 1s demonstrabie.

» Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment (on the basis described below), and any impairment loss recognised,
before reclassification.

Impairment testing of exploration and evaluation assets

Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are tested for imparment whenever facts and carcumstances suggest that they may
be imparred, which includes when a licence 1s approaching the end of s term and 1s not expected to be renewead, when there are no substantive
plans for cantinued cxploration or evaluation of an area, when the Group decides to abandon an area, or where development is likely to proceed
In an area but there are iIndications that the exploration and evaluation asset costs are unlikely to be recovered in full either by development or
through sale.

Property, plant and equipment - oil and gas properties

e Ol and gas properties and other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accurmulated depreciation and accumulated
Impairment losses.

o The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation and,
for quahfying assets where relevant, borrowing costs The purchase price of construchion cost 1s the aggregate amount pard and the fair value
of any other consideration given to acquire the asset. The cost of oil and gas assets also includes an amount equal to the decommussioning cost
estimate. The capitalised value of any associated finance leases are also included within property, plant and equipment.

o il and gas properties are depleted either on a unit of production basis, commencing at the start of commercial preduction, or depreciated
on a straight line basis over the relevant asset’s estimated useful life. Where expenditure 15 depreciated on a untt of production basis, the
depletion charge 1s calculated according to the proportion that preduction bears to the recoverable reserves for each property

* Net proceeds from any disposal of development/producing assets are compared to the previously capitalised costs for the relevant asset or
group of assets. A gain or loss on disposal of a development/producing asset s recognised in the income statement to the extent that the net
proceeds excead or are less than the appropriate portion of the net capitalised costs of the asset or group of assets.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

(i) Non-current assets continued

Impairment of oil and gas properties

The Group’s interests i cil and gas properuies are assessed for indications of impairment including events or changes in circumstances which
ndicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Any impairment in value 15 charged to the income statement.

Impairment tests are carried out on the following basis:

e By comparing the sum of any amounts carried 1n the books as compared to the recoverable amount.

¢ The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The Group generally assesses the value in use
using the esnmated future cash flows which are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset or CGU.

s Where there has been a charge for impairment in an earlier pericd that charge will be reversed in a later pericd where there has been a change
In circumstances to the extent that the recoverable amount is higher than the net book value at the time. In reversing impairment losses, the
carrying amount of the asset will be increased to the lower of 1ts oniginal carrying value and the carrying value that would have been determined
{net of depletion) had nc impairment loss been recognised in pricr periods,

Decommissioning

Where a hability for the removal of production facilities or site restoration exists, a provision for decommissioning 1s recogrised. The amount
recognised is discounted to its present value and 15 reflected in the Group's nen-current liabilities, A corresponding asset s included in the
appropriate category of the Group’s non-current assets (Intangible explaration and evaluation assets and property, plant and equipmant)
depending on the accountng treatment adopted for the underlying operations/asset ieading to the decommissioning provision. The asset

s assessed for impairment and depleted in accordance with the Group’s policies as set out above.

Carried interests

Where the Group has entered into carried interest agreements in exploration and evaluation projects and the Group’s interest is being carried

by a third party, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements where expenditure incurred under such agreerents s not refundable
Where expenditure is refundable, out of what would but for the carry agreements have been the Group's share of production, the Group records
amounts as non-current assets, with a corresponding offset in current liabilities or non-current iiabilities, as appropriate, but only once 1t 1s
apparent that it is more Nkely than not that future production will be adequate to result in a refund under the terms of any carry agreement,

the Group records refunds only to the extent that they arc expected to be repayable.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost to the Group less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on such assets, with
the exception of freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated restdual values, over their estimated
useful lives at the following rates, with any impairment being accounted for as additional depreciation:

Equipment used for exploration and evaluation - between six and twelve years on a straight ne basis

Freehold land - indefinite useful iife

Bulldings/teasehold property improvements - over five to ten years on a straight line basisfover the period of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - between three and twenty years on a straight line basis

Mator vehicles - aver four years on a straight line basis

The Group does nat capitalise amounts considered to be immaterial
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1 Accounting policies continued

(j) Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term deposits at varable interest rates with
original maturity periods of up to three months. Any interest earned 15 accrued monthly and classified as interest income within finance income.

Other financial assets - restricted cash
Restricted cash relates to bond guarantees issued to governments for the performance under the terms of work programmes. Funds are only
classified as cash and cash equvalents when monies are transferred to and under the control of the Group.

Trade and other receivables
Trade recevables are initially recognised at fair value when related amounts are invoiced, then carried at this amount less any allowances
for doubtful debts or provision made for impairment of these recevables,

Trade and other payables
These financial haihties are all non-interest beanng and are initially recogmsed at the fair value of the consideranon payable.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into denvatives tO manage Its exposure to variability in the price realised on a proportion of its crude ail production.

All dernative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derwative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at therr fair value ar each period end. Apart from those dervatives designated as qualifying cash flow hedging instruments,

all changes in fair vaiue are recorded as financial income or expense In the year in which they arise, ctherwise they are recogrised in other
comprehensive Income.

Fair value 1s the amount for which a financial asset, hability or instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing parties in an
arem's length transaction, 1t 1s determined Dy reference to guoted market prices adjusted for estmated transaction costs that would be ncurred
in an actual transaction, or by the use of estabiished estimation techniques such as option pricing models and estimated discounted values of
cash flows. The fair value of derwative financial instruments has been calcutated on a discounted cash flow basis by reference to forward market
prices and risk free returns adjusted in the case of dervative financial liabilitres by an appropriate credit spread

Derivatives embedded in host contracts, such as warrants attached to loans, are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value

if their economic charactenistics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or

designated ar fair value though profit o loss. These embedded dervatives are measured ar fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
inceme statement.

Warrants

Warrants which do not qualify as equity instruments under 1AS 39 due to the variable number of shares that would be issued in each case
are accounted for as financial liabilities. The warrants are initially recognised at fair value on the date they are issued and are subsequently
re-measured to fair value at each period end. All changes in fair value are recognised in the Income starement.

Impairment of financial assets

Provision for impairment of financial assets is made when there is objective evidenice (such as the probability of insclvency or significant financial
difficuities of the debtor) that the Group will not be able 1o collect all of the amounts due. Impared debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

{k) Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR™) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the habilities are
derecogmsed as weil as through the EIR amortisation process. When management estimates of the amounts or timmgs of cash flows are revised,
borrowings are re-measured using the revised cash flow estimates under the original effective interest rate with any consequent adjusiment being
recognsed in the income statement.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation 1s included in finance costs in the income statement,

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessanly take
a substantiai peniod of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 1s deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capizalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the ncome statement in the periods in which
they are incurred,

(1) Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement 1s, or contains a lease 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date including
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific assct or assets or the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset.

Operating leases
Rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are included in tangible fixed assets at their capitat value and depreciated over their useful lives. Capital value

Is defined as the amount equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease. Lease payments consist of capital and finance charge elements, the finance charge element 1s charged
to the Income statement.

{m) Inventories

Inventones, consisting of crude o, and drilhng and maintenance matenals, are steted at the lower of cost and ret realisable value. Costs comprise
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to therr present location and condition, Weighred
average cost 1s used to determine the cost of ordinarily inter-changeable items.

{n) Taxation
The tax charge/credit includes current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expectad to be recovered or paid to the tax authonties, Taxable profit/{ioss)
differs from the profit/ (loss) before taxation as reported 10 the Income statement as £ excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in different periods and ttems that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's lability for current tax is calcuiated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date except when

the deferred tax liability anses from the inizial recognition of goodwill or an asset or hability i a transaction that s not a business combmation
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Temporary differences arise from differences
ar the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
fabulivies are not discounted. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 15 regarded as more Tkely than not that they will be recovered
and the carrying amount 1s reviewed at each reporting date. Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax
assers and habilinies are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the hability 15 settled, based
O the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss are recognised n correiation to the underlying transaction, erther in other comprehensive incorme or directly in equity.
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1 Accounting policies continued

(o) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees including Directors, the fair value of the options or warrants at the date of the
grant 15 recorded in equity over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions, but only those related to service and performance, are taken
nto account by adjusting the number of equity Instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulatve
amount recognised over the vesting penod 15 based on the number of options that eventually vest. All other vesting condiuians, including market
vesting conditions, are factored into the fair value of the options or warrants granted. As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, the
amount recorded s computed rrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative amount recognised Is not
adjusted for the failure to achieve a market vesting condition although equity no longer required for options or warrants may be transferred

o another equity reserve,

LY0Od3Y DI931vY LS

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the opticns, measured
by the change from immediately before to after the modification, 1s alse recorded in equity over the remaining vesting period,

When an equity-settled award 15 cancelled, it 1s treated as f it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised on the
award 15 recognised immediately

Where an equity settled award 18 identfied as a replacement it will be treated as a modification to the onginal plan where the incremental farr
value of the replacement award Is expensed over the vesting period of the replacement award. The fair value of the original award on 1ts grant
date continues to be recognised over its onginal vesting period.

FONYNHIAOD 100D

Where equity instruments are granted o persons other than employees, the amount recognised in equity 1s the fair value of goods and
services received,

Charges corresponding to the amounts recognised in equity are accounted for as a cost aganst profit and loss unless the senvices rendered
qualify for capitalisation as a non-current asset, Costs may be capitalised within non-current assets In the event of services being rendered In
connection with an acquisition of infangible exploration and evaluation assets or property, plant and equipment.

Where shares are issued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company s the sponsoring entity, the value of such shares at issue will be
recorded in share capital and share premum account in the ordinary way, but will not affect shareholders’ funds since this same value will be
shown as a deduction from sharchoiders’ funds by way of a separate component of equity.

SLNIWILVLS TVIDNYNI4

(p) Post-retirement benefits

A subsidiary within the Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The amount charged to the mcome statement represents the contrbutions payable to the scheme
in respect of the accounting perod.

(q) Equity
Equity instruments issued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs, and allocated between called
up share capital and share premium accounts as apprapriate.

(r) Foreign currency

The consolidated financial staternents are presented in UK pound sterhing, the functional currency of the Group. Transactions denominated in
currencies other than functional currency are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and habilities
dencrminated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences that arise are recorded
In the Income statement.

For the purposes of consolidation, the income statement items of those entities for which the UK pound sterling is not the functional currency
are translated into UK pound sterling at the average rates of exchange during the period. The related balance sheets are translated at the rates
ruiing at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing on translation of the opening net assets and results of such operations are reported
in other comprehensive Income and accurmulated in equity.

The exchange differences ansing on intercompany balances that form part of an entity’s net investment in a foreign operation, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal of the foreign operation

On disposal of entities with a different functional currency to the Company's functional currency, the deferred cumulative exchange differences
recognised In equity relating to that particular operation would be recognised in the income statement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued

(s) Discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered prinaipally through a sale
rather than through continuing use. Such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs 1o dispose are the incremental costs directly attrbutable to the sale, excluding the finance
costs and income tax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group 1s available for
immediate distribution in its present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it 1s unlikely that sigmificant changes
to the sale will be made or that the sale will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale being expected within one year from the
date of the classification.

Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale. Assets and habilities
classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items 0 the statement of financial position,

A disposal group qualifies as a discontinued operation if it 15 a component of an entity that erther has been disposed of, or 1s classified as held
for sale, and:

s Represents a separate majer line of business or geographical arca of cperations;

¢ Is part of asingle co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

e s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a singfe amount as profit or loss after tax
from discontinued operations in the income statement. All other notes to the financial statements Include amounts for continuing operatiens,
unless atherwise mentioned.

2 Revenue
All revenue, which represents turnover, arises solely within the United Kingdom and relates to external parties.

Year Year

ended enged

31December 3" Decemnber

2017 20°8

. . i £000 _ 7EU@
Cilsales 35,289 30,009
Electricity sales 7 o ) 7 504 462

35,793 30,471

Revenues of approximately £19.3 million and £15.9 millon were derived from the Group’s two largest customers {2016: £17.6 million and
£12 4 milbon},
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Year Year
ended enced
31 Decemmber 31 December
2017 2016
- 8000 £000
Operating loss 1s stated after charging;
Staff costs 12,781 16,050
Depietion, depreciation and amorhisation 7,957 6,474
Refinancing costs - 2969
Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit of the financial statements 300 180
Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 127 &0
Taxation advisory services 102 10
Cther non-audt services 163 176%
Operating lease charges:
Landand buldings 2,093 2,015
Other 229 256
* Ozher nep-audic services include £0 08 rrillion parc to the previous audirors for 2016 intenim review
Loss on oil price derivatives
Year Year
ended endec
31December 3" Decerber
2017 2016
S - _ £000  Fooo
Realised (loss)/gain on maturity (178) 8473
Unrealised loss - (1,872) (11,969)
(2,050) (3,496)
4 Employee information
Year Year
ended endexd
31 December 31 Decerber
2017 2016
o B . S £000 £000
Staff costs compnised:
Wages and salaries 9,648 9,013
Social security costs 1,129 1070
Other pension costs 773 802
@ployee share based payment cost 1,231 5,225
12,781 16,050
I No. [N[o]
Average monthly number of employces inciuding Directors inthe year
Operations, Including services s M6
Admunistrative 42 46
160 162

A proportion of the Group's staff costs shown above s capitalised as additions to intangible exploration and evaluation assets and property,
plant and equipment in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. In addition, a proportion 1s recharged to JOINE venture partners as part

of our timewriting rate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration, Directors’ fransactions and Directors’ intergsts are set out In the audited section of the Directors’

Remuneration Repert which forms part of these financial statements.

The Group recognised £0.2 milion (2016: £0.6 million) of redundancy costs for the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

5 Other income

Other income Includes £0.2 mitlion relating tc rentat income (2016: £0.2 million relating to the rental income and £0 4 million relating to the

release of contingent deferred consideration as described in note 21)

6 Finance income and costs

Year Year
ended endea
31 December 31 December
2017 206
e - £000 £000
Finance income:
Interest on short-term deposits 26 63
Foreign exchange gains 239 -
Otherinterest 1 78
Gain on fair value of warrants (note 19) _ - - n 136
Finance income e 277 277
Finance expense.
Loss on sale of bonds (note 18) - 1,540
Interest on borrowings 5,358 11,930
Foreign exchange loss - 14,841
Unwinding of discount on provisions (note 20) ) 1,070 e
Finance expense 6,428 29057
7 Income tax credit
i) Tax charge on loss from continuing ordinary activities
Year Year
ended engec
31 December 3" Decerrber
2017 2014
_ £000 £000
Current fax:
Charge on loss for the year - -
Creditin relation to prior years i (426) (149)
Jotal current tax credit B (426) (149}
Deferred rax:
Credit relating to the origination or reversal of temporary differences (21,180) (6,009}
Credit due tothe tax rate changes - (6,270}
Charge/{credity n relaton to prior years 2,501 (578)
IQtaI deferred tax credit (18,679)  (12,857)
Tax credit on loss on ordinary actrities {15,105) (13,0063

IGas Energy plc Annual report and accounts 2017



7 Income tax credit continued
i) Factors affecting the tax charge
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The majority of the Group's profits are generated by “ring-fence” businesses which attract UK corporation tax and supplementary charge at a

combined average rate of 40%.

A reconciliation of the UK statutory corporation tax rate applied to the Group's loss before tax to the Group's total tax credit 1s as follows:

Loss from continuing ordinary activities before tax

Expected tax credit based on loss from conbnuing ordinary actvites multiphed by an average

Year

ended

31 December
2017

£000

Year

ended

3" December
20

£000

(3,249) (44773

rate of corporation tax and supplementary charge in the UK of 40% (2016: 40%) (1,300) (17,90%)
Deferred tax charge/(credit) in respect of the prior year {2,501) (578)
Current tax credit related to prior year (426) (149)
Tax effect of expenses not allowable for tax purpaoses /(iIncome not taxable) 616 2,926
Tax effect of differences in amounts not allowable for supplementary charge purposes* 1,467 945
Impact of profits or losses taxed or relieved at different rates (1,699) 3,093
Loss carned back - 75
Net {decrease)/increase in unrecognised losses carmed forward (20,347) 3961
Tax rate change - 6,270y
Cther ) i 20 -
Tax credit on loss on ordinary activities (19,105) (13,006)

Y Amounts not allowable for supplementary charge purpases relate ro net financing costs disaliowed for supplementary charge offset by investr-ent allowance which s geducrible

aganst prof ts subject tc supplermentary charge

iif) Deferred tax
The movement on the deferred tax liabity in the year 1s shown below:

Year ‘Year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2007 06
) _ ~ ) _ £000 £000
Liabilty at 1 January (1,779) (14,636)
Tax (charge)fcredit relating to prior year (2,501) 578
Tax credit during the year 21,180 6,009
Tax credit ansing due 1o the changes intax rates - 6,270
Asset/(liability) at 31 December 16,900 {1,779)
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax asset/(hability) by category of temporary difference:
31December 31 December
2017 2076
i B ) ~ £000 £000
Accelerated capral allowances (33,897) (34,2086)
Tax losses carried forward 41,553 22,522
Investment allowance unutilised 485 313
Decommissioning provision 4,628 6,348
Unrealised gains or losses on dervative contracts 2,843 2126
Share based payments ) i o 1,288 RAL
Deferred tax asset/(liability) 16,900 (1,779)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

7 Income tax credit continued

iv) Tax losses

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences where the Directors believe it 15 probable that
these assets will be recovered. Such tax losses include £107.5 milkon (2016: £67.4 millicn) of nng-fence corporation tax losses.

The Group has further tax losses and other similar attributes carried forward of approximately £195 million {2016: £210 milllion) for which no
deferred tax asset i recognised due to insufficient certainty regarding the availability of appropriate future taxable profits. The unrecogmised losses
may affect future tax charges should certain subsidianies in the Group generate taxable trading profits in future pericds.

8 Earnings per share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS amounts are based on the profit for the year after taxation attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of £15.5 millicn (2016:
a loss of £32.9 millon) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year of 121.4 rullion (2016: 299.5 million).

Diluted EPS amounts are based on the prefit after taxation attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent and the weighted average
number of shares cutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all
the potentially dilutive ordinary shares inte ordinary shares, except where these are anti-dilutive,

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were 1.6 million (restated based on the subdmision) potentaally ditutive employee share options,
LTIPs and warrants, which are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive as their conversion to

ordinary shares would decrease the loss per share.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations:

Year Year
ended ended
31 December 3" Decerber
e 2017 2016
Basic EPS ~ordinary shares of 0.002 pence each 12.76p {21974p)
Diluted EPS - ordinary shares of 0.002 pence each 12.46p (219.74p)
Profit/(loss) for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent - £000 15,481 (32.911)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in the year - basic EPS 121,357,572 14,977131
Weghted average number of ordinary shares in the year - diluted EPS 124,298,195 14977131
% Goodwill
31 December 31 Decerber
2017 7016
S _. __ Fooo 000
At 1 January and 31 December 4,801 4,801

The carrying value of goodwill relates to unconventional assets acquired as part of the Dart acquisition in 2014.

The Group tests goodwil! for impairment annually or more frequently if there are indications that gocdwill might be impaired. The Group reviewed
the valuation of gocdwill as at 31 December 2017 and assessed it for impairment by estimating the fair value of risked contingent resources using
an estimated market valuation of resources. The fair value 1s a level 3 fair value measurement, as defined in note 24. No impawrment was required
for the year (2016: £nil).
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10 Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

AL 1 January

Additions

Changes in decommissioning
Amounts written off*

At 31 December

WWWIGASPLCCOM

31December 31 December
207 2016
- £000 £000
112,448 113,394
2,752 3616
- 77
(70) o (44%5)
115,130 N2,448

* wiite off of uncanventional explaration anc evaiL.ation assets due to relinguishment of licences consicered ta be uncormmercial,

Under the terms of the secured bond agreement, the secured bondhelders have a fixed and floating charge aver these assets.
The Group’s exploration and evaluation assets were reviewed for indicators of imparment as at 31 December 2017 and at 31 December 2016,
No indicators of impairment were identified at either year end,
11 Property, plant and equipment
- 31December 2517 31 Decerber 2016
CGilandgas  Other fixed Oiland ga, Other fixec
assets assets Total A55eTS assets Total
. N £000 £000 £000  £00D £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January/April 168,329 3,767 172,096 147434 3,731 151,165
Additions 3,380 58 3,438 5622 342 5,964
Disposals (13 (23) 37 {(77) (306) {383
Changes in decommissioning™* - - - 15,350 - 15,350
Transfers 193 (193) - - - -
Write off o - - (O () - - -
At 31 December 171,888 3,603 175,49 168,329 3,767 172,096
Depreciation and Impairment
AL January/April 72,894 1,494 74,388 66,815 1,439 68,254
Charge for the year 7,669 299 7.968 6,156 338 6,494*
Disposals - (23) (23) a7 (284) (361)
Trarsfers 193 (193) - - -
At 31 December 80,756 1,577 82,333 72,894 1,493 74,387
NBV at 31 December 91,132 2,026 93,158 95,435 2,274 97,70%

¥ Charge for the year includes £325 thousand charge categonsed as administration expenses in the profs and loss (2076 £151 theusand’ and £11 thousand (2076 £20 thousand)
relating ro capitalised equipment used “or exploration and evaluation
** The decommissioning asset iIncreased i ine wirh the decorrrrissicring liabality fallowing a review of the estimate and assumptions ar 31 December 2076 (note 207

Under the terms of the secured bond agreement, the secured bandholders have a fixed and floating charge over these assets.

Impairment of oil and gas properties

Due to the continung volatility 1n oil and gas prices and foreign exchange rates, the Group's oll and gas properties were reviewed for imparrment
as at 31 December 2017, CGUs for impairment purposes are the group of fields whereby technical, economic and/or contractual features

create underlying interdependence in cash flows. The Group has identified the three main producing CGUs as: North, South and Scotland. The
impairment assessment for the North and South was prepared on a value-in-use basis and using discounted future cash flows based on 2P reserve
profiles. The impairment assessment for Scotland was prepared on a far value less costs of disposal basis. The future cash flows were estimated
using price assumption for Brent of $67/bbt for 2018, $64/bbt for 2019, $61/bbl for 2020, $60/bbi for 20271 and $75/bb! thereafter, and a USD/
GBP foregn exchange rate of $1.43/£1.00. Cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 11%. No impairment was required in the

year (2016: £n1l).

Sensitivity of changes in assumptions

As discussed above, the principal assumptions are recoverable future production and resources, estimated Brent prices and the USD/GBP foreign
cxchange rate. Neither a 10% reduction in preduction, a 10% reduction in Brent prices nor a 10% decline in the value of sterfing against the US
dollar would result in an impairment in the South or Scotland CGUs. For the North CGU, a 10% reduction in either production or price would
result in an imparment of £11.7 million and a 10% reduction in the USD/GBP exchange rate would result in an mpairment of £4.0 million.
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12 Interest in joint arrangements

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has a combined carried gross work programme of up to ¢ $240 milien from its farm-in partners - INEQS

Upstream timited (“INEQS™).

The Group’s matenal joint operations as at 31 December 2017 are set out below:

_icences

East Midlands
PEDL16S
EXL 288
PEDL14&
PEDLZ21C
PEDLOZ
PEDL200
PEDL278
PEDL273
PEDL 305
PEDL316
PEDL13S
PEDL14D

North West
PEDLTS0
PEDLI145
PEDL14/
PEDLIB4
PEDL1B8
PEDL1IBS
PEDL190
PEDLIS3
PEDL293
PEDL29S
EXL273

Weald
PL211
PEDLO70

Egdon

INEQS

INEOS

INEOS

INEOS

INEOS

Egdon

INECS, Total, Egdon
INEQS, Tetal, Egdon
INEOS, Total, Egdon
INEQS, Edgon, eCorp
INEOS, Edgon, eCorp

INEOS
INEOS
INEQS
INEOS
INEOS
INEOS
INEOS
INEOS
INEOS
INEOS
INEOS

UKOG
UKQG, Egdon, Aurora, Brigantes, Corfe

Rartner

Gas'interest Operator
80% IGas
75% IGas
75% IGas
75% 1Gas
55% |Gas
55% 1Gas
50% 1Gas
35% Gas
35% 1Gas
35% 1Gas
32% 1Gas
32% 1Gas
50% |Gas
40% INEOS
25% |Gas
50% IGas
75% IGas
25% 1Gas
509% IGas
40% INEQS
30% INECS
30% INEGS
15% INEOS
90% IGas
50% IGas

13 Inventories

31 December

3" December

Qil stock
Driting and maintenance materials

2017 2076
£000 £000
596 491
o 26 779
1,322 1270

14 Trade and other receivables

VAT recoverable
Trade debtors
Other debtors
Prepayments

31 December
2017

245
3,464
1,692

_2/058 _
7,459

£000

21 December
2016
.EOOQ
725

3,573
522
2,195

7015
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Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. The carrying value of the Group’s trade and cther recevables as stated

w
above 1s considered to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value. =
>
5
m
The ageing of the financial assets (trade debtors and certain other debtors) 1s as follows: A
31December 31 December -
2017 2016 3
£000 oo 2
- - ]
Not yet due 4,594 3,879
Amounts overdue but not impaired:
Not more than three months 5 36
More than three months but not more than six months ) ) - 12-
4,599 3927 A
2
b
15 Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets Q
31December 2! Decerber B
2017 15 T
£000 £00D O
Cash at bank and In hand 15,727 24946 ]
E
The carrying value of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as stated above 15 considered to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value. 3
Cash and cash equivalents included £8.1 million at 31 December 2016 which was held in the Debt Service Retention Account (“DSRA”).
This was designated, at the Company’s discretion, for the buy-back or repayment of bonds. In April 2017, the Company restructured its debt
which resulted in the removal of the requirement for a DSRA. See note 18 for further detalls. m
$
Restricted cash &
31 December 3 Decernber IE
2017 20
£000 £000 E‘
Current 126 - B
Non-current 303 - Z
-
i

The current restricted cash balance relates to margin payments in respect of oll hedges contracts. The non-current restricted cash represents
restoration deposits paid to Nottinghamshire County Council which serve as collateral for the restoration of the sites at the end of their life.

Net debt reconciliation
31 December

2017

£000

Cashand cash equivalents 15,727
Borrowings , e , . , (21,240)
Net debt (5,513)
Borrowings - capitalised fees o (686)
Net debt excluding capitalised fees (6,199)

Borrowings - Borrowings —

Cashand cash repayable repayable

___equivalents after one year Total
AL January 2017 24,946 (124,579) (99,633)

Capital restructuring 3,140 90,025 93,165

Repayment and repurchase of borrowings (5.423) 5,423 -

Interest paid (5.917) 5,917 -

Foreign exchange adjustments (1,541) 2,369 828

Other cash flows 522 - 522
Other non-cash movernents o o ) ) - (395) {395)
At 31 December 2017 15,727 (21,240) (5,513)
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16 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations is made up of Australian and Singaporean registered operations acquired as part of the Dart acquisition. The Group’s
mtention was to divest all business and actwities in those countries and it disposed of most of these assets in late 2015. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group sold its remaining Indonesian asset, a 49.9% holding in Sangatta West CBM Inc, to its joint venture partner, Ephinde
internaticnal CBM Holdings Inc. Under the terms of the sale, 1Gas pard a consideration of £0.5 million; £0.2 rrihon n cash and £0.3 milhon n iGas
shares. The Indonesian assets were valued at £nil at the acquisition date and the Group recognised a loss on disposal of £0.5 milhon,

The Group still has presence in a number of countries and continues its plans to exit all legal jursdictions in the near future
The loss for the year before tax in respect of discontinued operations was £0.4 rmillion (2016: £1.14 mifion).

17 Trade and other payables
31December 31 December

2007 206
_ ) £000 £000
Current

Trade creditors 1,366 2,773
Ermployment taxes 285 425
Other creditors and accruals ) 4,907 4972
6,558 8,170

Non-~current
Othercrediters o ~ 303 -
303 -

The carrying values of each of the Group's financial liabilities included within trade and other payables are considered to be a reasonable
approwmation of their fair value. All creditors are payable wathin one month and have been outstanding for less than three months
(2016: less than three months ).

18 Borrowings
3 DecemberZ(_J‘_l? o 31 Necember 2016
Current  Non-current Total Current, Nan-current Tztal
. o o ) £000 £000 ko000 L0000 £000 £000
Bonds - secured 1,687 19,553 21,240 6,084 96,700 102,784
Bonds - unsecured - - - - 21795 21,795
Total 1,687 19,553 21,240 6,084 118,495 124,579

in 2013, the Company and Norsk Tilitsmann (“Bond Trustee™) entered into a Bond Agreement for the Company to issue up to $165.0 million
secured bonds and up to $30.0 milllon unsecured bonds (1ssued at 96% of par). These bonds were subsequently listed on Oslo Bors and the
Alternative bond market in Oslo. Both secured and unsecured bonds carried a coupon of 10% per annum {where interest was payable semi-
annually in arrears). The secured bonds were amortised semi-annually at 2.5% of the ininal loan amount. Final matunty on the secured notes was
on 22 March 2018 and on the unsecured notes was 11 December 2018,

InApril 2017, the Company restructured its debt resulting in the equitisation of the unsecured bonds and a repaymentfequitisation of a portion
of the secured bonds. The restructuring reduced the total aggregate face value of the secured bonds to $30.4 million. The interest rate was
reduced to 8%, the repayment term was extended to 30 June 2021, and the amortisation rate was increased to 5% of the initial loan amount
from 23 March 2018. The restructuning alsc resulted in changes to the covenants and the removal of the need for a DSRA. The secured bonds
now have rwo covenants: a hquidity requirement of $7.5 million and a leverage ratio, tested every six months, that requires net debt versus
adjusted EBITDA to be less than 3.5 times,

Further detalls of the restructuning transaction are provided in note 28,
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19 Other liabilities
Cther liabilities related to warrants issued pursuant te a warrant instrument dated 14 December 2011, No warrants were exercised dunng the
current or prior year. The warrants expired on 14 December 2017.

Weighted

average 31 December 37 December

exercise price 2007 206

) B . No. _(pence) £000 ) £000

At T January o o 7,500,000 55.8 11 147

Subdivision and consolidation 375,000 - - -

Expiry of warrants (375,000} - on -
Revaluation gan o - - - (136)

At 31 December - - - 11

20 Other provisions

31December2017 B 31 December 2015

Decommissioning Other Total Decommussioning Qther “otal

- o £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 January 40,885 39 40,924 25,284 39 25,323
Utilsation of provision - (39 (39) 418) - (418)

Unwinding of discount (note &) 1,070 - 1,070 746 - 746

Reassessment of decommissionng p@vis»on/habmtles _lez - 162 15273 - 15,273

At 37 December 42117 - 42117 40,885 39 40,924

Decommissioning provision

Provision has been made for the discounted future cost of restoring fields to a condition acceptable to the relevant authontics. The
abandonment of the fields is expected to happen at vanious times between 1 to 31 years from the year end (2016. 2 10 29 years). These
provisions are based on the Group’s internal estimate as at 31 December 2017, Assumptions based on the current economic environment have
been made, which management believes are a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the future liability. The estmates are reviewed regularly
to take Into account any matenal changes to the assumptions. Actual decommissioning costs will uitimately depend upon future costs for
decommissioning which will reflect market conditions and regulations at that time. Furthermore, the timing of decommissioning 15 uncertain and
1 likely to depend on when the fields cease to produce at economically wiable rates. This, in turn, will depend on factors such as future ol and gas
prices, which are inherently uncertan.

The risk free rate range of 0.98% to 3.05% is used in the calculation of the provision as at 31 December 2017 {2076 Risk free rate range of
0.58% 1o 3.80%).

21 Contingent deferred consideration
31 December 37 December

2017 06
; o o B £000 £000
At 1 January - 420
Fairvalue adjustment o ) . - @

At 31 December - -

The deferred consideration related to an amount payable by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group acquired as part of the Dart acquisition, to
Its earlier joint venture partner In certain icences, contingent upon varous exploration and development success outcomes, In assessing the fair
value of the obligation, the Company considered the likelihood of reaching certain geological and commercial milestones on licences named In
the agreement. In December 2016, the Group assessed the iikelthood of reaching the milestones as remote and released the remaining provision
of £0.4 million. At 31 December 2017, the Group assessed that no provision was required.
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22 Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions payable by the Group for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2017 were

£0.77 millon (2016: £0.80 million).

Contnbutions amounting to £0.06 million were accrued at 31 December 2017 (20716; £0.06 milbon) and are included in trade and other

payabies.

23 Commitments
The Group's capral commitments comprised:

Capital commitments:
31December 31 December
2017 06
B 3 £000 £000
Conventional capex 878 353
Unconventional capex 5,604 2,650
Total capital commitments 6,482 3,003
Capital commitments relate to spend committed but not spent on conventional and unconventional icences.
Operating lease commitments:
31December 31 December
2017 0%
- - R . £600 B0
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recggnlsed inoperating loss for the year 2,323 2,271
The Group had future minmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
~within 1 year 1,714 1,828
- after 1 year but not mere than 5 years 2,731 2,598
- after Syears - 945 1,254
Total 5,390 5,680
24 Financial instruments and risk management
Fair values
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, other than those with carrying amounts that arc a reasonable
approximation of their fair values, are as follows.
Farr value

Carnpng amoung

31 December 31 December 31 December
2077 2007 2016
o £000 EOOC! £000
Amortised cost
Borrowings 21,240 21,452 281,459
3

The fair value of borrowngs (hierarchy level 173 has been calculated by reference to quoted market prices for these iabihtes

Fair value hierarchy

Assets and liabilities, for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements, are categonsed within the fair value hierarchy based

on the lowest level input that 1s significant te the fair value measurement as a whole:
e Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets foridentical assets or habilines;

» Level 2: other vaiuation technigues for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly

or indirectly, and

* Level 3: valuation techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable

market data.

There are no non-recurting fair value measurements nor have there been any transfers of financial Instruments botween levels of the

fair value hierarchy.
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
31 December 31 Decernber

2017 2076
- o £000 £000

Financial liabilities: Level 2
Dervative financialinstruments 2,749 876
Warrants L e - 1
2,749 887

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of the commadity price options were provided by counterparties with whom the trades have been entered into. These consist of
Asian style put and call options to selibuy oil. The options are valued using a Black-Scholes methodoelogy; however, certain adjustments are made
to the spot-price volatility of oil prices due to the nature of the options. These adjustments are made either through Monite Carlo simulations or
through statistrcal formulae. The inputs to these valuations include the price of oil, its volatility, and risk free interest rates.

Derivative financial instruments
In the current year the Group has entered into certain put/call options and swaps in order to manage its exposure to commodity price nisk

associated with sales of oil in US dollars,

The outstanding contracts as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

Fair value at

31 December 2017

- - ) ) o Tgrm Con[rag[ 2mount COntract pricefrate Contract price/rate Coneract price/rate £000
Buy Put Sell Call Buy Call

US dollar Asian 3-way coliar Oct 2018-Dec 2018 150k bbls ol $55 00/bbl $65.00/hbl $8000/bbI 137

LIS dollar Asian 3-way collar Apr2018-Sep 2018 300k bbls oil $46.00/bbl $60.00/bbl $75.00/bbl 1,332

US dollar Asian 3-way collar Jan 2018-Mar 2018 150k bbls ol $41.00/bbl $54.00/bbl $62.00/bbI 1,280

The above derivatives mature over the penicd from 1 January 2018 until 31 December 2018. During the year to 31 December 2017, oil hedges
for 165 thousand barrels matured in January and a loss of £0.2 million was realised.

No gamns were realised on oil hedges during the year to 31 December 2017 as the underlying price traded within the collar

The outstanding contracts as at 37 December 2016 were as follows:

“ar value at
21 December 2076
Term Contract arouni Contract prcejfrate Contract pricejrate Contract pricefrate £000
Sell Swap Buy Call
US dollar Asian 3-way collar Jan 2017-Sep 2017 225k bbls il $40.00/bbl $56.90/bbl $71.90/bbt 672
US dollar Asian 3-way collar Jan 2017-Jun 2017 210k bbls ol $46.00/bbl $60.00/bbl $74.00/bbl 207

The dervatives matured over the pericd from 7 January 2017 to 30 September 2017, During the year to 31 December 2016 il hedges for 600
thousand barrels matured generating a net gain of £4.0 million (note 3). In addition, a number of hedges were terminated generating a gain of
£4.5 million (note 3).

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The carrying values of the financial assets and financial habilities, other than bonds, are considered to be materally equivalent to their fair values.
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Financial risk management

The Group's principal financia liabilities comprise borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial habilities s to
finance the Group’s operations, ncluding the Group’s capital expenditure programme. The Group has trade and other recewables, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash that are derived directly from its operations and restricted cash. The Group aiso enters into dervative transactions
to manage Its commaodity price exposure.

The Group manages 1ts exposure to key financial nisks in accordance with its financial nsk management policy. The objective of the policy s o
support the Group’s financial targets while protecting future financial security. The Group 15 exposed to the foilowing risks:

e Market risk, including commaodity price and fareign currency risk;

o Credit nsk; and

o Liguidity risk.

The Group 15 not expesed to interest rate nisk as all the Group's borrowings are at a fixed rate.

Management reviews and agrees policics for managing each of these risks which are summarised below. The Group's policy 1s that al! transactions
involving derwvatives must be directly related to the underlying business of the Group and it does not use derwative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

Market risk
Market risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors, such as
commodity price and foreign currency exchange rates.

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign
currencies are all constant and that financial derivatives are held to rmaturity. The sensitwity analysis is intended to iilustrate the sensitivity to
changes in market variables on the Group's financial instruments and show the iImpact on profit or loss and shareholders’ equity, where applicable.

The following assumptions have been made in preparing the sensitivity analyses:

e The sensitivity of the relevant profit before taxitem s the effect of the assumed changes in market nisks. This 1s based on the financial assets and
financial liabilities held at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016; and

¢ The impact on equity s the same as the impact on profit before tax and ignores the effects of deferred rax, if any.

Commodity price risk
The Group 15 exposed to the risk of fluctuanions in prevaling market commedity prices {primarily crude o) on the ail and gas 1t produces.
The Group’s policy is to manage these risks through the use of derwvative financial instruments.

The fallowing table summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in commodity prices on the farr value of derivative financiat
instruments. The impact on equity 1s the same as the impact on profit before rax as these dervative financial instruments have not been
designated as hedges and are classified as held-for-trading.

The analysis is based on dervative contracts existing at the balance sheet date, with the assumption that crude ol price moves 15% over all future
periods, with all other vanables held constant. Management believe that 15% 1s a reasenable sensitivity based on forward forecasts of estimated

o1l price volatiliy.
'ncreasef{decrease) in profi
beloretax and equity

31December 31 December

2007 W06

) _ . £000 _£000

15% increase in the price of ol 4,396 3001
15% decrease inthe price of ol (4,396) (3,001}
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such expasure arises from sales, purchases or financing in currencies other than the UK pound
sterling, the functional currency of all Group companies The Group’s sales are denominated m US dollars, and approximately 5% of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group, primarily US dollars. The Group borrowings are aiso denominated in
US dollars. The Group’s exposure to other currencies 1s not considered to be matenal.

The following table summanses the impact on profit before tax for changes in the US dollarfpound sterhng exchange rate on the financial assets
and labilities in the balance sheet at year end, principally relating to the Group's barrowings which are denominated in US dollars. The impact an
equity Is the same as the impact on profit before tax.

The analysis is based on the assumption that the pound moves 10%, with ail other varables held constant.

Increase/faecrease) 10 proft before tax
for the year endec and to

) . QQ.A\K‘J‘ dba_\'.

31December 31 Decermber

2017 2016

] . ) £000 £000

10% strengthening of the pound against the US dollar 720 10,033
10% weakening of the pound against the US dollar (720} {10,033)

Credit risk

The Group has a credit policy to assess and manage the credit nsk of counterparties before entering contracts, including credit checks through
external credit agencies, the establishment of credit limits, a requirement for security, payment terms and specific transaction approvals. The
primary credit exposures of the Group are its recevables from crude ol and electncity sales, amounts due from Joint Venture partners and
exposure with respect to derivative contracts. These exposures are managed at the corporate level. The Group has two main customers and only
trades with established counterparties wha have been approved In accordance with the Group’s credit policy.

At 31 December 2017, two customers (2016: two) accounted for approximately 97% (2016: 97%) of trade recevables of £3.7 million.

With respect to credit risk ansing from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash, cash equivalents and derwative contracts,
the Group's exposure to credit risk anses from defauit of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
nstruments. The Group limits its counterparty credit nsk on these assets by dealing only with financial institutrons with credit ratings of at least
A or equivalent other than if the UK government 1s a majority shareholder. At 31 December 2017, the maximum exposure was £15.7 million
(2016: £24.9 million).
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by mantaining adeguate banking and borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabiltties and future capital and operating commitments.

The table below summarises the matunty profiie of the Group's firancial habihities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Ondermand < " year 1 Zyears 2-3years >3 years Total
o B . EDCO £000 £000 £000 ] £000 - _E000

At 31 December 2017
Borrowings - 3,418 3,823 3,643 16,663 27,547
Trade and other payables . - 1,366 - ] - - 1,366
- 4,784 3,823 3,643 16,663 28,913

AL 31 December 2076

Borrowings - 18,582 122,314 - ~ 140,896
Trade and other payables - 2,773 - - - 2,773
Warrants o - 1 - _ _ 1

- 21366 122314 R 143,680

Management considers that the Group has adequate current assets and forecast cash from operations to manage Iiquidity risks ansing fram
current and non-current fiabilities.

Capital management

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that it remains sufficiently funded to support its business strategy and maximise sharehalder value. The
Group’s funding requirements are met through a combination of debt and equity and adjustments are made in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group’s strategy 1s to maintain ratios 1N iine with covenants asscciated with its secured bonds

The Group monitors capital using a geaning ratio, which 1s net debt dvided by equity plus net debt, The Group includes interest bearing loans
less cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash in net debt. Capital includes share capital, share premium, other reserves and accumulated profits/
losses.

The Company completed a restructuring and fundraising package on 4 April 2017 (see note 28). Management believe that the new capial

structure will be sustainable in the current oil price environment and, together with a carned work programme of up to $240 millon, means that
the Company 15 well positioned to pursue its strategy.
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On 3 Aprd 2017, the shareholders approved the subdivision of each of the 303,305,534 ordinary shares of 10p each of the Company into

one new ordinary share of 0.0001p each and one deferred share of 9.999%p each. At the Annual General Meeting of the Company on

14 Jung 2017, the shareholders approved a consolidation and subdwision of the Company’s share capital in order to reduce the number

of shares I 1ssue to that more appropriate for the size of the Company. Following the consolidation, every 200 ordinary shares of 0.0001 pence
each were consolidated intc one new ordinary share of 0.02 pence each and immediately subdvided into 10 ordinary shares of 0.002 pence.
The consehdation and subdivision reduced the number of shares in i1ssue from 2 4 billicn to 121 mullion.

Ordinary shares

Def&-rrgd shares*

Share capital  Share premium

Norinal value Norminalvaice  Norndvalue valie
No £000 No. £000 £000 £000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2017, ordinary shares of 10p each 302,820,578 30,282 - - 30,282 32
January 2017 SIP share 1ssue - 484956 ) 49 - - 49 2
Balance prior to the restructuring 303,305,534 30,33 - - 30,331 34
Subdivision of 10p ordinary shares nto 0.0001p ordinary shares
and 9999p deferred shares - {30,331)303,305,534 30,331 - -
issued through Kerogen Subscription Agreement 679,282,165 1 - - i 28,766
Issued through the Placing and Open and Ancillary Offers 400,069,644 - - - - 18,003
Equitisation of secured and unsecured bonds 1,043,350,391 1 - - 1 46,949
Transaction costs - - - - - (554)
Reserves transfer on equitisation of unsecured bonds - - - - - 9,008
May 2017 SIP share issue ) 956,464 - - - - 44
Total ordinary shares before subdvision and consolidation 2,426,964,198
Subdwision and consohdation ] _ (2,305,615,98_8)
After subdivision and consolidation 121,348,210 2303,305,534 30,331 30,333 102,250
Juiy 2017 SIP share issue 59,352 _ _ _ 7 42
October 2017 SIP share issue 73,557 - - - - 50
December 2017 EBT issue 400000 _ _ _ _ _
At 31 December 2017 121,881,119 2 303,305,534 30,331 30,333 102,342

* Deferred shares were ¢reated on capral restrociuring which completed in Apnl 2017 as disclosed in note 28

Accordingly, the Group share capital account comprised:

S _ £000
Share capital account -
At 1 Janyary 2016 29,887
Shares issued during the year ) ) 400
AL 31 December 2016 30,282
Shares issued during the year o ] 51
At 31 December 2017 30,333

26 Share premium

The share premuurm account arises from the Company issuing shares for consideration in excess of their nominal value less the cost of such
1ssues. During the year, the Company 1ssued 106,740,090 ordinary shares at a nominal value of G.002p gach (on a post subdvision and
consolidation basis), (2076: 3,996,214 shares issued on a pre-subdmision and consolidation basis) resulting in an increase in the share premium
account of £102.3 milhon (2016: £0.2 millon) - see note 25. Issuing costs of £554 thousand were incurred duning the year (2016: £nif).
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
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27 Other reserves
Other reserves are as follows:

wWarranf/Share areasury Capieal Merger
plan reserves shares  connbuucns reserve Total
o o0 £000 £000  £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 206 3260 (1,585 47 22222 23544
Employee share plans — cost under IFRS 2 5,225 - - - 5225
Employee share plans - shares issued under the SIP - 19 - - 19
Forferture of LTIPs under the employee share plan (130 - - - (131
Shares released from the Trust due to exercise of options (4 14 - - -
Transfers o B (202 202 - - =
?a\ance at 31 December 2016 _ 8138 . (1,_@5027 a7 22222 28757
Employee share plans - cost under [FRS 2* 1,231 - - - 1,231
Employee share plans - shares ssued under the SIP - 102 - - 100
Forferture of LTIPs under the employee share plan (85) - - - (85)
Lapse of LTIPs under the employee share plan Q) - - - an
Transters (175) 175 - - 2
Balance at 31 December 2017 9,098 (1,373) a7 22,222 29,994
* Employee share plan costs uncer IFRS 2 include £1.056 thausand of charges that were expensed dunng the year (201¢ £3,499 thousand }
Employee share plans - Equity settled
Detals of the share options under employee share plans outstanding are as follows:
FIp MRP IDRP T2
Number Nurmber Nurmnber Number
o o _ ___ ofunis - ofunis af unigs of units
Qutstanding at 1 January 2016 - . o - 7143610 6,500,000 778473309
Granted during the year 7548,701 2,865,290 - -
Forfeited during the year - (452,358)  (538,08¢6) - (1,416)
Outstanding at 31 Decernber 2016 7096343 9470874 4500000 1,841,884
Exercisable at31 December 2016 - 9470814 6500000 -
Exercisable after subdvision and conversion {(Including roundings) 354,826 473,566 325,000 92,096
Awarded during the year 1,756,923 - - -
Exercised during the year (9,533) (206,314) - -
Lapsed during the year - - - (1,029)
Forferted during the year _ (15512 = - - (3,975)
Outstanding at 31 December 2017 2,086,704 267,252 325,000 87,092
Exercisable at 31 December 2017 2,086,704 267,252 325,000 87,092

Note - all options are il cost and therefore the welghted average exercise price 15 mit

Executive Incentive Plan (*EIP”")

In March 2016, the Group issued 7,548,701 options under a long term incentive plan to the Executive Directors of the Company and certain

other key employees of the Group which will vest, subject to meeting certain criteria, three years from grant.

The options granted under the Plan take the form of a base award. The number of ordinary shares over which the options vest may be

increased by a multiple of up ta two ttmes the number of ardinary shares subject to the base award, If a specified ordinary share price 1s met

at the vesting date.
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27 Other reserves continued

Executive Incentive Plan (“EIP”) continued

The far value of the awards 15 based on the Monte Carlo valuation medel. The key inputs inte the madet were: share price as of date of grant
of £0.145, a nisk free interest rate of 0.52% and an implied share price volatility £8.8%. It was alsc assumed that ro options would be forferted
and na dividends would be paid during the Iife of the options. This resulted in a fair value of EIP awards of £1.4 million.

On 14 June 2017 these awards were subdivided in ine with the subdivision and consideration of the Group’s share capital (see note 25).
In October 2017, the Group awarded 1,756,923 Ordinary shares under a long term incentive plan to the Executive Directors of the Company
and other key employees of the Group.

The far value of the awards 15 based on the Monte Carlo valuation model. The key nputs into the model were: share price as of date of grant
of £0.68, a risk free interest rate of 0.54% and an implied share price volatility 63.95%. It was also assumed that no options would be forfeited
and no dividends would be paid duning the life of the ocptions. This resulted in a fair value of EIP awards of £0.978 rmillion.

The EIPs outstanding at 37 December 2017 had both a weighted average remaining contractual life and maximum term remaining of 9.8 years.

The total charge for the year was £0.48 miflion. Of this amount, £0.10 mithon was capitatised and £0.38 million was chargad to the
INCOMe statement.

Management Retention Plan (“MRP™)

in Decernber 2015, the Group adopted a new share-based payment scheme, the Management Retention Plan {“MRP™). Under the MRP,
participants are granted nil ¢ost options which vest and become exercisable on the first anniversary of grant subject to the Directors’ continued
employment and t¢ a one year holding pertod following the date of vesting,

Employees were granted 7,143,610 options in the MRPn lieu of waived options granted under the 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP")
and 2016 cash bonuses. The options designated by the Group as replacement awards were accounted for as a modification of the onginal
scheme and were valued at grant date and the options awarded in lieu of cash bonuses were measured with reference to the fair value of the
services receved.

The fair value of the cancelled awards was re-measured at the replacement date based on the Monte Carlo valuation model. The key mputs into
the model were: replacement date share price of between £0.14 and £0.24, threshold price of between £1.351 and £1.664, a risk free interest
rate of between 0.37% and 0.42% and animplied share price volatiity of between 73% and 86%. It was also assumed that no dividends would
be paid during the life of the options. This resulted in an incremental fair value of £0.17 million.

The MRPs outstanding at 31 December 2017 had both a weighted average remaining contractuat life and maxmum term remaining of 5.9 years
(2016: 6.9 years). The fair value of the replacement awards granted under the MRP was the grant date share price.

The total charge for the year was £nil (2076: £1.8 million). Of this amount, £nil (2016: £0.6 million) was caprtalised or recharged to Jont
Venture partners and £nil (2016: £1.2 millon) was charged to the income statement.

Executive Director Retention Plan (“EDRP™)

in July 2015, the Group adopted a new share-based payment scheme, the Executive Director Retention Plan (“EDRP”). Under the EDRP,
participants are granted nil cost options which vest and become exercisable on the first anniversary of grant subject to the Directors’ continued
employment and to a one year holding period following the date of vesting,

Executives were granted 6,500,000 options in the EDRP in leu of waved options granted under the 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan {“LTIP*)
and the Value Creation Plan (“YCP”). The options have been designated by the Group as replacement awards at grant date and were accounted
for as a modification of the original scheme.

The fair value of the cancelled awards was re-measured at the replacement date based on the Monte Carlo valuation model. The farr value

of waived options was based on the share price at grant date of £0.23. The farr value of replacement awards was based on the Monte Carlo
valuation model. The key inplits into the model were: replacement date share pnce of £0.23, threshold price of between £0.9245 and £1.664,
ansk free interest rate of between 0.49% and 0.60% and an rmplied share price volatity of between 70% and 78%. It was also assumed that no
dwvidends would be paid during the hfe of the options. This resulted in an incremental fair value of £1.5 million.

The EDRPs outstanding at 31 December 2017 had both a weighted average remaining contractual hife and maximum term remaining of 5.5 years
(2016: 6.5 years). The farr value of the replacement awards granted under the EDRP was the grant datc share price.

The totzl charge for the year was £rul (2016: £0.8 million}. Of this amount, £nil was capitalised (2016: £0.47 million) and £nil was charged to
the income statement (2G16: £0.33 million).
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
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27 Other reserves continued

Long Term Incentive Plan 2011 (#2011 LTIP™)

In November 2011, the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan scheme for certain key employees of the Group. Under the LTIP,
participants can each be granted nil cost options over up to 300% of remuneration for the Inmial Award and up to 150% of remuneration for the
Annual Award {subject to an overall plan imit of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for all participants). The LTIP has a three year
performance period and awards vest subject to share price performance exceeding the Company's weighted average cost of caprtal of 10%. On
a change of control prior to the third anniversary of the grant date, a proportion of the options that vest will take into account items such as the
time the option has been held by the participant and the performance achieved in the period from the grant date. Other than on a change of
control, 100% of vested awards can be exercised and sold on vesting.

There were no LTIPs exercised during the year. The LTIPs outstanding at 31 December 2017 had both a weighted average remaining contractual
life and maximum term remaning of 7.9 years (2016: 8.9 years). The fair value of the awards granted under the plan are measured at grant date
using a Monte Carlo Simulation Madel.

The total charge for the year was £0.12 mullion (2076: £0.40 mulion). Of this amount, £0.02 million was capitalised (2016: £6.23 milion) and
£0.10 million was charged to the income statement (2016: £0.17 millon).

Value Creation Plan (~2014 VCP”"}

tn July 2074, the Company adopted the 1Gas 2014 Value Creation Plan (“VCP”). Under the VCP, performance units will be granted which convert
INto a certain number of shares at the end of a three year performance period. The VCP requires creation of shareholder value in excess of a
threshold hurdle of 10% annualised share price growth from 1 April 2014, If this hurdle 15 met at the end of the performance penad, participants
will receve In aggregate 12.5% of the shareholder value created above the hurdle. 50% of this value will vest in shares of equivalent value at the
end of the performance period and 25% at the end of each of the following two years. The awards granted under the YCP scheme are measured
at grant date using a Monte Carlo Sirmulation Model.

For the VCP, when significant additional capital is raised (more than 10% of the Company’s issued share capital) following the grant date, a
scparate tranche of the VCP award 15 created with its own thresheld price and share capital. Therefore any additional shares issued will have to be
considered separately in determining the VCP accounting expense for pentods following this capital event.

The total charge for the year was £0.59 milion (2016: £1.76 million). Of this amount, £0.21 million was capitalised (2076: £1.10 miilion) and
£0.38 millien was charged to the income statement (2016: £0.66 milhon).During the year ended 31 December 2015, the VCP was replaced by
the EDRP in 1ts entirety, but the fair value of the original award continues to be recognised over the remainder of the original vesting period as per
the provisions of IFRS 2,

The inputs inte the Monte Carlo madels were as follows:

o 2011 TP i vCP
Granted
Jul 14
{capital issue
Granted relatng
Jutt4 ta Dart
Granted Grantet: Granted Graniec (pre capiial ACCLISIKION -
L ) - Novl o JunlZ Sep "3 Jul 14 Csue) 0 Ocl4)
Share price on grant 50.5p 66.5p 102.0p 1120p 112.0p 750p
Exercise price Nl Nl Nil Nil il Nl
Expected volatility 35% 31% 43% 47% 47% 47%
Expected Ife 6.5 years 6.5 years 6.5 years 2.7 years 2.7 years 2.5years
Risk-free rate 0.70% 0.35% 0.85% 1.28% 1.28% 0.80%
Expected dividends 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average fair value of awardsfunits granted 2312p 26.72p 50.80p 51.55p £64,989 £22,447

90  1Gas Energy plc Annual repert and accounts 2017



WWWIGASPLC.COM

27 Other reserves continued

Other share based payments

Share Incentive Plan (“SIP”)

In 2013, the Group adopted an HMRC approved Share Investrment Plan (“SIP”) for all employees of the Group. The scheme 15 a tax efficient
incentive plan pursuant to which all employees are eligible to acquire up to £150 {or 10% of salary, if less) worth of 1Gas ordinary shares

per month or £1,500 per annum. Under the SIP employees are invited to make contributions ta buy partnership shares. If an employee agrees
to buy partnership shares the Company currently matches the number of partnership shares bought with an award of shares (matching shares),
on a one-for-one or two-for-one basis.

The total charge for the year was £0.2 million (2016: £0.27 million}. Of this amaunt, £0.005 million was capitalised (2016: £0.05 millien) and
£0.195 millon was charged tc the income statement (2016: £0.22 million).

Treasury shares

The Treasury shares of the Group have arisen In connecticn with the shares issued to the IGas Energy Employee Benefit Trust (“the Trust™), of
which the Company 15 the sponsoring entity. The value of such shares s recorded in the share capital and share premium accounts in the ordinary
way and is also shown as a deduction from equity In this separate reserve account. There 1s therefore no net effect on sharehclders’ funds.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 400,000 ordinary shares of £0.00002 were issued to the Trust (2016: nil). In addition 225,226
ordinary shares of £0.00002 each (2016: 246,720 ordinary shares of 10p each - pre-consolidation) were released from the Trust on exercise of
share options by current and former employees.

Capital contribution
The capital contribution relates to cash received following the acquisition of IGAS Exploration UK Limited.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arose as a resuit of a reverse acquisition on 37 December 2007 whereby Island Gas Limited (“1GL”) became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company but with IGLs shareholders acquiring 94% of the ordinary share capital of the Company. The reserve represents the
difference in the fair value and the nominal value of the shares issued. The reserve is not distnbutable.

28 Capital restructure

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company disclosed that it expected to be non-compliant with its leverage covenants under its
secured bond agreement and that it also expected to breach its dally liquidity covenant in late March 2017, The Company therefore engaged
In discussions with its bondholders, a strategic investor and other potential investors and stakeholders with regard to passible restructuring
options In order to provide a remedy to the expected breach and achieve a capital structure that would be sustainable in the current ail price
environment. In March 2017, the Company announced final terms of the restructuring and fundraising package which were subsequently
approved at the meetings of the Company’s secured and unsecured bendholders and at the general meeting of sharehalders on 3 April 2017,
In addition, the shareholders approved the subdivision of each of the 303,305,534 ordinary shares of 10p each of the Company intc one new
ordinary share of 0.0001p each and one deferred share of 9.9999p each.

On 4 Apnl 2017, the Company announced that all new ordinary shares issued in accordance with the terms of the fundraising were admitted to

trading and, as a resuit, the restructuring of the Company’s secured bonds and unsecured bonds and the fundraising had become effective in

accordance with their respective terms. The principal terms are set out below:

® 679,282,165 new ordinary shares were ssued to Unconventional Energy Limited, an affiliate of Kerogen Capital, pursuant to a subscrption
agreement (including 40,033,273 new ordinary shares at nominal value pursuant to a top-up mechanism) raising £28.77 million and giving
Unconventional Energy Limited an interest of 28% in the Company.

¢ 400,069,644 new ordinary shares were 1ssued pursuant to a placing, open offer and ancillary subscription rasing £18.04 million,

® 528,175,037 new ordinary shares were 1ssued to holders of secured bonds who accepted voluntary equity exchange of secured bonds
extinguishing $28.92 million (£23.78 million) in face value of the secured bonds.

e 202,398,542 new ordinary shares were 1ssued to holders of secured bonds pursuant to a conditional secured debt for equity swap extinguishing

afurther $11.08 millicn (£9.171 million) in face value of the secured bonds.

<.$49.2 million (£40.4 millon) in face value of secured bonds were cancelled in consideration for ¢ $45.2 milhon (£40.4 millon} cash pursuant

to a voluntary cash offer.

312,776,818 new ordinary shares were i1ssued to holders of unsecured bonds on the conversion of all unsecured bonds into equity extinguishing

$27.4 million (£22.5 milhon) in face value, being all of the unsecured bonds not held by the Company.

The Company cancelled $13.09 million (£10 7 milien) in face value of the secured bonds and unsecured bands held by the Company, being all

of the unsecured bonds and secured bonds held by the Company.

» The renegeotiated terms and conditions and covenants for the remaining secured bonds (total aggregate face value of ¢ $30.08 millon) came
inte effect upon admission.

¢ The new ordinary shares were 1ssued at a price of 4.5p per share.

A gain of £4.9 million (net of fees of £2.5 milllon) arising from the restructure has been recognised for the year,
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

29 Related party transactions
The information below sets out transactions and balances between the Group and related parties in the normal course of business for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Drrectors, Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company are considered to be the only key management personnel
as defined by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures’. Transacnens with key management personnel were as follows:

Year Year

ended ended

31December 31 Decerber

2017 06

— o . : . . _ R L
Short-term empioyee benefits (including related social security costs) 1,642 1,307
Share plan 546 1,108
Fees ) ) i ) ) ) T8 166
2,386 2,575

Short-term employee benefits. These amounts comprise fees paid to the Directors in respect of salary and benefits earned during the relevant
financial year, plus bonuses awarded for the year.

Share plan. This 1s the cost to the Group of Directors’ participation In LTIPs, VCP, EDRP and EIP plans, as measured by the fair value of LTIPs,
VCPs, EDRPs and EiPs granted, accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

Further detaiis regarding the remuneraticn of the Directors of the Group are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report,

Prior to the restructuring, C McDowell held $0.24 million (2016: $0.25 million) of bonds 1ssued by the Group. Mr McDowell elected to
participate fully in the voluntary debt for equity swap on his secured bond haolding resulting in an allotment of 4,383,447 shares. Following the
consohdation and subdivision of shares, the holding equalled 212,170 shares, In 20716, he receved interest of $0.03 mullion. Accrued interest at
31 December 2016 was $6.9 thousand.

30 Subsequent events

On 24 January 2018 the Group ssued 69,195 Ordinary £0.00002 shares in relation to the Company's SIP scheme. The shares were 1ssued at
£0.69 resulting in share premium of £47,570.
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directars are responsitle for preparing the Annual Report and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom faw and those International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Curopean Union (“IFRSs™).

Under Company Law the Directors must not apprave the Parent Company financiai statements unless they are satisfied that they present fairly

the financial position of the Parent Company and its financial performance and cash flows for that pencd. In preparing the Parent Company

financial statements the Directors are required Lo:

» Present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Parent Company;

e Select suitable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8: ‘Accounting Pohicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ and then apply
thern consistently,

e Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides refevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;

e Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirernents in IFRSs 1s insufficient to cnabie users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditiens on the Parent Compary’s financial position and financial performance;

# State that the Parent Company has complied with IFRSs, subject t¢ any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
and

# Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis unless, having assessed the ability of the Parent Company to continue as a going concern,
management either intends to liguidate the entity or to cease trading, of has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Parent Company and to enable them tc ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and hence for taking reasonabie steps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with these requirements and, having a reascnable expectation that the Parent Company

has adequarte resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future, will continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the accounts.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IGAS ENERGY PLC

Report on the audit of the Company financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, 1Gas Energy plc's Company financial statements (the “financial statements™):

* give a rrue and fair view of the state of the Company's affars as at 31 December 2017 and of its cash flows for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial staternents, included within the Annual Report and Accounts (the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the Parent
Company Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2077, the Parent Company Cash Flow Statement, the Parent Company Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting palicies

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("I1SAs (UK)™) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under 1SAs (UK are further described n the Auditors’ responsibibties for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficrent and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opiion.

Independence

wWe remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have fuifiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach

Overview

Overall mareriality e Overall materiality: £1,000,000 (2016: £650,000), based on a proportion of nert asserts.

How we determined it o We obtained coverage over 99% of Company’s rotal assets and 100% of Company’s
consolidated total liabilizies.

Rationale for benchmark applied o Carrying value of investments in subsidiaries.

s Basis of gong concern.
» Refinancing.

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the nisks of material misstatement in the financiaf statements. In particular,
we looked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertan,

Asin all of our audits we also addressed the rnisk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of
bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financiat
staternents of the current pened and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of rescurces in the audt;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all nisks identified by cur audit.
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Key audit matter
Carrying value of investment in subsidiaries
See note 2 Investments N subsidiaries.

The carrying value of the Company’s
Investments in subsidiaries were £392.3
million at 31 December 2017, comprising of
£170.9 million of investment 1n subsidianes
and £221 .4 milkion of loans to group
companies. These represents 93% of the
Company’s total assets. We focused on this
arca due to the materal nature of the balance.

Basis of going concern

See page 101 Basis of preparation of financral
statements

The strength of the Company's balanice sheet
was improved significantly by the capital
restructuring which was completed in April
2017 and as a result management cancluded
that the Group 1s a going concern for at

least 12 months from the date of signing the
financial statements

Refinancing
See note 12 Called up share capiral.

At 31 December 2016, the Company had
secured and unsecured bonds, histed on Oslo
Bors, of £125 millon and announced to the
market that the Company expected to be
non-compliant with its leverage covenants at
31 December 2016 and that it also expected
to breach its liquidity covenant in late March
2017, The Company engaged with therr
bondhclders, a strategic investor and other
stakeholders to consider possible restructure
options to remedy the expected covenants
breach and alse acheve a capital structure
that will be sustainable in the current oil price
environment. In March 2017, the Company
announced the final terms of the restructuring
and fundraising and this was subsequently
approved by the secured and unsecured
bondholders and shareholders on 3 April
2017 This resulted in the extinguishment of a
significant portion of the debt and transaction
cost, a portion of which were capitalised
aganst the new debt and equity.

How we tailored the audit scope

WWW.IGASPLC.COM

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have obtained management’s assessment over whether the carrying vaiue of the
investments in subsidianes is supportable. This inciuded comparing the fair value of each entity
with the carrying value of the Parent Company nvestments. Fair values were derived from a
combination of the subsidiary net assets and the fair value of subsidiaries oll and gas properties
based on the Group impairment model. Based on the procedures performed we concur with
management that, after imparment of £17.9 miflion, the carrying value 1s supportable.

We obtained management’s cash flow forecast which supports their use of the going concern
basis of accounting. We tested the mtegrity of this model, including mathematical accuracy,
and confirmed key assumptions such as forecast sales revenue and operating costs were
consistent with impairment medels. Any differences were investigated. We also considered
histoncal accuracy of management’s forecasting,

Based on the work performed we concurred with management’s assumption that Group is a
going concern for at least 12 months from the date of signing the financral statements

We have identified two key judgements in assessing the accounting for the restructunng and
fundraising

We firstly assessed whether there was an extinguishment or modification of the bonds.
Cue to the substantially revised bond terms we concur with management’s that this was an
axunguishrnent

Secondly we considered the treatment of the transaction costs and concur with management’s

treatment whereby:

= only directly attnibutable costs have been deducted from equity,

s directly attributable transaction costs have been allocated between the extinguished and new
bonds on a reasonable basis; and other transaction costs have been expensed.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting procasses and controls, and the industry in which it operates.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IGAS ENERGY PLC CONTINUED

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative threshokds for materiality. These, together
with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
indwvidual financial statement hne tems and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both indwidually and in aggregate on the
financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiahity for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall materality £1,000,000 (2016: £650,000) .
How we determined it A proportion of net assets.
Rationale for benchmark applied We consider net assets to be one of the principal considerations of the members of the Parent

Company. The overall materiality has been Imited to 90% of the Group’s overall materiality,

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £50,000 (2016: £32,500)
as well as misstatements below that amount that, In our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation ta which 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

s the Directors’ use of the going concern basts of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 1s not appropriate; or

e the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statemenits any identified matenial uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
Company's ability te continue to adept the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for 1ssue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement 1s not a guarantee as ta the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materally misstated. If we identfy an apparent material inconsistency ¢r material msstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Comparies Act 2006
have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, 1ISAs {UK) require us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2017 1s consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In hight of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify any
material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 93, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the applicabie framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from rmaterial
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a gong concern, disclosing
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors erither intend to liquidate the
Cornpany or to cease operaticns, or have no reaiistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaterment,
whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditors’ report that includes our opinton. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but i3
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements
can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenial If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic deciskans of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre org ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditors’ report

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, In giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
IN writing,

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

» we have not receved all the infarmation and explanations we require for our audit; or

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewved from branches not
visited by us; or

» certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law arc not made, or

& the financial statements are not 1N agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility.

Other voluntary reporting

Directors’ remuneration

The Cempary voluntanly prepares a Directors’ Remuneration Report in accardance with the provisions of the Comparies Act 2006. The
Directors requested that we audit the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report specified by the Companies Act 2006 to be audited as If the
Company were a quoted company.

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of iGas Energy plc for the year ended 31 December 2017,

Richard Spilsbury

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

20 March 2018
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 201/

31December 31 December
2017 2016
Notes £000 £000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidianes 392,275 397774
Property, plant and equipment ) 3 47 124

392,322 397898

)

Current assets

Trade and other recevables 4 30,947 39,366

Cash and cash equivalents _ o S 858 21,205
o o _ e 31,805 60,571

Total assets - - o 424127 458449

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (146,910)  {174,839)
Borrowings (1,687) 6,084y
Other liabrives . B 9 - an
B (148,597)  (180,934)

o O

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings. L o 8 (19553) (118495)
o . 7 e _ L {19,553) (118,495)
Total liabilities o o o (168,150)  (299.429)
Net assets o L o S 255,977 152,040
EQUITY

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 12 30,333 30,282
Share prermium account 13 102,342 32
Merger reserve 14 22,222 22,222
Other reserves 15 7,657 6,535
Accumulated surplus o . o 93,423 59,969
Total equity 255,977 159,040

These financial statements were approved and authonsed for ssue by the Board on 20 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

g Iﬂgﬂ\’:é-—/ \5 X k(\ 4.)\)\1? :

Stephen Bowler Julian Tedder
Chief Exgcutive Officer Chief Financial Cfficer

The notes on pages 101 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Calecup Share
share premium Capital Merger Other
capital aceount recemption reserve reserves Accumulated

(note 12 (note 133 reserve {note "4 (note 153 (defictisurph.s Total equity

] £000 £000 _£000 - £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 January 2016 29,882 121,623 64,882 22,222 1,322 (36,893) 203,038
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - (49.796)  (49796)

Capital reduction - (121,776) (64,882} - - 186,658 -

Employee share plans (note 15) - - - - 5,344 - 5,344
Forferrure of LTiPs under the employee share plan (note 15) - - - - (131) - (131

Issue of shares (note 12) 400 185 - i - - - 585

Balance at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 30,282 32 - 22,222 6,535 99965 159,040

Profit and total comprehensive ncorne for the year - - - - - 2,462 2,462

Employee share plans (note 15) - - - - 1,218 - 1,218
Forfeiture of LTIPs under the employee share plan {note 15} - - - - (85) - (85)
Lapse of LTIPs under the employee share plan {note 15} - - - - (n - (1)

Issue of shares and conversion of debt (note 12) 51 93,302 - - - - 93,353

Reserves transfer on equitisation of unsecured bond - 9,008 - = - (9,008__) -

Balance at 31 December 2017 30,333 102,342 - 22,222 7,657 93,423 255,977

The notes on pages 101 to 116 form an integral part of these financial starements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARENT COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Year  Ninemonths
ended ender!
31 December 3" December
2017 0%
) Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities:
profitf{loss) for before tax 2,429 (49,796)
Depletion, depreciation and amortisation 77 20
Share based payment charge 159 1110
Adjustment for loss on disposal of a subsidiary - 277
Impairment of ntercompany recervable - 9137
Impairment of iInvestments 17,939 -
Finance ncome (27,452) {10,781)
Finance costs 6,389 29,856
Other non-cash items ) (124) 19
Operating cash flow before working capital movements (583) (20,088)
Decreasef(increase) in trade and other recewvables 8,419 {2,523
{Decrease)fincrease in trade and other payables {19,071) 30,619
Cash (used_ myffrom operating actvities (11,235) 8,008
Taxrefunded 31 -
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (11,204) 8,008
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - (20)
interest receved ~ 10 130
Net cash from investing activities 10 10
Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 25 77 136
Cash proceeds from the issue of shares in capital restructuring 16 46,789 -
Cash paid in settlement of secured bonds 6 (39,337) -
Fees related to capital restructure 16 (4,311) -
Repayment and repurchase of borrowings 16 (5,423) (4,316)
Sale of bonds - 4914
Interest paid (5.97) (11,570)
Net cash used in financing actwities (8,122) (11,436)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents inthe year (19,316) (3,318)
Net foreign exchange difference (1,031) 3,418
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,205 231,105
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 858 21,205

The notes on pages 101 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Parent Company financial statements of IGas Energy pic (the “Company”) have been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards, adopted for use by the European Union {“IFRSs™) as they apply to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017,
and with the Comparies Act 2006.

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 20 March 2018. 1Gas Energy pic 15 a public mited company
Incorporated, registered in England and Wales and 1s isted on the Alternative Investment Market (“AIM”).

The Company’s financial staternents are presented in UK pound sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£000) except when
otherwise indicated.

As a Consoldated income statement 1s published in this Annual Report, a separate income statement for the Company 1s not presented within
these financial statements as permitted by Section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006. The Company reported a profit for the year of £6.7 million
(2016: a loss of £49.8 million).

New and amended standards and interpretations
During the year, the Company adopted the following new and amended IFRSs which were applicable to the Group's activities
as of 1 January 2017 but not yet endorsed by the EU.

Amendments to I1AS 7 ‘Cash flow statements’, regarding the Disclosure initiative (Not yet EU endorsed as of 1 May 2017).

Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, regarding recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses (Not yet EU endorsed
as of T May 2017).

Annual improvernents 2014-2016 IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of interest in other entities” {Not et EU endorsed as of 1 May 2017).
Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory only for the Company’s

accounting peniads beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or later periods and which the Group has not adopted early. Those that may be
applicable to the Group in future are as follows:

IFRS 2 Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions - Amendment to IFRS 2 1 January 2018*
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custamers 1 January 2018*
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018*
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 20719%
IFRS 10 and I1AS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture - Postponed ndefinitely*

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28.

* The effective dates stated above are those given in the onginal IASB/ERIC standaras and interpretations As the Corrpany prepares its financoal statements 1n accordance with IFRS
as adopied by the European Union (EU}, the applicanion of new standards and interpretations wall be subyect to their having been endorsed for use in the £U via the EU endorsernent
mechamsm In the majonzy af cases this wall result in an effective date conaistent wath that gven in the anginal standard or wwerpretation but the need for endorsement restnicts
the Company's discretion to early acopl stancaras

The Company has assessed the impact of RS 15 and IFRS 9 amendments, and considers these not to be significant. The Company is still
assessing the impact of IFRS 16 amendments on its financial pesition. The Company does not anticipate adopting these standards and
interpretations ahead of their effective dates.

{b) Going concern

The strength of the Company's balance sheet has been improved significantly by the capital restructuring as disclosed in note 16 to the financial
statements. Based on their strategic plans and working capital forecasts, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has
adequate resources to continue In existence for the foresecable future. The Company 1sin a net current liability position, driven by intercompany
balances with subsidiary comparnies. The financial stability of the Company can be supported by the subsidiaries not enforcing payment for these
loans. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis In the preparation of the financial statemerits.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

T Accounting policies continued

(¢) Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a matertal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities are discussed below.

Recoverable value of investment in subsidiaries

The Company evaluates investments in subsidiaries for indrcators of impairment as described in {d) below. Any impairment test, where required,
invelves estimates and associated assumptions related to matters (when appropriate), such as recoverabie reserves; production profiles; forward
gas and electrniaty prices; development, operational and offtake costs; rature of land access agreements and planning permissions; application

of taxes, and other matters. Where the final cutcome or revised estimates related to such matters differ from the estimates used in any earlier
impairment reviews, the results of such differences, to the extent that they actually affected any impairment provisions, are acccunted for when
such revisions are made. Detalls of the Company’s investments are disclosed in note 2.

Functional currency

The determination of a company’s functional currency often requires significant judgement where the primary economic envirenment 10 which
it operates may not be clear. The Company’s financral statements are presented in UK pound sterfing, the primary economic environment of the
Company.

(d) Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments i Group companies held as non-current assets are held at cost less provision for impairment unless the investments were acquired
in exchange for the issue or part issue of shares in the Company, when they are intially recarded in the Company’s balance sheet at the fair valug
of the shares issued together with the fair value of any consideration paid, including costs of acquisition less any provision for impairment.

The Company’s Investments in Group companies held as non-current assets are assessed for impairment whenever events or changes in
arcumstances indicate that the carrying value of an Investment may not be recoverable, when impairment is calculated on the basis as set out
below. Any impairment s charged to the incomne statement.

Loans to Group companies are stated at amortsed cost.

Impairment

Imparrment tests, when required, are carried out on the following basis:

® By comparing any amounts carried as investments held as non-current assets with the recoverable amount,

s The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value in use. The Company generally assesses value in use
using the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the nisks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

Where there has been a charge for impairmeat i an earlier period that charge will be reversed in & later penod where there has been a change
in circumstances tc the extent that the recoverable amount 1s higher than the net book value at the time. In reversing imparment losses, the
carrying amount of the mvestment will be increased to the fower of its onginal carrying value and the carrying value that woeuld have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior penods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of
fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, over their estimated useful lives at the following rates, with any impairment being accounted for
as additional depreciation:

Buildings - over five years on a straght line basis
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - between three and five years on a straight line basis
Motor vehicies - over four years on a straight line basrs
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1 Accounting policies continued

() Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term deposits at varable interest rates with
onginal maturity periods of up to three months, Any interest earned 1s accrued monthly and classified as interest income within finance ncome

Trade and other receivables
Trade recewvables are initially recognised at far value when related amounts are invoiced, less any allowances for doubtful debts or provision made

for mpairment of these recewvables.

Trade and other payables
These financral liahties are alt non-nterest beanng and are inttially recognised at the fair value of the consideration receved.

Impairment of financial assets

In relabion ¢ trade recevables, & provision for impairment 1s made when there 15 objective evidence (such as the probabilty of insalvency or
significant financial difficultes of the debtor) that the Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the origimal terms of the
mvoice. The carrying amount of the recevable 1s reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are

assessed as uncollectible.

Warrants

When warrants do not qualfy as equity instruments under 1AS 3% due to the variable number of shares that would be issued in each case they are
accounted for as financial Yabilities. The warrants are immally recogrised at fair value on the date they are 1ssued and are subsequently remeasured
to far value at each period end. All changes in fair value are recogrised in the income statement,

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially 2t fair value. After initial recognition, mterest beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the labiltes
are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. When management’s estimates of the amounts or timings of cash flows are
revised, borrowings are re-measured using the revised cash flow estimates under the original effective interest with any consequent adjustment
being recognised in the income statement.

Arnortised cost is calculated by taking into account any disCount or prermium on acgquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR.
The EIR amortisation is Included in finance costs in the income statement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for caprtalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement In the period in which they are incurred.

(f) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease 1s based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date including
whether the fulfilment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets of the arrangement conveys a right to use

the asset.

Operating leases
Rentals are charged to the income statement in the year on a straight hne basis over the period of the lease.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

1 Accounting policies continued
(g) Taxation
The tax expense represents the surn of current tax and deferred tax

Current Income tax assets and liabifities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the tax authorities. Taxabie profit/(loss)
differs from the profit/(loss) before taxation as reported in the ncome statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax

15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax 15 recogrised in respect of all temporary differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date except
when the deferred tax liability anses from the initial recogninion of goodwill or an asset or liability In a transaction that 1s not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nether the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Temporary differences anse
from differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reparting
purposes. Deferred tax habilitres are not discounted. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s regarded as more likely than
not that they will be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed

at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will zllow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assets are realised or the hability
is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside prohit or loss 1s recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

{h) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees (including Directors), the fair value of the options or warrants at the date of the
grant is recorded in equity over the vesting penod. Non-market vesting conditions, but only those related to service and performance, are taken
inte account by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recogmised over the vesting period 1s based on the number of cptions that eventually vest. All other vesting conditions, including market
vesting conditions, are factored in to the far value of the options or warrants granted. As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied, the
amount recorded 1s computed irrespective of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative amount recognised is not
adjusted for the failure to achieve a market vesting condition; although equity ne longer required for options or warrants may be transferred to
another equity reserve.

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are modified befare they vest, the mcrease 1n the fair value of the options, measured
by the change from immedately before to after the modification, 1s aiso recorded 10 equity over the remaining vesting period.

when an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, it 1s treated as if it vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised or the
award 1s recognised immediately.

where an eguity settled award 15 1dentified as a replacement it will be treated as a medification to the original plan where the incremental fair
value of the replacement award 15 expensed over the vesting penod of the replacement award. The fair value of the onginal award on its grant
date 15 continued to be recognised over its original vesting pernod.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the amount recognised In equity is the fair value of goods and services
received.

Charges corresponding to the amounts recognised In equity are accounted as a cost against the profit and loss which will usually be to the
income statement unless the services rendered qualify for capitalisation as a nan-current asset. Costs may be capitalsed within non-current
assets in the event of services being rendered In connection with an acguisition or intangtble exploration and evaluation assets or property, plant
and equipment,

Where shares are 1ssued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company s the sponsoning entity, the value of such shares at issue will be

recorded in share capital and share premium account in the ordinary way, but will not affect shareholders’ funds since this same value will be
shown as a deduction from shareholders’ funds by way of a separate component of equity (Treasury shares}.
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Equity Instruments 1ssued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds recewved, net of direct issue costs, and ailocated between called
up share capital, share premum accounts or merger reserve as appropriate.

(J) Foreign currency

Transactions denominated 10 currencies other than the functional currency UK pound sterling are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and labilities dencminated in foreign currencies are re-transiated at the rate of exchange ruiing at the
balance shect date, All differences that arise are recorded in the income staterment.

2 Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries comprises

Parent Company

At beginning of year
Additions
Impairments

Atend of year

31 December 3" December
2017 201&
Investment Loansto nvestreent _cansto
inGroup Group n Group Group
Companies companies Total Corpanies ccrpanies Toral
o £000 £000 £000 £000 _i00o - Eo0O
187,772 210,002 397,774 183,517 199,488 383,005
1,061 1,379 12,440 4,255 10,514 14,769
L (17,939) - (17,939) - = -
170,894 221,381 392,275 187,772 210,002 397774

Loans to Group companies have repayment terms of between five and seven years Of the £221.4 million loans to Group companies,
£79.9 million bear interest at 1.2% above LIBOR at the initiation of the loan, while the remainder bear interest at a fixed rate of 12%.

AL 31 December 2017, the Company had investrents in the following 100% owned subsidiaries;

Name of company

Subsidiaries held by Company:

Dart Energy Pty Ltd

Island Gas Limtted

Island Gas Cperations Limited

iGas Energy Enterpnse Limited

{formerly IGas Energy (Caitness) Limited
1Gas Exploration UK Limited

Star Energy Group Limited

Star Energy Limited

Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

Star Energy Ciland Gas Limited
Subsidiaries held through subsidiaries:
Iskand Gas (Singleton) Limited

Dart Energy (Furope) Limited

Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited

Dart Energy (East England} Lirnited

Dart Energy (\West England} Limited

IGas Energy Development Limited

{formerly GP Energy Ltd)

|Gas Energy Production Limited

(formerly Dart Energy (Forth Valley) Limited

Dart nergy {Carbon Storage} Limited
Dart Energy {Lothian) Limited
Greenpark Energy Transportation Limited
Apolle Gas Pty Limited

Dart Energy (Bruxner) Pty Limired
Dart Energy (India) Pty Limited

Principal actmity and country of incorporation

Registerec office acdress

Gas exploration, Australia

CfO Pwe Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4001

Ol exploration, evaluation, production and marketing, England

Electnicity generation, England
Oiland gas exploration, developrment
and production, England

Dormant, England

Service company, England

Service company, England

Orland gas processing, England
Dormant, England

Oiland gas production and marketing, England
Investment holding, Scotland

Dormant, England

Shale gas exploration, England

Shale gas exploration, England
Oiland gas expleration, development
and production, England

Oiland gas exploration, development
and production, Scotland

Dormant, Scotland
Dormant, Scotland
Dormant, England
Dormant, Australia

Investment holding, Australia
Investment holding, Australia

7 Down Street, London, W1J7AJ
7 Down Street, London, W1J7AJ
7 Down Street, London, W1J7A)

Interpark House, 7 Down Street, London, Wil 7AJ

7 Down Street, London, W1J 7A)
7 Down Street, London, W11 7AJ
7 Down Street, London, W1J7AJ
7 Down Street, London, W1J 7AJ

7 Down Street, London, W1J7A
/O womble Bond Dickinson{UK)

Lip, Level 6, 124 -125 Princess Street, Edinburgh, EH2 4AD

7 Down Street, London, W1J74)
7 Down Street, London, W11 7A
7 Down Street, London, W11 7AJ
7 Down Street, London, W1J7AJ

C/O Womble Bond Dickinson (UKD

Lip, Level 6, 124 -125 Prncess Strect, Edinburgh, EH2 4AD

C/O Womble Bond Dickinson (UKD

Lip, Level 6, 124 -125 Princess Street, Edinburgh, EH2 4AD

C/O Womble Bond Dickinson (UKD

Lip, Level 6, 124 -125 Princess Street, Edinburgh, EH2 44D

7 Down Street, London, W1J7AJ

C/O Pwe Level 23, 480 Queen Strect, Brisbane QLD 4001
C/O Pwe Level 23, 430 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4001
C/O Pwe Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brishane QLD 4001
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2 Investments in subsidiaries continued

name of cornpany Principal actraty and country of incorparanicon

Regisiered office address

Dart Energy SPV Ne. 1 Pty Limited

Dart Energy SPV No.2 Pty Limited

Dart Energy (China) Pry Limited

Dart Energy {Overseas) Pty Limited

Dart Energy Global CBM Pty Limited

Dart Energy India Services Pvt Limited
Dart Energy International Limited

Dart Energy (Europe) Pte Limited

Dart Energy (China} Holdings Pte Limited
Dart Energy (India) Pre Lirmited

Dart Energy {ST) Pte Limited

Dart Energy (AS) Pte Limited

Dart Energy (Sangatta West) Pte Limited
Dart Energy (Dapng) Pte Lirmited

Dart Energy {Vietnam) Holdings Pte Limited
Dart Energy (India) Holdmgs Pre Limited
Dart Energy Asia Holdings Pte Limited
Dart Energy {Hano: Basin CBM) Pte Limited
Dart Energy india (CMM) Pre Lirmited
Dart Energy (CIL) Pte Limited

Dart Energy {MG) Pte Limited

Dormant, Australia
Dormant, Australia
Dormant, Australia
Dormant, Australia
Dormant, Australia
Service company, india
Investment holding, Singapore
Investment holding, Singapore
investment holding - dormant, Singapore
Investment holding - dormant, Singapore
Investment holding, Singapore
Investment holding, Singapore
investment helding, Singapore
Investrnent holding - dormant, Singapore
Investment holding - dormant, Singapore
Dormant, Singapore

Dormant, Singapore

Dormant, Singapore

Dormant, Singapore

Dormant, Singapore

Dormartt, Singapore

C/O Pwce Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4001
C/O Pwe Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4001
C/O Pwc Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4001
C/C Pwe Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4001
C/O Pwce Level 23, 480 Queen Street, Brishane QLD 4001

804-805, 8" Floor, Tower B, Global Business Park, M.G Road, Gurugram, Harvana

80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068893
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 063898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Read, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068838
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 063853
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898
80 Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898

The Company’s investments m subsidianes were reviewed for indicators of imparment as at 31 December 2017.

3 Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2017

31 Decerber 2076

Fixtures, Fixtures,
fittings and Motor Toings and Meator
Buildings equipment vehicles Total Buichrigs equprment vehicles Total
- £000 ] £000 B £000 £000 ~ £000 £UOO_ £O[P E000
Cost
At 1 January 375 139 20 524 358 136 20 514
Additions ] i - - - - 17 3 - 20
At31 Decembe_r ~ 375 132 20 534 375 139 2Q 53_4}
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 256 134 20 410 182 118 20 320
Charge for the year 75 - 77 74 16 ) - 20
At 31 December 331 136 20 487 256 134 20 410
NBV at 31 December 44 3 - 47 15 5 - 124

4 Trade and other receivables

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
. ] ) ~ £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
AT recoverable 39 192
Other debtors 36 39
Amaunts due from subsidiary undertakings 30,718 38,987
Prepayments 7 ) B4 4
30,947 35,366

Payment terms for balances due from subsidiary undertakings are as mutually agreed between the Group's companies,

The carrying value of each of the Company’s financial assets as stated above beng other debtors and amounts due from subsidiary undertakings
Is considered to be a reascnable approxmation of 1ts fair value.
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 Cecember

20%7 2076

. - ) L ) £000 ) £000

Cash at bank and in hand 858 21.205

The carrying value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents as stated above 15 considered to be a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents included £8.2 millicn at 31 December 2016 which was held in the DSRA. This was designated, at the Company’s
discretion, for the buy-back or repayment of bonds

Net debt reconciliation

31 December

2017

- : £o0o

Cash and cash equivalents 858
Borrowings (21,240
Net debr (20,382)
Borrowings - capitalised fees (686)
Net debt excluding caprtalised fees (21,068}

Cashand cash

equivalents  Borrowings Total

£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2017 21,205  (124,579) (103,374)

Capital restructuring 3,140 90,025 93,165

Repayments and repurchase of borrowngs (5,423} 5,423 -

Interest paid (5,917} 5917 -

Foreign exchange adjustments (1,031) 2,369 1,338
Cther cash flows (1,116) - (11,116}
Other non-cash movements - ~(395) (395)
At 31 December 2017 858 (21,240)  (20,382)

6 Trade and other payables
31December 31 December
2017 2016
. £000 £000
Trade creditors 274 661
Taxation and so¢ial security 51 G0
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 145,751 173129
Accruals and other creditors 834 S589

146,910 174,839

Payment terms for balances due to subsidiary undertakings are as mutually agreed between the Group’s companies.

The carrying value of each of the Company’s financiaf labilities being trade creditors 1s considered to be areasonable approximation of its
fair value. All trade creditors are payable within one to two months and ne creditor has been outstanding for longer than three months

(2016: no longer than three months).

7 Taxation

Tax losses, none of which are considered sufficiently certain of ublisation to recognise deferred tax assets, amount to

Year veur

ended ended

31December 31 Dacermber

2017 2016

~ £000 000

Excess management expenses 17,615 16,533
Non-trade loan reltionship debits 47,968 37551
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The tax law has changed with effect from 1 April 2017 so that there is more flexibility regarding the usage of the losses brought forward including
excess management expenses and non-trade loan relationship debits.

Non-trade loan relationship debits may be offset against future income from similar sources.

8 Borrowings
Borrowings are measured at amortised cost in accordance with IAS 39,

3 Decemberzm_? 31 Decemtrngr 2016

Within Greater Within Gieater
1year than 1year Total 1 year than 1year Total
£000 €000 £000 2000 £000 £000
Bonds - secured 1,687 19,553 21,240 6,084 96,700 102,784
Bonds - unsecured ] - - - - 21,795 21,795
Total 1,687 19,553 21,240 6084 118,495 124,579

In 2013, the Company and Nersk Tillitsmann (“Bond Trustee™) entered into a Bond Agreement for the Company to 1ssue up to $165.0 millien
secured bonds and up to $30.0 million unsecured bonds {issued at 96% of par) . These bonds were subsequently histed on Oslo Bors and the
Alternative bond market in Cslo. Both secured and unsecured bonds carried a coupon of 10% per annum (where mterest was payable semi-
annually 1n arrears). The secured bonds were amortised semi-annually at 2.5% of the initial loan amount, Final maturity on the secured notes was
on 22 March 2018 and on the unsecured notes was 11 December 2018,

In April 2017, the Company restructured its debt resuiting in the equitisation of the unsecured bonds and a repaymentfequitisation of a portion
of the secured bonds. The restructuring reduced the total aggregate face value of the secured bonds to $30.0 millkon. The interest rate was
reduced to 8%, the repayment term was extended to 30 June 2021, and the amortisation rate was increased to 5% of the initial loan amount
from 23 March 2018 The restructuring also resulted in changes to the covenants and the removal of the need for a DSRA. The secured bonds
now have two covenants: a liquidity requirement of $7.5 million and a leverage ratio, tested every six months, that requires net debt versus
adjusted EBITDA to be less than 3.5 times,

9 Other liabilities

Other liabihtes related to warrants issued pursuant to a warrant instrument dated 14 December 2011, No warrants were exercised dunng the
current or prior year. The warrants expired on 14 December 2017,

Weighted

average
exercise price 2017 206
_ L _No. i _(pence) £000 £000
At 1 January ) ) ) ) ) ) 7,500,000 55.8 n 147
Subdsion and conversion 375,000 - - -
Expiry of warrants (375,000) - ) -

Revaluanongan = - T (_116)

At 31 December - - - 1
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10 Commitments -
At the balance sheet date the Company had outstanding commitmeants for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating =
leases as follows: ﬁ
&
s s M
Operating lease commitments: =
31December 31 Jecerber 8
2017 w6 A
i ] ) ] £000 £000
- expirng within 1 year 1,273 614
- expiring within 2 to 5 years 1,468 1,320
~expiring after 5 years 7 867 389
Total 3,608 2,323 -
o}
2
11 Financial instruments and risk management 2
Fair values 5
The fair value of financial assets and fiabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, other than those with carrying o
amaunts that are a reasonable approximation of their far values, are as follows: %
Z
) Carrying amount Fan vahie_- )Z>
31December 371 Decerber 31December 37 Decernber o
2017 2016 2017 20
- B o i £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities -
Amortised cost E
Borrowings 21,240 124,579 21,452 81459 =
»
The fair vale of borrowings (ierarchy level 1} have been caleolated by re‘erence to cLoted market prices for these specif C llabilines ;
»
- . =
Fair value hierarchy &
Altassets and liabihties for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed i the financial statements are categorised within the fair vaiue tuerarchy, o
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 3

* Level 1- guoted (unadjusted) prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

¢ Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recerded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly; and

* Level 3 rechniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data,

Far financial instruments there are no non-recuraing fair value measurements nor have there been any transfers between levels of the fair
value hierarchy.

The financial assets and liabilities measured at farr value are categorised into the fair value hierarchy as at the reporting dates as follows:

3T December 31 Decerber

2017 2016
) £000 £000

Financial liabilities: Level 2
Warrants - 11
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11 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabiities comprise borrowings, warrants and trade and other payables, including amounts due to subsidiary
undertakings. The main purpose of these financial liabilties 15 to finance the Company’s subsidiary operations and to fund acquisitions.

The Company has trade and other recevables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derwed directly from its operations and restricted cash.

The Company manages Its exposure to key financial nsks in accordance with 1ts financial risk management policy. The objective of the policy
Is to support the Company’s financial targets while protecting future financial security. The Company 1s exposed to the following nisks:

* Market risk including interest rate, and foreign currency nisks;

e Credit nsk; and

* Liquidity risk.

Marnagerment reviews angd agrees pohicies for managing each of these risks which are surnmarised below. 1t is the Compary's poicy that all
transactions mvohang dervatives must be directly related to the underlying business of the Company. The Company does not use derwvative
financial instrurments for speculative exposures.

Market risk
Market risk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market factors,
such as interest rate and foreign currency.

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, and the proportion of financial instruments
in foreign currencies are alf constant and that dervatives are held to maturity, The sensitivity analysis 15 intended to llustrate the sensitivity
Lo changes in market varizbles on the Company's financial instruments and show the impact on profit or loss and shareholders’ aquity,
where applicable

Interest rate risk
The Company's exposure to the nisk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s loans with related parties
The Company currently has all of its external borrowings at fixed rates of interest.

The following table summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in interest rates on the fair value of the loans to related parties.

The analysis is based on the assumption that LIBOR moves 50 basis points, with all other vanables held constant.
Increasef{decrease) in proft betore tax
forthe year ended and to

) _ euky asa

37 December 31 Decer~ber

2017 2016

o o B i £000 £000

50 basis point increase N LIBOR 388 388
50 basis point decrease In LIBOR (388) (388)

Foreign currency risk
The Company has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from purchases in currencies other than the UK pounds sterling,
the functional currency of the Company. The Company’s borrowings are also denominated in US dollars.

The following table summarises the impact on profit before tax for changes in the US dollarfUK pound steriing exchange rate on financral assets
and liabilities as at the year end, principally relating to the Group’s borrowings which are denominated in US dollars. The impact on equity is the
<ame as the impact on profit before tax

The analysis 15 based on the assumption that the pound moves 10%, with all other vanables held constant.
increasefidecrease} inprofit before tax
for the year ended and tz

_ L Ft‘ﬁuit‘\fﬂs at

31 December 37 December

2017 2016

: - - £000 £000

10% strengthening of the pound aganst the US dollar 2,170 10,033
10% weakening of the pound aganst the US dollar {2,170) (10,033)
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11 Financial instruments and risk management continued

Credit risk

with respect 1o credit risk ansing from the financial assets of the Company, which compnise cash and cash equivalents and amounts due

from subsidiary undertakings, the Company's exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these instruments. The credit sk on amounts due from subsidrary undertakings 1s imited as these are assessed

for impairment whenever events or changes in Circumstances indicate that they may not be recoverable. The Company Iimits its counterparty
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents by dealing only with financial institutions with credit ratings of at least A or eguivalent other than

if the UK government is a2 majority shareholder. £0.1 rilhon (2016: £20.7 millon) of cash and cash equivalents were held with

two INstItUtIonNs.

Liquidity risk
The Company manages guidity nsk by maintaining adequate banking and borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profies of financial assets and liabilrres and future capital and operating commitments.

The table below summarises the matunity profile of the Company’s financial iabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

On derancd < year 1-2 years 2-3years >3years Tota
3 £000 £000 £O0O £000 £000 £000

At 31 December 2077
Borrowings - 3,418 3,823 3,643 16,663 27,547
Trade and other payables - 274 - - - 274
- 3,692 3,823 3,643 16,663 27821

At 31 December 2016

Borrowings - 18,582 122,314 - - 140,896
Trade and other payables - 661 - - - €61
Warrants _ B - 11 - - - n
- 15,254 122,314 - - 141,568

Management censiders that the Company has adequate current assets and forecast cash from operations to manzage liquidity risks arising from
current liabihities and non-current labilities

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it remains sufficiently funded to support its business strategy and maximise shareholder value.
The Company's funding needs are met through a combination of debt and adjustments made in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Company’s strategy 15 to maintain ratios in line with covenants associated with the issued bonds.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt,
interest bearing bank loans less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. Capital includes share capital, share premium, other reserves
and accumulated losses.

The Company completed a restructuring and fundraising package on 4 April 2017 (see note 12). Management believe that the new capital
structure will be sustainable in the current ail price environment and, together with a carned work programme of up to $240 milllon, means
that the Company Is well positioned to pursue its strategy.
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12 Called up share capital

On 3 April 2017, the shareholders approved the subdivision of each of the 303,305,534 ordinary shares of 10p each of the Company into one
new crdinary share of 0.00071p each and one deferred share of $.9999p each. At the Annual General Meeting of the Company on 14 June
2017, the shareholders approved a consolidation and subdivision of the Campany’s share capital in order to reduce the number of shares in
Issue to that more appropnate for the size of the Company. Following the consoiidation, every 200 ordinary shares of 0.0001 pence each
were consclidated into one new ordinary share of 0.02 pence gach and immediately subdivided into 10 ordinary shares of 0.002 pence. The
consolidation and subdivision reduced the number of shares in issue from 2.4 billion to 121 millon.

- Ordinary shares Deterredsharest  Sharecapital Share presmum
~Nominal valug Norrinalvalue  Nominal value Value
NG £000 No £000 £000 £000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2017, Qrdinary shares of 10p each 302,820578 30,282 - - 130,282 32
January 2017 SIP share 1ssue 484,956 49 - - 49 2
Balance prior to the restructuring 303,305,534 30,331 - - 30,331 34
Subdvision of 10p ordinary shares mto C.0001p ordimary shares
and 9.999p deferred shares - (30,331)303,305,534 30,331 - -
Issued through Kerogen Subscription Agreement 679,282,165 1 1 28,766
Issued through the Placing and Gpen and Anciliary Offers 400,069,644 - - - - 18,003
Equitisation of secured and unsecured bonds 1,043,350,391 1 - - 1 46,949
Transaction costs - - - - - (554)
Reserves transfer on equitisation of unsecured bonds - - - - 5,008
May 2017 SIP share isste ) 956,464 - - - - 44
Total ordinary shares before subdivision and consolidation  2,426,964,198 L
Subdivision and consclidation (2.305615988) 7 o
After subdivision and consolidation 121,348,210 23203,305,534 30,331 30,333 102,250
July 2017 SIP share 1ssue 59,352 - - - - 42
October 2017 SIP share 1ssue 73,557 - - - - 50
Dece_mbef 2017 EBT 155Ue 400,000 - - - - -
At 31 December 2017 121,881,119 2 303,305,534 30,331 30,333 102,342
* Deferred shares were created on capital restruciunng which corpleted in Apnl 2017 as disclosed in nate 16
Accordingly, the Group share capital account comprised:
e — .m0
Share capital account
At 1 January 2016 29,882
Shares issued during the year o400
AL 31 December 2016 30,282
Shares issued during the year 51
At 31 December 2017 30,333

13 Share premium and capital redemption reserve account

Share premium account

The share premium account anses from the Company 1ssuing shares for consideration in excess of their nominal value less the costs of such

Issues. During the year, the Company issued 106,740,090 ordinary shares at a nomenal value of 0.002p each (on a post subdivision and

consolidation basis), (2016: 3,996,914 shares 1ssued on a pre-subdivision and consolidation basis) resulting in an increase in the share premium
reserve of £102.3 million {2016: £0.18 millon) - see note 12 The issuing costs incurred during the year were £554 thousand (31 December

2076: £nil)
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The merger reserve arose as a result of a reverse acquisition on 31 December 2007 whereby Island Gas Limited {“IGL”) became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company but with IGL's shareholders acquinng 94% of the ordinary share capital of the Company The reserve represents the
difference in the fair value and the nominal value of the shares issued. The reserve is not distrbutabie,

15 Other reserves
Other reserves are as follows:

Warrang/Share TreasJary Lapiral werger
plan reserves shares  contnbuoons raserve Total
i £000 £000 £000 £00D £000
AL 1 January 2016 3,260 (1,985} 47 22,222 23,544
Employee share plans — cost under IFRS 2 5,225 - - - 5,225
Employee share plans - shares issued under the SiP - ne - - 19
Forfeture of LTIPs under the employee share plan (3n - - - (31
Shares refeased from the Trust due to exercise of options (14) 4 - - -
Transfers ) (202) 202 - - -
AL 31 Decermnber 2016 ) 8,128 (1,650} 47 22,222 28,757
Employee share plans - cost under IFRS 2* 1,116 - - - 1,116
Employee share plans - shares issued under the SIP - 102 - - 102
Forfeiture of LTIPs under the employee share plan (85) - - - (85)
Lapse of LTIPs under the employee share plan () - - - ()
Transfers N B (175) 175 - = =
At 31 December 2017 8,983 (1,373) 47 22,222 29,879
*Employee share plan costs wnder IFRS 2 incluce £159 thousand of charges that were expensed during the year
Employee share plans - Equity settled
Details of the share options under employee share plans outstanding are as follows:
EP MRP EDRP P
Number Namber Number Number
of units Qf unies ofunes of uries
Outstanding at 1 January 2016 - 7143610 6500000 1,843,300
Exercisable at 1 January 2016 - - - -
Granted during the year 7548701 2,865,290 - -
Forfeited during the year o (452,358)  (538,086) - (1,416}
Qutstanding at 31 December 2016 7096343 9470874 6,500,000 1,841,884
Exercisable at 31 December 2016 ) - 8470814 6,500,000 -
Exercisable after subdivision and conversion (Including roundings) 354,826 473,566 325,000 92,096
Awarded during the year 1,756,923 - - -
Exercised during the year (9,533) (206,314) - -
Lapsed during the year - - - (1,029)
Forfeited during the year (15,512) - - (3,971)
Outstanding at 31 December 2017 2,086,704 267,252 325,000 87,096
Exercisable at 31 December 2017 2,086,704 267,252 325,000 87,096

Note  all oprions are il cost and therefore the werghten average exercise pnce 15 nil

Detall disclosure of each employee share plan scheme is in the Group consolidated accounts note 27.
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15 Other reserves continued

Executive Incentive Plan (“EIP™)

The total charge for the year was £0.39 milhion. Of this amount, £0.34 million was capitalised and £0.05 million was charged to the
Income statement,

Management Retention Plan (“MRP*)
The total charge for the year was £nil (2016: £1.8 millon}. Of this amount, £nil (2016: £0.6 million) was capitalised or recharged to joint
venture partners and £nil (2076: £1.2 million} was charged to the income statement.

Executive Director Retention Plan {(“EDRP™)
The total charge for the year was £nil (2016: £0.2 milon). Of this amount, £nil was capitalised (2016: £0.47 milhon} and £ril was charged
to the Income statement {2016: £0.33 milion).

Long Term Incentive Plan 2011 (*2011 LTIP™)
The total charge for the year was £0.17 milhion (2016; £0.40 million). Of this amount, £0.09 millon was capitalised (2016: £0.38 million)
and £0.02 milion was charged to the income statement {2016: £0.02 million credited to the income statement).

Value Creation Plan {*2014 VCP”)
The total charge for the year was £0.52 million (2016, £1.76 millon). Of this amount, £0.43 million was capitalised (2016, £1.10 million)
and £0.09 million was charged to the income statement {2016, £0.65 million).

Other share based payments
Detaled disclosure of other share based payments 1s in the Group consolidated accounts note 27.

Share Incentive Plan (“SIP™)

The total charge for the year was £0.2 millon (2016: £0.27 millon}. Cf this amount, £0.19 million was capitahsed (2016; £0.263 millon)
and £0.01 milion was charged to the income statement (2016 £0.007 mulion).
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16 Capital restructure

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company disclosed that it expected to be non-compliant with s leverage covenants under its
secured bond agreement and that it aiso expected to breach 1ts datly iquidity covenant in late March 2017. The Company therefore engaged
in discussions with its bondholders, a strategic investor and other potential investors and stakeholders with regard to possible restructuring
options in order to provide a remedy to the expected breach and achteve a capital structure that would be sustainable in the current ol price
environment. In March 2017, the Company announced final terms of the restructuring and fundraising package which were subsequently
approved at the meetings of the Company’s secured and unsecured bondholders and at the general meeting of shareholders on 3 Aprit 2017
in addition, the shareholders approved the subdivision of each of the 303,305,534 ordinary shares of 10p each of the Company into one new
ordinary share of 0.0001p each and one deferred share of 9.9999p each.

L4043 NDILWHLS

On 4 April 2017, the Company announced that ail new crdinary shares 1ssued in accordance with the terms of the fundraising were admitted
to trading and, as a result, the restructuring of the Company’s secured bonds and unsecured bonds and the fundraising had become effective
in accordance with their respective terms, The principal terms are set out befow:

» 679,282,165 new ordinary shares were issued to Unconventional Energy Limited, an affiliate of Kerogen Capital, pursuant to a subscription
agreement (including 40,030,273 new ordinary shares at nominal value pursuant to a top-up mechanism) raising £28.77 millon and ghng
Unconventional Energy Limited an interest of 28% in the Company.

« 400,069,644 new ordinary shares were sssued pursuant to a placing, open offer and ancillary subscription raising £18 04 million.

+ 528,175,031 new ordinary shares were 1ssued to holders of secured bonds who accepted voluntary equity exchange of secured bonds
extinguishing $28.92 million (£23.78 milkon) in face value of the secured bonds.

* 202,398,542 new ordinary shares were issued to holders of secured bonds pursuant to a conditional secured debt for equity swap
extinguishing a further $11.08 millon (£9.11 mylhon) 1n face value of the secured bonds.

e C.$49.2 milion {£40.4 milior) in face value of secured bonds were cancelled in consideration for ¢.$49.2 millon (£40.4 million) cash
pursuant to a voluntary cash offer.

* 312,776,818 new ordinary shares were issued to holders of unsecured bonds on the conversion of all unsecured bonds into equity
extinguishing 27 4 million (£22.5 mullion} in face value, being all of, the unsecured bonds not held by the Company.

e The Company cancelled $13.0% milion (£10.7 mithon} i face value of the secured bonds and unsecured bonds held by the Company,
being all of the unsecured bonds and secured bonds held by the Company.

+ The renegotiated terms and conditions and covenants for the remaining secured bonds (total aggregate face value of ¢.$30 08 million)
came into effect upon admission.

¢ The new ordinary shares were ssued at a price of 4.5p per share.
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A gain of £4.9 million (net of fees of £2.5 miflicn) arising from the restructure has been recognised for the year

17 Related party transactions
{a) With Group companies
A summary of the transactions in the year 15 as follows:

Year Year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2076

) e 7 S £000 E0DO

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries:

At January 2017 75,861 102,043

Services performed (for)/by subsidiary 2,676 437
Net cash advances 7,092 (14,808)

Group loan interest 11,379 13,358
Impairment - (9122)
Revaluations ) ] - ] - o 9,341 (16,048)

At 31 December 2017 106,349 75,860

Year Year

ended endec

31December 37 Decermber

2017 2006

Amounts due from subsidary undertakings 30,718 33987
Amounts due to subsidary undertakings (145,751) (173,129

Loans to Group companies ) o ] ) 221,382 210,002

Total 106,349 75,860
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PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 CONTINUED

Payment terms for balances due to or from subsidiaries are as mutually agreed between the Group’s companies. The payment terms in respect
of loans are detailed in note 2,

(b) With Directors

Key management as defined by IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ are those persons having authority and responsibility for planming, controling
and directing the activities of the Company In the opinion of the Board, the Company’s key management are the Directors of the Company.
Information regarding therr compensation is given in the Director’ Remuneration Report.

Pricr to the restructuring, C McDowell held $0.24 mibon (2016: $0.25 milkon) of bonds issued by the Group. Mr McDowell elected to
participate fully in the vcluntary debt for equity swap on his secured bond holding resulting in an allotment of 4,383,441 shares. Following the
consolidation and subdivision of shares, the holding equalled 219,170 shares. In 2016, he recewved interest of $0.03 million. Accrued interest at
31 December 2016 was $6.9 thousand.

18 Subsequent events

On 24 January 2018 the Group issued 69,195 Ordinary £0.00002 shares in relation to the Company’s SIP scheme. The shares were 1ssued at
£0.69 resuiting in share premium of £47,570.
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OIL AND GAS RESERVES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Group’s estimate of proved plus probable reserves at 31 December 2017 are taken from the Group's internal estimates for the Group's oll
and gas fields as of 37 December 2017 together with adjustments for production. Proved reserves are estimated reserves that geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty te be recoverable in future years under existing economic and operating conditions,
while probable reserves are estimated reserves determined to be maore likely than not to be recoverable in future years under existing economic
and operating conditions.

All of the Group’s ol and gas assets are located in the United Kingdom.,

Group proved plus probable reserves
Total

) L ~ 7 Ol rorrbbls Gas B! mmboe
At 1 January 2017 12.65 395 13.37
Addinons dunng the year - - -
Revision of previous estimates 1.40 (1.47) 116
Production ) ] o __(oB4)  (0.2%)  (0.89)
Total change durng the year i . 0.56 (1.70) 0.27
At 31 December 2017 13.25 2.25 13.64
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IGAS ONSHORE UK LICENCE INTERESTS

Licence Fields Area IGas Operator Other partners
km? interest

East Midlands
ALOD9 Dunholme 9 100% IGas
EXL288 Trumfleet” 75 75% IGas INECS
ML3 Egrnanton 26 100% IGas
ML4 Gamsborough, Beckingham, Corringham, 72 100% IGas

Glentworth
ML8 Bothamsall 11 100% IGas
ML7 South Leverton 11 100% tGas
PEDLOGS Cold Hanwoerth 136 100% IGas
PEDLOT12 33 55% iGas INEOS
PEDL139 100 32% IGas INEQS, egdon, Ecorp
PEDL1 40 142 329% 1Gas INEOS, Egdon, Ecorp
PEDL146 276 75% iGas INEOS
PEDL169" 62 80% IGas Egdon
PEDL20O 114 55% IGas INEOS
PEDL210 Hemsweli 116 75% IGas INEOS
PEDL273! 194 35% IGas Total, Egdon, INEQS
PEDL 278 38 50% iGas Egdon
PEDL305 143 35% IGas Totai, Egdon, INECS
PEDL316 117 35% IGas Total, Egden, INEOS
PEDL317 Hemswell 39 100% IGas
PEDL337 Beckering’ 10 100% 1Gas
PL162" 42 100% 'Gas
pL178 West Beckingham 2 100% IGas
PL17S Welton, Stainton, Nettleham, Scampton 107 100% Gas
South, Scampton Nerth, East Glentworth

PL199® Nettleham 4 100% IGas
PL220 Long Clawson, Rempstone 13 100% IGas

Weald Basin
DLOOZ Stockbridge 10 100% IGas
DLOC4 Albury’ 14 100% IGas
ML18 Bletchingley 8 100% IGas
ML21 Bletchingley ) 100% 1Gas
PEDLOZ1 Goodworth 50 100% |Gas
PEDLOZO Avington 18 0% Gas Egdon, Aurora, UKOG, Brigantes, Corfe
PEDL233 Baxters Copse 89 50% IGas UKOG
PEDL235 Godley Bridge 100 100% iGas
PEDL257 Lingfield 28 100% IGas
PEDL326 95 100% IGas
pPL1E2 Palmers Wood 55 100% IGas
PL205 Storrington 18 100% IGas
PL2TY Horndean 27 0% IGas UKOG
PL233 Stockbndge 58 100% 1Gas
PL240 Singleton 46 100% IGas
PL249 Stockbridge 16 100% IGas
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Licence Fields Area IGas Operator Other partners
km? interest
North West
EXi273 48 15% INEQS INEOQS
PEDLOS6 The Potteres 2 100% IGas
PEDL145 Doc Green 74 40% INEQS
PECL147/ 89 25% IGas INEOS
PEDL184 286 50% fGas INEOS
PEDL188 1060 75% IGas INEQS
PEDL1ES 100 25% IGas INEQS
PEDL190 94 50% 1Gas INEQS
PEDL193 296 40% INEOS
PEDL293 200 30% INEQS INEOS
PEDL295 200 30% INEQS INEOS
Scotland
P1270 Lybster 16 100% 1Gas
PEDL158 Lybster 46 100% 1Gas
Notes

© Dunholme, Hemewell, Beckering, Albury. Baxters Copse, Godley Bndge anc Lingheld are undeveloped felds
Trurn?eet Figls was 3bancones n 2009 prior o Gas acquinng an nterest in kcence EXL238
PEDL" 69 icence arca alse has CVM aperations operared by Alkane with no 1Gas interest
PEDLZT 3 icence ar 84 Nas six CMM vents operatert by Alkane under PEDL2 74 and PZDL037 with no (Gas nterest

Z
E
4
5 2187 licence area INTluaes the Fat™eld Moor Gas Storage Facihity operated by Scottish Power with no Gas interest
5

2_793 aiso includes Whisby fiekc operatec by 3lackland Park with no Gas interes:

IGas Energy pkc Annual report and accounts 2017
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GLOSSARY

£

$

P

2p

3P

1C

2C

3C
AIM
boepd
bopd
Contingent

Recoverable
Resources

Drill or drop

Firm well

GIIP
Miboe
MMscfd
NBP
PEDL
PL

Tef

UK

The lawful currency of the United Kingdom

The lawful currency of the United States of America

Low estimate of commercially recoverable reserves

Best estimate of commercially recoverable reserves

High estimate of commercially recoverable reserves

Low estimate or low case of Contingent Recoverable Resource quantity
Best estirmate or mid case of Contingent Recoverable Resource quantity
High estimate or tigh case of Contingent Recaverable Resource quantity
AM market of the London Stock Exchange

Barrels of ol equivalent per day

Barrels of ol per day

Contingent Recoverable Resources estimates are prepared in accordance with the Petroleum Resources Management System
(“PRMS"), anindustry recognised standard. A Contingent Recoverable Resource is defined as discovered potentially recoverable
guantities of hydrocarbons where there 1s no current certainty that it will be commercially viable to produce any portion of the
contingent resources evaluated. Contingent Recoverable Resources are further divided into three status groups: marginal, sub
marginal, and undetermined. 1Gas” Contingent Recoverable Resources all fall into the undetermined group. Undetermined is

the status group where it 15 considered premature to clearly define the ultimate chance of commerciality.

Adrillor drop well carries no commitment to drill. The decision whether or not to dril the well rests entirely with the icensee
being driven by the results of geotechnical analysis. The licence will, however, still expire at the end of the inutial term if the well
has not been drilled.

A firm well 1s classified as a firm commitment to drill a well It 15 not contingent on any further gectechnical evaluation
(re. it s afully evaluared prospect).

Gas intbally in place

Millions of barrels of ail equivalent

Millions of standard cubic feet per day

National balancing peint - a virtual trading location for the sale and purchase and exchange of UK natural gas.
United Kingdom petroleum exploration and development licence

Production licence

Trillions of standard cubic feet of gas

United Kingdom
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